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officers is an affiliate. See material referreditaer Item 12, below



FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Except for historical information, this Annual Repon Form 10-K may be deemed to contain "forwamking" information. Examples of
forward looking information include, but are natlted to, (a) projections of or statements regaydeturn on investment, future earnings,
interest income, other income, earnings or losspare, investment mix and quality, growth prospezdpital structure and other financial
terms, (b) statements of plans and objectives afagament, (c) statements of future economic pedon®, and (d) statements of
assumptions, such as economic conditions underbfimgr statements. Such forward looking informatian be identified by the use of
forward looking terminology such as "believes,"fexgts," "may," "will," "should," "anticipates," ¢he negative of any of the foregoing or
other variations thereon or comparable terminolagyhy discussion of strategy. No assurance cagives that the future results described by
the forward looking information will be achieveduc® statements are subject to risks, uncertairdgieds other factors which could cause ac
results to differ materially from future resultspegssed or implied by such forward looking inforioat Such statements in this Report
include, without limitation, those contained in (8m 1. Business, (b) Item 7. Management's Disonsand Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations and (c) the Notes t&thresolidated Financial Statements including, witHonitation, the Environmental Matters
Note. Important factors that could cause the actsmllts to differ materially from those in theseWarc-looking statements include, among
other items, (i) a reduction in anticipated ordéiis;an economic downturn; (iii) unanticipated @mmnmental remediation expenses or claims;
(iv) changes in the need for additional machinerg aquipment and/or in the cost for the expansfdheCorporation's operations; (v)
changes in the competitive marketplace and/or austoequirements; (vi) an inability to perform arser contracts at anticipated cost levels
and (vii) other factors that generally affect thesiness of companies operating in the Corporat®egments.

Introduction

Pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1931 Régistrant, Curtiss-Wright Corporation herebgdiits Form 10-K Annual Report for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 1998. Referencibeitext to the "Corporation,” "Company," "Curtigight” or the "Registrant” include
Curtiss-Wright Corporation and its consolidatedsidiaries unless the context indicates otherwisdeiRnces to the Company's "Annual
Report" are to its 1998 Annual Report to Stockhiddehich is attached hereto as Exhibit 13.

PART |

Item 1. Business.

Curtiss-Wright Corporation was incorporated in 18@@er the laws of the State of Delaware. During8l%he Company adopted the
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, 1Bisclosures about Segments of an EnterpriseRaidted Information.” (SFAS No.
131). Consistent with the requirements of SFAS N1, the Company now reports its operations inetsegments: Precision Manufacturing
Products & Services, Actuation and Control Prodéc&ervices, and Flow Control Products & Services.

Precision Manufacturing Products & Services

Curtiss-Wright provides approximately 50 metal-tieg services in this Segment which are describegage 8 in the Company's Annual
Report, such description being incorporated byregfee in this Form 10-K. These processes are ussdpgally to improve the strength and
durability of metal parts. They are also used tonfgurvatures in metal panels which are assemidedragskins of commercial and military
planes, and to manufacture valve reeds used in@asq@rs. The Corporation provides these serviaes fooad spectrum of customers in
various industries, including aerospace, automepteastruction equipment, oil, petrochemical, mataiking, and other industries.
Operations are conducted from 36 facilities locateithe United States, Canada, England, Francen@wgy, and Belgium.

The services and products of this Segment are reatkirectly by employees of the Company. Althongmerous companies compete with
the Company in this field, and many customersterdervices provided have the resources to peagh services themselves, Curtiss-
Wright believes that its greater technical know-havd superior quality provide it with a competitadvantage. The Corporation also
competes on the basis of quality, service and price

The backlog of this Segment as of January 31, 1@89$1.4 million, as compared with $.3 million &danuary 31, 1998. All of such back
is expected to be shipped in the first quartera®al The business of this Segment is not seasBaal.materials are generally available in
adequate quantities from a number of suppliers th@@&egment is not materially dependent upon engyessource of supply. No single
customer accounted for 10% or more of total sale®bB8, 1997 and 1996 and the active customerrbasbers in excess 5,000.

Actuation and Control Products & Services

The Corporation designs, develops and manufacfliges control actuation systems and componentsHeraerospace industry.
Manufactured products offered consist of electraimamical and hydro-mechanical actuation comporemissystems which are designed to
position aircraft control surfaces, or to operarapies, cargo doors, weapons bay doors or othvéeredeused on aircraft. They include
actuators and control systems for the Boeing 787, 757, 767 and 777 jet airliners, the LockheedtiMd-16 Falcon fighter, the Boeing
F/A-18 fighter, the F-22 Raptor fighter jointly ddeped by Lockheed Martin and Boeing, the Bell BgeV-22 Osprey, and the Sikorsky
Black Hawk and Seahawk helicopters. The Corporaisa is designing wing flap actuators for busirjesaircraft.

With the acquisition on December 31, 1998 of SIGrigbstechnik AG*, the Company also offers eleatreehanical and electro-hydraulic
actuation components and systems including eleictamntrols to the military tracked and wheeledigkh high speed railroad train, and
commercial marine propulsion markets. These pradoidtarily involve the design and manufacture mfes and suspension systems for
armored military vehicles sold to defense equipnmeanufacturers and tilting systems for high spedéday car applications, in each case to
overseas markets.

* Merged into Curtis-Wright Antriebstechnik GmbH (Curti-Wright Drive Technology) effective March 19, 19¢



The actuation and control products and servicesisfSegment are marketed directly to customersihgloyees of the Corporation. These
products are sold in competition with a numbertbio system suppliers, most of which have broadeduyrt lines and financial, technical,
and human resources greater than those of the Ggm@ampetition is primarily on the basis of engirieg capability, quality and price and
is directed to the placement of systems to perfoontrol and actuation functions on the limited nembf new production programs.

As a related service within this Segment, Curtissgiit also provides commercial airlines, the miljtand general aviation customers with
component overhaul and repair services. The Cotiparaverhauls a variety of hydraulic, pneumatigamanical, electro-mechanical,
electrical and electronic components found on Bgedimckheed Martin, Airbus and other aircraft. Terporation provides these services
from facilities in Shelby, North Carolina, Miamildfida, Karup, Denmark, and a marketing and distidn facility in Singapore.

This Segment's overhaul services are sold in cdtigrewith a number of other overhaul and repaovpders. Competition in the overhaul
business is based upon quality, delivery and phitarketing is accomplished through sales represgataand by direct sales.

The Company sells a commercial rescue tool usgnBawer Hinge"(TM) aerospace technology underrdudemark Power Hawk(R). Various
accessories and related equipment are also offehedprimary use for this tool is the extricatidraatomobile accident victims.

Sales by this Segment to the Boeing Company in 12987, and 1996 were $39.3, $32.0 and $17.4 mijlliespectively. This Segment wo!
be adversel



affected by the loss of this customer. U.S. Govemindirect and end use sales of this Segment i8,11997 and 1996 were $19.7, $20.1 and
$19.3 million, respectively. This Segment woulddalwersely affected by the loss of this business.

The backlog of this Segment as of January 31, 1@89$143.0 million as compared with $120.7 millaanof January 31, 1998. Of the
January 31, 1999 amount, approximately 75% is argeto be shipped during 1999. None of the busiobfss Segment is seasonal. Raw
materials are generally available in adequate dfiemfrom a number of suppliers.

Flow Control Products & Services

The Corporation designs, manufactures, refurbighéstests highly engineered valves of various tgpeksizes, such as motor operated and
solenoid operated globe, gate, control and sa#digfivalves. These valves are used to controfltive of liquids and gases and to provide
safety relief in high pressure applications. lbadsipplies actuators and controllers for its owlwesas well as for valves manufactured by
others. The primary customers for the Corporatiealges are the U.S. Navy, which uses them in rargdeopulsion systems, and owners and
operators of commercial power utilities who usenifie new and existing nuclear and fossil fuel poplants. All of the new nuclear plants
are outside the U.S. and recent sales for suchspteve been to Korea and Taiwan. Sales are madespgnding directly to requests for
proposals from customers. The production of vafeeshe U.S. Navy and for new power plants is che@zed by long lead times from order
placement to delivery.

As a result of the acquisition of Enertech, LLOlily 1998 the Company also designs, manufactumslistributes additional flow control
products for sale into commercial nuclear powentdaboth domestically and internationally, andls$o distributes flow control products
made by other manufacturers. Enertech's produes iimclude: snubbers, advanced valves, valve actjdest and diagnostic equipment, as
well as related diagnost



services. In addition, the Company now provideimng, on-site services, staff augmentation andrexeging programs relating to nuclear
power plants. The Company also provides hydrawiegy units and components primarily for the autdweoand entertainment industries.
Strong competition in flow control products andvéegs is encountered primarily from a large numifedomestic and foreign sources in the
commercial market. Sales to commercial users aremaglished through independent marketing repreteasaand by direct sales. These
products and services are sold to customers whsaogigisticated and demanding. Performance, quéityynology, delivery and price are the
principal areas of competition.

The backlog of this Segment as of January 31, ¥@89$55.2 million as compared with $42.5 millioroddanuary 31, 1998. Of the January
31, 1999 amount, approximately 54% is expectecetstipped during 1999. Approximately 60% of thigi@ent's backlog is composed of
orders with the U.S. Navy through its prime contivacthe Plant Apparatus Division of WestinghousecEic Company, a division of CBS.
Inc. The loss of this customer would have a sigaift adverse impact on the business of this Segment

None of the business of this Segment is seasonal.rRaterials are generally available in adequagéafifies from a number of supplie

Other Information

Government Sales

In 1998, 1997 and 1996, direct sales to the Uriitiedes Government and sales for United States @maatt end use aggregated 17%, 20%
and 23% respectively, of total sales for all Segimddnited States Government sales, both direcsabdontract, are generally made under
one of the standard types of government contramtkiding fixed price and fixed pri-redeterminable




In accordance with normal practice in the casemifdd States Government business, contracts amiade subject to partial or complete
termination at any time, at the option of the costo In the event of a termination for conveniebgéhe Government, there generally are
provisions for recovery by the Corporation of it®waable incurred costs and a proportionate shatheoprofit or fee on the work done,
consistent with regulations of the United States€®oment. Subcontracts for Navy nuclear valves lispeovide that Curtiss-Wright must
absorb most of any overrun of "target" costs. lekient that there is a cost underrun, howeveGuktmer is to recoup a portion of the
underrun based upon a formula in which the cust@npertion increases as the underrun exceedsmtedtablished levels.

It is the policy of the Corporation to seek custoynarogress payments on certain of its contractseM such payments are obtained by the
Corporation under United States Government prinmgraots or subcontracts, they are secured by aniéavor of the Government on the
materials and work in process allocable or chargetabthe respective contracts. (See Notes 1.@d%ao the Consolidated Financial
Statements, on pages 25 and 28 of the Annual Reploith notes are incorporated by reference inFoisn 10-K Annual Report.) In the case
of most valve products for United States Governnegitt use, the subcontracts typically provide ferrétention by the customer of stipulated
percentages of the contract price, pending conguietf contract closeout conditions.

Research and Development

Research and development expenditures sponsori iijorporation amounted to $1,346,000 in 199&aspared with $1,877,000 in 1997
and $997,000 in 1996. During 1998, Curtiss-Wrigierg an additional $7,615,000 for customer-spomkdexelopment work as compared
with $12,403,000 in 1997 and $15,248,000 in 199& Torporation owns and is licensed under a nuoit




United States and foreign patents and patent ajalits which have been obtained or filed over #opesf years. Curtiss-Wright does not
consider that the successful conduct of its busireematerially dependent upon the protection gf@me or more of these patents, patent
applications or patent license agreements undeshihnow operates. Environmental Protection THeatfof compliance upon the
Corporation with present legal requirements coniogrprotection of the environment is describechia imaterial in Notes 1.H and 11 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements which appeagagas 25 and 32 of the Registrant's Annual Repairisincorporated by reference in t
Form 10-K Annual Report.

Employees
At the end of 1998, the Corporation had 2,050 eggss, 305 of which were represented by labor urémasare covered by collective

bargaining agreements.

Certain Financial Information

The industry segment information is described ertiaterial in Note 14 to the Consolidated Finanstatements, which appears on pages 34
to 36 of the Registrant's Annual Report, and isiporated by reference in this Form 10-K Annual &egt should be noted that in recent
years a significant percentage of the-tax earnings from operations of the Corporatios Ibeen derived from foreign operations of the
Precision Manufacturing and Services Segment. Tdragany does not regard the risks attendant to floesign operations to be materially
greater than those applicable to its businessarutls.




Item 2. Properties.

The principal physical properties of the Corponatémd its subsidiaries are described below:

Location Description(1)
Fairfield, 450,000
New Jersey sqg. ft. on 26.7 acres

Brampton, Ontario, Canada 87,000 sq. ft. on 8 a

East Farmingdale, New York 215,000 sq. ft. on 11

Shelby, North Carolina 121,000 sq. ft. on 29
Miami, Florida 65,000 sq. ft. on 2.6
Columbus, Ohio 75,000 sq. ft.on 9 a
Deeside, Wales United 81,000 sq. ft. on 2.2

Kingdom

Brea, California 30,550 sq. ft. on 1.7

Neuhausen am Rheinfall, 40,100 sq. ft. within

Switzerland business complex

(1) Sizes are approximate. Unless otherwise i

owned in fee, are not subject to any major
primarily by factory and/or warehouse buil

(2)  Approximately 50,000 square feet are lease

square feet are vacant and available for |
are being made available for lease.

(3) Title to approximately six acres of lan
thereon is held by the Suffolk County Indu
connection with the issuance of an industr

Owned/
Leased Principal Use
Owned(2) Actuation and
Products & Se
cres Owned Precision Man
Products & Se
acres Owned(3) Flow Control
Services segm
acres Owned Actuation and
Products & Se
acres Leased Actuation and
Products & Se
cres Owned Precision Man
Products & Se
acres Owned Precision Man
Products & Se
6 acres Leased Flow Control
Services segm
a Leased Actuation and

Products & Se

ndicated, all properties are
encumbrance and are occupied
dings.

d to other parties. 197,000
ease and 101,000 square feet

d and the building located
strial Development Agency in
ial revenue bond.

Control
rvices segment

ufacturing
rvices segment

Products &
ent

Control
rvices segment

Control
rvices segment

ufacturing
rvice segment

ufacturing
rvices segment

Products &
ent

Control
rvices segment



In addition to the properties listed above, thepooation leases an aggregate of approximately 805square feet of space at twenty-three
different locations in the United States and Endland owns buildings encompassing about 294,10éredaet in fourteen different locatio

in the United States, France, Germany, Belgiumemgland. None of these properties individually stenial to the Company's business. It
also leases a 25,000 square foot building in LatténNorth Carolina, for warehouse purposes; 8€ifi@re feet of space in Karup, Denmark,
for the Actuation and Control Products & Servicegi®@ent; 2,000 square feet of space in Suwaneeg(aeéor the Flow Control Products &
Services Segment; and 1,150 square feet of spa&iiagapore for the Actuation and Control ProductSe&vices Segment.

The Corporation also owns a multi-tenant industeatal facility located in Wood-Ridge, New Jersgsgrompassing 2,322,000 square feet on
144 acres. The former manufacturing facility hagragimately 2,260,000 square feet leased to othgigs with the remaining 62,000 square
feet vacant and available for lease. Additionallystiss-Wright leases approximately 14,000 squeet éf office space in Lyndhurst, New
Jersey, for its corporate office.

It is the Corporation's opinion that the buildiraysthe properties referred to in this Item gengrate well maintained, in good condition, and
are suitable and adequate for the uses preseritly beade of them.

The following undeveloped tracts, owned by the Begnt, are not attributable to a particular Segraed are being held for sale: Hardwick
Township, New Jersey, 23 acres; Fairfield, Neweler$2.3 acres subdivided from the Fairfield, Nens@dy facility's property; and Perico
Island, Florida, 112 acres, the bulk of which i®lbewater. The Corporation owns approximately &rea of land in Lyndhurst, New Jersey,
which is leased, on a long-term basis, to the owih#ne commercial building located on the landnit3. Legal Proceedings.

In the ordinary course of business, the Corporadiwhits subsidiaries are subject to various pendiaims, lawsuits and contingent liabiliti
The Corporation does not believe that dispositibany of these matters will have a material adveffect on the Corporation's consolidated
financial position or results of operations.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of SecurityHolders.
Not applicable

PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Stock

And Related Stockholder Matters.

See the information contained in the Registrantisufal Report on the inside back cover under théarap"Common Stock Price Range,"
"Dividends," and "Stock Exchange Listing" whichanfation is incorporated herein by reference. Tmr@ximate number of record holders
of the Common Stock, $1.00 par value, of Registwaad 3,973 as of March 24, 1999.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data.
See the information contained in the Registrantisufal Report on page 16 under the caption "Coret@litiSelected Financial Data," which
information is incorporated herein by referer




Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations.

See the information contained in the Registrantisufal Report at pages 17 through 20, under théarafilanagement's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggems," which information is incorporated herejnrbference. The information included
therein under the subheading "Year 2000" shalldmesidered "Year 2000 Readiness Disclosure” for gagp of the Year 2000 Information
and Readiness Disclosure Act.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk.

The Corporation is exposed to certain market nisknfchanges in interest rates and foreign curremcihange rates as a result of its global
operating and financing activities. However, thefgoation seeks to minimize the risks from thederast rate and foreign currency exche
rate fluctuations through its normal operating findncing activities and, when deemed appropriit®ugh the use of derivative financial
instruments. The Corporation did not use suchunsénts for trading or other speculative purposelsciah not use leverage derivative
financial instruments during the year ended DecerBlhe1998. Information regarding the Corporati@tsounting policy on financial
instruments is contained in Note 1.G to the Condstdéid Financial Statements on page 26 of the AriRepbrt, which is incorporated by
reference in this Form 10-K Annual Report.

The Corporation's market risk for a change in edérates relates primarily to the debt obligatigkgproximately 46% of the Corporation's
debt at December 31, 1998 and 100% of the DeceBIhe997 debt is comprised of Industrial Revenuadfinancing. As described in Note
8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, whidhdorporated by reference in this Form 10-K ArdrRegport, the Corporation borrowed
variable rate debt under its short-term credit agrent and revolving credit agreement aggregatingd®]000 Swiss Francs arising out of the
December 31, 1998 purchase of SIG Antriebstech@kté mitigate its currency exposure.

Financial instruments expose the Corporation tovtemparty credit risk for nonperformance and tokearisk for changes in interest and
currency rates. The Corporation manages exposureutaterparty credit risk through specific minimanedit standards, diversification of
counterparties and procedures to monitor concémtiabf credit risk. The Corporation monitors thgpact of market risk on the fair value i
cash flows of its investments by considering reabbnpossible changes in interest rates and byitigithe amount of potential interest and
currency rate exposures to amounts that are nariabio the Corporation's consolidated resultspdrations and cash flows.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
The following Consolidated Financial Statementthef Registrant and its subsidiaries, and supplesngfinancial information, are included
in the Registrant's Annual Report, which informatis incorporated herein by reference.

Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the yeadled December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996, page 22.

Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 199814997, page 23.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeraded December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996, page 24.
Consolidated Statements of Stockholder's Equitytferyears ended December 31, 1998, 1997 and p886,25.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, pagé¢sraugh 37, inclusive, and Quarterly Results péfations on page 3
Report of Independent Accountants for the threesyeaded December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996, page 21.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Account&On Accounting and Financial Disclosure
Not applicable

PART 1lI

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers

Of the Registrant

Information required in connection with directorslaexecutive officers is set forth below, as wsluader the caption "Election of Directors,"
in the Registrant's Proxy Statement with respettiécCorporation's 1999 Annual Meeting of Stockkeaddthe "Proxy Statement"), which
information is incorporated herein by reference.

Executive Officers of the Registrant.

The following table sets forth the names, ages,mtipal occupations and employment of all exeeubdfficers of Registrant. The period of
service is for at least the past five years antt secupations and employment are with Curtiss-Wri@rporation, except as otherwise
indicated:

Name Principal Occupat ion Age

And Employment
David Lasky Chairman (since M ay 1995) and President 66
Gerald Nachman Executive Vice Pr esident; President of Metal Improvement 69

Company, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary



Vice President; P
Inc., a wholly-ow
Vice President fo
Flight Systems, |
Senior Vice Presi
of Curtiss Wright
previously Vice P
Curtiss-Wright Fl
wholly-owned subs

George J. Yohrling

Vice President (s
1995) of Curtiss-
wholly-owned subs
Manager of CWFC.

Martin A. Benante

Robert A. Bosi Vice President-Fi

Dana M. Taylor, Jr.* Secretary, Genera

Gary J. Benschip Treasurer
Kenneth P. Slezak Controller

*Effective March 12, 1999, Mr. Taylor retired as S

of the Corporation. Brian D. O'Neill, age 49,
Corporation asof September 14, 1998 assumed the
Counsel of the Corporation effective March 15, 1
attorney with the Company since 1980, holding the p
Counsel from November 1997 to March 1999 and Associ
1992 to November 1997.

resident, Curtiss-Wright Flight Systems, 58
ned subsidiary, since April 1998; Executive

r Aerospace Operations of Curtiss Wright

nc. from April 1997 to April 1998,

dent from July 1996 to April 1997

Flight Systems, Inc.;

resident and General Manager of

ight Systems/Shelby, Inc., then a

idiary.

ince April 1996); President (since March 46
Wright Flow Control Corporation ("CWFC") a
idiary; previously Vice President/General

nance 43
| Counsel 66
51
a7
ecretary and General Counsel
Assistant Secretary of the
positions of Acting General
999. Mr. O'Neill has been an

ositions of Assistant General
ate General Counsel from July



The executive officers of the Registrant are etketenually by the Board of Directors at its orgatian meeting in April and hold office until
the organization meeting in the next subsequentamee until their respective successors are chasdrgualified.

There are no family relationships among these efficor between any of them and any director ofi€sWright Corporation, nor any
arrangements or understandings between any offftgiany other person pursuant to which the offices elected.

Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Commén

Dana M. Taylor, Jr., Secretary and General Counfsttle Registrant during the 1998 fiscal year, bl timely file a Form 4 report to report
the grant of options in November 1998, pursuariéCorporation's 1995 Long-Term Incentive Plarpucchase 2,935 shares of the
Corporation's common stock.

Item 11. Executive Compensation
Information required by this Item is included untle captions "Executive Compensation” and in Bignimary Compensation Table" in the
Registrant's Proxy Statement, which informatiom@rporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial

Owners and Management.

See the following portions of the Registrant's Br6katement, all of which information is incorpaatherein by reference: (i) the material
under the caption "Security Ownership and Transastivith Certain Beneficial Owners" and (ii) theteral included under the caption
"Election of Directors.'




Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transaans.
Information required by this Item is included untle captions "Executive Compensation” and "Seg@ivnership and Transactions with
Certain Beneficial Owners" in the Registrant's Rr8tatement, which information is incorporated heby reference.

PART IV

Iltem 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement
Schedules and Reports on Form-§&.
(a)(2) Financial Statements:

The following Consolidated Financial Statement&edistrant and supplementary financial informatiaoluded in Registrant's Annual
Report, are incorporated herein by reference im Be

(i) Consolidated Statements of Earnings for theyeaded December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996
(i) Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 348 4&d 1997
(iii) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows forythars ended December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996
(iv) Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Bfoit the years ended December 31, 1998, 1997 @86 1
(v) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(vi) Report of Independent Accountants for the gearded December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996
(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules:
The items listed below are presented herein ongagend 25 of this Form 10-K.
Report of Independent Accountants on Financial Stament Schedule

Schedule II- Valuation and Qualifying Accounts



Schedules other than those listed above have bmited since they are not required, are not appléar because the required informatio
included in the financial statements or notes tioere

(a)(3) Exhibits:

(3)(i) Restated Certificate of Incorporation as aded May 8, 1987 (incorporated by reference to l&kBi(a) to Registrant's Form 10-Q
Report for the quarter ended June 30, 1987). Rebktaértificate of Incorporation as amended throfighl 18, 1997 to Registrant's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Decembei827).

(3)(ii) By-Laws as amended through January 30, 1@%brporated by reference to Exhibit (3)(ii) tedistrant's Annual Report on Form KO-
for the year ended December 31, 1996).

(4)(i) Agreement to furnish to the Commission upequest,

a copy of any long term debt instrument where the
amount of the securities authorized ther eunder does
not exceed 10% of the total assets of the Registrant
and its subsidiaries on a consolida ted basis
(incorporated by reference to Exhi bit 4 to
Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K f or the year

ended December 31, 1985).

(4)(i)) Revolving Credit Agreement dated Octob er 29,1991
between Registrant, the Lenders parties t hereto from
time to time, the Issuing Banks referred to therein
and Mellon Bank, N.A. Article | Definition s, Section
1.01 Certain Definitions; Article VI | Negative
Covenants, Section 7.07, Limitation on Di vidends and
Stock Acquisitions (incorporated by re ference to
Exhibit 10(b), to Registrant's Form 10-Q Report for
the quarter ended September 30, 1991). Am endment No.
1 dated January 7,1992 and Amendment No. 2 dated
October 1, 1992 to said Agreement (incor porated by
reference to Exhibit 4(ii) to Registran t's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended De cember 31,
1993). Third Amendment to Credit Agreeme nt dated as
of October 29, 1994 (incorporated by re ference to

Exhibit (4)(ii) to Registrant's Annual Report onrFo10-K for the year ended December 31, 1994). thodimendment to Credit Agreement
dated as of October 29, 1996 (incorporated by eefsr to Exhibit (4)(ii) to Registrant's Annual Repan Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1996). Fifth Amendment to Credit Agreet dated as of October 29, 1997 (incorporatectfarence to Exhibit 4(ii) to
Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for therysraded December 31, 1997). Sixth Amendment toiCAepleement dated as of October
29, 1998, filed herewith. Seventh Amendment to @rdgreement dated as of December 28, 1998, fik@with. Eighth Amendment to
Credit Agreement and Waiver dated as of Januarg 289, filed herewith



(4)(iii) Short-Term Credit Agreement dated as ot@ber 29,

1994 among Curtiss-Wright Corporation, as Borrowe r,

the Lender Parties and Mellon Bank, N.A., as Age nt
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit (4)(iii) to
Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the ye ar
ended December 31, 1994). First Amendment to Sho rt

Term Credit Agreement dated as of October 26, 19 96
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit (4)(iii) to
Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the ye ar

ended December 31, 1996). Second Amendment to-$bart Credit Agreement dated as of October 24, XB&brporated by reference to
Exhibit 4(iii) to Registrant's Annual Report on Fof0-K for the year ended December 31, 1997). TAireendment to Short Term Credit
Agreement dated as of October 23, 1998, filed hi#gheWwourth Amendment to Short Term Credit Agreehudsated as of December 28, 1998,
filed herewith.

(10) Material Contracts:

(i) Modified Incentive Compensation Plan, as amendevember 9, 1989 (incorporated by reference tailtitx10(a) to Registrant's Form 10-
Q Report for the quarter ended September 30, 1089).

(i) Curtiss-Wright Corporation 1995 Long-Term Imti&ve Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhiblt #. Registrant's Form &Registratior
Statement No. 95602114 filed December 15, 1995).*

(i) Standard Severance Agreement with Officer&aftiss-Wright (incorporated by reference to Exhild(iv) to Registrant's Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1991).

(iv) Retirement Benefits Restoration Plan as amdfgeil 15, 1997 (incorporated by reference to Bihi0 to Registrant's Form 10-Q
Report for the quarter ended June 30, 1997).*

(v) Curtiss-Wright Corporation Retirement Plan aseaded through August 1, 1997; Fourth AmendmettteéaCurtiss-Wright Corporation
Retirement Plan dated October 20, 1997; Fifth Amesrt to the Curtiss-Wright Corporation RetiremelainRlated January 1, 1998
(incorporated by reference to Registrant's Annwegdd®t on Form 10-K for the year ended Decembed8%7); Amendments to Curtiss-
Wright Retirement Plan dated April 1, 1998, Api@l, 2998, April 30, 1998 and June 30, 1998 (incarpemt by reference to Exhibit a(ii) to
Registrant's Quarterly Report for the quarter entlete 30, 1998).



(vi) Curtiss-Wright Corporation Savings and InvestmPlan dated March 1, 1995 (incorporated by esiee to Exhibit (10)(vii) to
Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for theryeraded December 31, 1994).*

(vii) Curtiss-Wright Corporation 1996 Stock Plam fdon-Employee Directors (incorporated by referetacExhibit 4.1 to Registrant's Form
S-8 Registration Statement No. 96583181, filed Jihel 996).*

(vii) Curtiss-Wright Corporation Executive Defedr€ompensation Plan effective November 18, 199%0(jporated by reference to Exhibit
(10)(viii) to Registrant's Annual Report on FormK@or the year ended December 31, 1997).*

(ix) Standard Severance Protection Agreement dhtad 19, 1998 between the Registrant and OffidaisedRegistrant (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit A(i) to Registrant's QuarteRligport on Form 10-Q for the period ended Jund 898).*

(x) Trust Agreement dated January 20, 1998 by atden Curtiss-Wright Corporation and PNC Bank jotetl Association (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10(a) to Registrant's QardytReport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended M&t, 1998).*

(13) Annual Report to Stockholders for the yeareghBecember 31, 1998
(21) Subsidiaries of the Registrant
(23) Consents of Experts and Counsel - see Consémiependent Accountants

(27) Financial Data Schedule

*Management contract or compensatory plan or agarent
(b) Reports on Form 8-K

No report on Form-K was filed during the three months ended DecerBhei998.



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Resyigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION
(Registrant)

By: [/s/ David Lasky

Davi d Lasky
Chai rman and Presi dent

Date: March 29, 1999

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of
the Registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

Date: March 29, 1999 By: /s/ Robert A. Bosi

Robert A. Bosi
Vi ce President - Finance

Date: March 29, 1999 By: [/s/ Kenneth P. Slezak

Kenneth P. Slezak
Controller

Date: March 29, 1999 By: [/s/ Thonmas R Berner

Thormas R. Berner
Di rector

Date: March 29, 1999 By: [/s/ James B. Busey

Janes B. Busey |V
Di rector

Date: March 29, 1999 By: /s/ David Lasky

Davi d Lasky
Di rector

Date: March 29, 1999 By: /s/ WlliamB. Mtchell

WIlliamB. Mtchell
Di rector



Date: March 29, 1999 By: [/s/ John R Mers

John R Mers

Di rect or
Date: March 29, 1999 By: [/s/ WlliamW Sihler
Wiliamw Sihier

Di rect or
Date: March 29, 1999 By: [/s/ J. MlLain Stewart

J. McLain Stewart
Di rector



PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP [LOGO]

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
400 Campus Drive
P.O. Box 988
Florham Park, NJ 07932
Telephone (973) 236 4000
Facsimile (973) 236 5000

REPORT ON INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS ON
FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

Our audits of the consolidated financial statemesfisrred to in our report dated February 1, 199®aring on page 21 of the Curtiss-Wright
Corporation 1998 Annual Report (which report andsmidated financial statements are incorporaterefgrence in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K) also included an audit of the Finan&8tdtement Schedule listed in Item 14(a)(2) of Buam 10-K. In our opinion, this Financial
Statement Schedule presents fairly, in all mategigpects, the information set forth therein wheadrin conjunction with the related
consolidated financial statements.

/ s/ Pricewat erhouseCoopers LLP
PRI CEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

Fl or ham Par k, New Jersey
February 1, 1999



for the years ended December 31, 1998, 1997 angl 199
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Reserves for doubtful
accounts and notes:

Year-ended December 31, 1998
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Notes:

(A) Acquired from the Purchase of Enertech busin@®sAcquired from the purchase of Accessory Smsibusiness.
(C) Expiration of available capital loss carry famds. (D) Utilization of tax benefits under cag-loss carryforward

CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
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(20)(iv)** Curtiss-Wright Corporation Retirement
Plan as amended April 15, 1997 (incorpo
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(20)(vii)**Curtiss-Wright Corporation Executive Derred Compensation * Plan effective November B®71(incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to Registrant's Form S-8 Registratioat@&ment No. 96583181, filed June 19, 1996).

(10)(ix)** Standard Severance Protection Agreentated June 19, 1998 * between the Registrant afide@f of the Registrant (incorpora
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(13) Annual Report to Stockholders for the yeareghBecember 31, 1998 (only those portions exprésstrporated herein by reference in
this document are deemed "filed.")

(21) Subsidiaries of the Registrant
(23) Consents of Experts and Counsel - see Con$émiependent Accountants

(27) Financial Data Schedule

* Incorporated by reference as noted.

** Management contract or compensatory plan orrayeanent



Exhibit 4(ii)
SIXTH AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT

THIS SIXTH AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT, dated as October 29, 1998 (this "Amendment"), by and kestw CURTISS-
WRIGHT CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation (the ti®aver"), the lenders parties hereto from timeitwet (the "Lenders", as defined
further below), the Issuing Banks referred to he(#ie "Issuing Banks") and MELLON BANK, N.A., ati@al banking association, as ag
for the Lenders and the Issuing Banks hereundesu@h capacity, together with its successors ih sapacity, the "Agent");

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Borrower, the Lenders, the Issuingik®amd the Agent are parties to a Credit Agreentied as of October 29, 1991 (as
amended, the "Credit Agreement"), pursuant to wthehLenders have made Loans to the Borrower ardigdssuing Banks have issued
Letters of Credit on behalf of the Borrower andStsbsidiaries; and

WHEREAS, the Borrower has requested the Lendeestend the Revolving Credit Maturity Date to OctoB®8, 2001; and

WHEREAS, the Lenders are willing to so extend teedtving Credit Maturity Date and to amend the @rédreement upon the terms and
conditions hereinafter set forth; and

WHEREAS, capitalized terms used herein and notratise defined shall have the meanings assigneuktm in the Credit Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises @fithe mutual covenants herein contained, arehiihg to be legally bound here
the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Extension of Revolving Credit Maturity Date. Tdefinition of the term "Revolving Credit Maturifyate" in Section 1.01 of the Credit
Agreement is hereby amended to substitute the"@atmber 29, 2001" for the date "October 29, 2000".

2. Conditions Precedent. The effectiveness ofAni@ndment is subject to the accuracy as of the luteof of the representations and
warranties herein contained, to the performancthbyBorrower of its obligations to be performedéwarder on or before the date hereof and
to the satisfaction, on or before October 29, 1888 date of such satisfaction being referred teiheas the "Effective Date"), of the
following further conditions precedent:

(a) Amendment. Each Lender shall have receiveduategpart of this Amendment, duly executed by toer@®wer.

(b) Representations and Warranties; Events of Dtedad Potential Defaults. The representationsvaaigtanties contained in Section 3 hereof
shall be true and correct on and as of the EffedDate with the same effect as though made onswoflsuch date. On the Effective Date, no
Event of Default and no Potential Default shall@aecurred and be continuing or shall exist orlssadur or exist after giving effect to this
Amendment and the transactions contemplated heBybgxecution of this Amendment, the Borrower d¢ixsito the Lenders that as of the
Effective Date (a) the representations and wararget forth in Section 3 hereof are true and come and as of such date and (b) on such
date no Event of Default or Potential Default hesusred and is continuing or exists or will occureaist after giving effect to this
Amendment and the transactions contemplated hereby.

2. Representations and Warranties. The Borrowetyarepresents and warrants to the Agent and thddre that the representations and
warranties set forth in the Credit Agreement, asrated by this Amendment, are true and correct draarof the date hereof as if made on
and as of the date hereof, and that no Event culdedr Potential Default has occurred and is cwritig or exists on and as of the date hel
provided, however, that, for purposes of the fonegyoall references in the Credit Agreement tos'thgreement” shall be deemed to be
references to this Amendment and the Credit Agre¢me amended by this Amendment. In addition, ¢fierence in Section 4.05 of the
Credit Agreement to the financial statements ofBberower and its consolidated Subsidiaries aseddbnber 31, 1989 and December 31,
1990 shall be deemed to be a reference to thedigalastatements of the Borrower and its consolidi&absidiaries as of December 31, 1996
and December 31, 1997, respectively, the refereansech Section to the parallel interim consoliddiaancial statements for and as of the
end of the six months ended June 30, 1991 shalebmed to be a reference to the parallel interinsaldated financial statements for and as
of the end of the second fiscal quarter of thealigear beginning January 1, 1998, and the refeeimcthe last sentence of Section 4.05 o
Credit Agreement to June 30, 1991 and Decembet @) shall be deemed to be references to Juned98,dnd December 31, 1997,
respectively; and the reference in Section 4.1fhefCredit Agreement to December 31, 1990 shalldened to be a reference to December
31, 1997.

4. Effectiveness of Amendment. This Amendment dimkffective from and after the Effective Date migatisfaction of the conditions
precedent referred to herein.

5. Effect of Amendment. The Credit Agreement, asaaed by this Amendment, is in all respects ratjfapproved and confirmed and shall,
as so amended, remain in full force and ef



6. Governing Law. This Amendment shall be deemdakta contract under the laws of the State of Newk¥and for all purposes shall be
governed by and construed and enforced in accoedaith the laws of said State.

7. Counterparts. This Amendment may be executagiymumber of counterparts and by the differentiggihereto on separate counterparts,
each of which, when so executed, shall be deemexiginal, but all such counterparts shall congtitout one and the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exatthis Amendment as of the date first above written
CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION

By /sl Gary Benschip

Title Treasurer

MELLON BANK, N.A,, individually and as Agent

By /'s/ David N. Smith

Title Vi ce President

PNC BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

By /'s/ Judy B. Land

Title Vi ce President

THE BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA

By /sl Brian Allen

Title Seni or Rel ati onshi p Manager



SEVENTH AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT

THIS SEVENTH AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT, dated &@f December 28, 1998 (this "Amendment"), by aetivizen
CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION, a Delaware corporatfthre "Borrower"), the lenders parties hereto frammetto time (the "Lenders",
as defined further below), the Issuing Banks ref@io herein (the "Issuing Banks") and MELLON BANKA., a national banking
association, as agent for the Lenders and thenig®8anks hereunder (in such capacity, together igitbuccessors in such capacity, the
"Agent").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Borrower, the Lenders, the IssuingiBaand the Agent are parties to a Credit Agreentsied as of October 29, 1991 (as
amended, the "Credit Agreement"), pursuant to wthehLenders have made Loans to the Borrower ardigdssuing Banks have issued
Letters of Credit on behalf of the Borrower andStssidiaries; and

WHEREAS, the Borrower has requested the Lendeastend certain provisions of the Credit Agreemedttaradd certain terms thereto; ¢
WHEREAS, the Lenders are willing to amend the GrAdreement upon the terms and conditions herainafit forth; and
WHEREAS, capitalized terms used herein and notrafise defined shall have the meanings assignétktm in the Credit Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises ainthe mutual covenants herein contained, arahdihg to be legally bound here
the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Amendments to Credit Agreement. The Credit Agrest is hereby amended as follows:
1.1 Section 1.01 is hereby amended as follows:
(i) The following definitions shall be added ther@t the proper alphabetical order:

"As-Offered" shall have the meaning set forth in
Section 2.04(a) hereof.

"Dollar Equivalent Amount" of any Revolving Crediban shall mean (a) with respect to a Revolvingd@ieoan denominated in an Other
Currency, an amount equal to the amount of Dotlaais the amount of such Other Currency (equal égotimcipal amount of such Revolving
Credit Loan) could purchase at 12:00 p.m., noottsiRirgh time, on the date of determination, bag®sh the quoted spot rates of the Agent,
at which its applicable branch or office offersetahange Dollars for such currency in the foreigchange market and (b) with respect to a
Revolving Credit Loan denominated in US Curreneyamount in Dollars equal to the principal amourguch Revolving Credit Loan.

"Other Currency"” shall mean British Pounds, SwismnEs, Belgium Francs, French Francs, Italian [Garman Marks, Eurodollars,
Singapore Dollars, Dutch Guilders, Denmark Krond any freely available currency that is freely sf@mable and freely convertible into
Dollars and requested by the Borrower and acceptabdll of the Lenders and to the Agent.

"Subsidiary Borrower" shall mean Curtiss-Wrightdgfli Systems, Inc., a Delaware corporation; Metadrbmement Company, Inc., a
Delaware corporation; Curtiss-Wright Flow Contrar@oration, a New York corporation; Curtiggright Flow Control Service Corporation
Delaware corporation; Curtiss-Wright Foreign S&esp., a Barbados corporation; Curtiss-Wright Rli§histems Europe A/S, a Danish
corporation. Subsidiary Borrower shall also incl{eCurtiss-Wright Antriebstechnik GmbH, upon ftsmation as a wholly owned
subsidiary of Curtiss-Wright Corporation, and 8i)G Antriebstechnik Ag, upon the consummation ef plarchased of its issued and
outstanding capital stock by Curtiss-Wright Corpimraor a wholly owned subsidiary of Curtiss-Wrigborporation.

"US Currency" shall mean Dollars.

"Year 2000 Problem" shall mean any significant tiskt computer hardware, software or equipmentatoimy embedded microchips of any
Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries which is esigno its business or operations will not, in t#ase of dates or time periods occurring after
December 31, 1999, function at least as effectiaaly reliably as in the case of times or time mkyioccurring before January 1, 2000,
including the making of accurate leap year calooiest

(i) The following definitions set forth in Sectidh01 shall be amended as follows:

"Loan Documents" shall be amended by adding "Gharanty" in the first line thereof after "the N&tend before "the Transfer
Supplements".

1.2 Article Il is deleted in its entirety and Attegcll shall be amended and restated, as attactretbhes Annex A



1.3 A new Section 4.19 is hereby added:

"4.19. Year 2000 Compliance. The Borrower has regtkits operations and those of its Subsidiariéb wiview to assessing whether its
businesses, or the businesses of any of its Sabigislj will be vulnerable to a Year 2000 Problemvitrbe vulnerable to the effects of a Year
2000 Problem suffered by any of the Borrower'snyr @f its Subsidiaries' major commercial countertipa. The Borrower represents and
warrants that it has a reasonable basis to beli@teno Year 2000 Problem will cause a Material &de Effect.”

1.4 A new Section 6.17 is hereby added:

"6.17. Year 2000 Compliance. The Borrower shathebest of its ability take all actions necessarg commit adequate resources to assure
that its computer-based and other systems (ane thfcall Subsidiaries) are able to effectively meg data, including dates before, on and
after January 1, 2000, to avoid experiencing angr\2©00 Problem that could reasonably be expeoteduse a Material Adverse Effect. The
Borrower will provide the Agent with a quarterlyrgicate within 60 days of the end of each quad@mmencing with such quarter ending at
March 31, 1999 containing assurances and subsiansaeasonably acceptable to the Required Leratets the capability of the Borrower
and its Subsidiaries to conduct its and their lessis and operations before, on and after Janua@pQ without experiencing a Year 2000
Problem causing a Material Adverse Effect."

1.5 A new Section 8.03 is hereby added:

"8.03. Judgment Currency. If any Lender or the Agdnains a judgment against the Borrower in are©@urrency, the obligations of the
Borrower in respect of any sum adjudged to be dwath Lender or the Agent hereunder or under thwdRing Credit Notes (the "Judgment
Amount") shall be discharged only to the extent,tbha the Business Day following receipt by sucinder or the Agent of the Judgment
Amount in such Other Currency, such Lender or Agerdccordance with normal banking procedures;imses Dollars with the Judgment
Amount in such Other Currency. If the amount ofIBxa so purchased is less than the amount of Bdlet could have been purchased with
the Judgment Amount on the date or dates the Juatghmeount was originally due and owing to the Lersdar the Agent hereunder or under
the Revolving Credit Notes (the "Original Due Datéxcluding the portion of the Judgment Amountaethinas accrued as a result of the
failure of the Borrower to pay the sum originallyedhereunder or under the Revolving Credit Notesnwhwas originally due hereunder or
under the Revolving Credit Notes) (the "Loss"), Bwrower agrees, to indemnify such Lender or tigem, as the case may be, against the
Loss, and if the amount of Dollars so purchase@eds the amount of Dollars that could have beechaised with the Judgment Amount on
the Original Due Date, such Lender or the Ageneagito remit such excess to the Borrower."

2. Conditions Precedent. The effectiveness ofAni@ndment is subject to the accuracy as of the luateof of the representations and
warranties herein contained, to the performancehbyBorrower of its obligations to be performedewrder on or before the date hereof and
to the satisfaction, on or before December 28, {#88date of such satisfaction being referredet@im as the "Effective Date"), of the
following further conditions precedent:

(a) Amendment. Each Lender shall have receiveduategpart of this Amendment, duly executed by toer@wer.

(b) Representations and Warranties; Events of Dtedad Potential Defaults. The representationswaaigtanties contained in Section 3 hereof
shall be true and correct on and as of the Effediate with the same effect as though made on aflsuch date. On the Effective Date, no
Event of Default and no Potential Default shalldaecurred and be continuing or shall exist andl skaur or exist after giving effect to this
Amendment and the transactions contemplated he@yhe Effective Date, there shall have been detid to the Agent a certificate, dated
the Effective Date and signed on behalf of the Boar by the President, Treasurer or chief finanaffiter of the Borrower, that (a) the
representations and warranties set forth in Se&ibareof are true and correct on and as of sutehadtal (b) on such date no Event of Default
or Potential Default has occurred and is continaingxists or will occur or exist after giving efte¢o this Amendment and the transactions
contemplated hereby.

(c) Proceedings and Incumbency. On the Effectivie[Xhere shall have been delivered to the Agettit an original counterpart for each
Lender a certificate, dated the Effective Date sigded on behalf of the Borrower by the SecretargroAssistant Secretary of the Borrower,
certifying as to (i) true copies of the articlesrdorporation and bylaws of the Borrower as ireeffon such date (or a certificate of the
Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Borrowehéeoeffect that there have been no changes inatickes of incorporation or bylaws from
the forms thereof previously delivered to the Agamd the Lenders or, if there have been any suahggs, attaching copies thereof), (ii) true
copies of all corporate action taken by the Bornoketative to this Amendment and (iii) the namesetsignatures and incumbency of the
officer or officers of the Borrower authorized teeeute and deliver this Amendment and the otheughents and instrument to be executed
and delivered under the Credit Agreement, as anteheeeby. The Agent shall be entitled to conclugively on such certificate unless and
until a later certificate revising the prior ceiddte has been furnished to the Agent.

(d) Opinions of Counsel. On the Effective Datey¢hghall have been delivered to the Agent writteimions, dated the Effective Date, of the
General Counsel to the Borrower in form and sultetaatisfactory to the Agent and as to such matieident to the transactions
contemplated hereby as the Agent may reasonablestq

(e) Details, Proceedings and Documents. All leg#hils and proceedings in connection with the tatisns contemplated by this
Amendment shall be satisfactory to the Lenders, andhe Effective Date, the Agent shall have neegiall such counterpart originals or
certified or other copies of such documents andg®dings in connection with such transactionspimfand substance satisfactory to the
Agent and the Lenders, as the Agent or any Lendgrneasonably reque:



3. Representations and Warranties. The Borrowetyarepresents and warrants to the Agent and thddre that the representations and
warranties set forth in the Credit Agreement, asratted by this Amendment, are true and correct draarof the date hereof as if made on
and as of the date hereof, and that no Event culdedr Potential Default has occurred and is cwritig or exists on and as of the date hel
provided, however, that, for purposes of the fonegioall references in the Credit Agreement tos'thgreement” shall be deemed to be
references to this Amendment and the Credit Agre¢me amended by this Amendment.

4. Effectiveness of Amendment. This Amendment dbakffective from and after the Effective Date mgatisfaction of the conditions
precedent referred to herein.

5. Effect of Amendment. The Credit Agreement, asmaaed by this Amendment, is in all respects ratjfapproved and confirmed and shall,
as so amended, remain in full force and effect.

6. Governing Law. This Amendment shall be deemdukta contract under the laws of the State of Newkand for all purposes shall be
governed by, construed and enforced in accordaitbele laws of the State of New York, without redjéo principles of conflicts of law.

7. Counterparts. This Amendment may be executasiymumber of counterparts and by the differentiggmihereto on separate counterparts,
each of which, when so executed, shall be deemexiiginal, but all such counterparts shall congtitout one and the same instrum



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exettliss Amendment as of the date first above written

CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION
By /sl Gary Benschip

Title Tr easurer

MELLON BANK, N.A., individually and as Agent

By /'s/ David N. Smith

Title Vi ce President

PNC BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

By /'s/ Judy B. Land

Title Vi ce President
THE BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA

By /sl Brian Allen

Title Seni or Rel ati onshi p Manager



CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION
Subsidiary Note

$ Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania-------- R

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned, [INSERT PROPERME OF SUBSIDIARY] (the "Borrower"), promises fimy to the order of
[INSERT PROPER NAME OF THE LENDER] (the "Lender') or before the Revolving Credit Maturity Date (esined in the Agreement
referred to below), and at such earlier dates gshaaequired by such Agreement, the lesser dh@)principal sum of ($) or (ii) the
aggregate

unpaid principal amount of all Revolving Credit Insamade by the Lender to the Borrower from timgnh@ pursuant to the Agreement. The
Borrower further promises to pay to the order @fitlender interest on the unpaid principal amoungdigfrom time to time outstanding at the
rate or rates per annum determined pursuant tdgheement, payable on the dates set forth in thedgent.

This Note is one of the "Subsidiary Notes" as mef@to in, and is entitled to the benefits of, @redit Agreement, dated as of October 29,
1991, as amended, by and among the Borrower, thedre parties thereto from time to time, the Isguanks from time to time thereunder,
and Mellon Bank, N.A., as Agent (as the same magrbended, modified or supplemented from time tefithe "Agreement”), which amo
other things provides for the acceleration of tregurity hereof upon the occurrence of certain evand for prepayments in certain
circumstances and upon certain terms and condititerens defined in the Agreement have the same imgsaherein.

The Borrower hereby expressly waives presentmemaehd, notice, protest and all other demands aticksdn connection with the delivel
acceptance, performance, default or enforcemetiti®Note and the Agreement, and an action for antsodue hereunder or thereunder shall
immediately accrue.

This Note shall be governed by, construed and eatbin accordance with the laws of the State of Nevk, without regard to principles of
conflicts of law.

[INSERT PROPER NAME OF THE SUBSIDIARY]
By:

Name:
Title:



ANNEX A

ARTICLE Il
THE CREDITS

2.01. Revolving Credit Loans.

(a) Revolving Credit Commitments. Subject to theneand conditions and relying upon the represiemsiand warranties herein set forth,
each Lender, severally and not jointly, agreesHagreement being herein called such Lender's "RiegoCredit Commitment”) to make
loans in either US Currency or in an Other Curreftiog "Revolving Credit Loans") to the Borroweraaty time or from time to time on or
after the date hereof and to but not includingRleeolving Credit Maturity Date.

Subject to the terms and conditions herein, eacliéeagrees to make Loans to any Subsidiary Borratvany time or from time to time on
or after the date hereof and to but not includheyRevolving Credit Maturity Date. The Loans sh@lmade to such Subsidiary Borrower
upon the completion of the following conditiong: gubmit Standard Notice under Section 2.03 hereof,

(i) Curtiss-Wright Corporation executes and dealéve the Agent a Guaranty and Suretyship Agreemnefaivor of Lenders in the form as
attached hereto as Exhibit B (the "Guaranty"), @i}dthe obligation of such Subsidiary Borrowerrepay the unpaid principal amount of the
Revolving Credit Loans made to it by each Lenda @npay interest thereon shall be evidenced ihlpapromissory notes from such
Subsidiary Borrower to each Lender in substantiddeyform attached hereto as Exhibit C (the "SubsjdBorrower Notes"). In the event that
a Subsidiary Borrower becomes a Borrower underSbigtion 2.01(a), all references to "Borrower" inides I, II, 1V, VI, VII, VIl and X

and Section 5.02 shall be deemed to include subki&ary Borrower.

A Lender shall have no obligation to make any Rewgl Credit Loan to the extent that the aggregaitecjpal amount of such Lender's Pro
Rata share of the total Revolving Credit Extensiofit€redit at any time outstanding would exceechduender's Revolving Credit Committ
Amount at such time. Each Lender's "Revolving Gr€dimmitted Amount” at any time shall be equalh® amount set forth as its "Initial
Revolving Credit Committed Amount" below its namethe signature pages hereof, as either such amuayhave been reduced under
Section 2.02 hereof at such time, and subjecttuster to another Lender as provided in Sectioh4l Bereof.

(b) Nature of Credit. Within the limits of time amadhount set forth in this Section 2.01, and sulietihe provisions of this Agreement, the
Borrower may borrow, repay and reborrow Revolvirrgdit Loans hereunder.

(c) Revolving Credit Notes. The obligation of therBwer to repay the unpaid principal amount of Revolving Credit Loans made to it by
each Lender and to pay interest thereon shall inkeeeed in part by (i) promissory notes of the Barer, one to each Lender, dated the
Closing Date (the "Borrower Notes") in substangidifie form attached hereto as Exhibit A, with thenks appropriately filled, payable to the
order of such Lender in a face amount equal to tecider's Initial Revolving Credit Committed Amouartd

(i) the Subsidiary Notes (the Borrower Notes dmel Subsidiary Notes are collectively the "RevolvZigdit Notes").

(d) Maturity. To the extent not due and payabldiearthe Revolving Credit Loans shall be due aaggble on the Revolving Credit Maturity
Date.

(e) Extension of Revolving Credit Maturity Date.€TRevolving Credit Maturity Date may be extendedsiaccessive one year periods at the
request of the Borrower with the express consertioh Lender as provided below. Not later thardtite 90 days prior to each Anniversary
Date, the Borrower shall, at its option, in a venitinotice to the Agent request (an "Extension Rettjuthat the Revolving Credit Maturity
Date be extended for a period of one year. The Agleall promptly inform the Lenders of such ExtemsRequest. Each Lender that agrees
with such Extension Request shall deliver to themdts express written consent thereto no latem 0 days prior to such Anniversary Date.
If (i) any Lender notifies the Agent in writing am before the 60th day prior to such Anniversaryelxhat it will not consent to such
Extension Request or (ii) all of the Lenders haotin writing expressly consented to any such EsitemRequest as provided in the prece
sentence, then the Agent shall so notify the Boeroand the Borrower, at its option, may replacéndander which has not agreed to such
Extension Request (a "Nonextending Lender") witbther commercial lending institution reasonablyssattory to the Agent (a
"Replacement Lender") by giving notice (not lateart the date 30 days prior to such Anniversary Daftthe name of such Replacement
Lender to the Agent. Unless the Agent shall objethe identity of such proposed Replacement Lepder to the date 20 days prior to such
Anniversary Date, upon notice from the Agent, eldoiextending Lender shall promptly (but in no evatér than such Anniversary Date)
assign all of its interests hereunder to such Rept@nt Lender in accordance with the provisionSeaftion 10.14(c) hereof. If, prior to such
Anniversary Date some, but not all, of the Lenderge agreed to such Extension Request, and eadximading Lender has not been
replaced by the Borrower in accordance with thengeof this Section 2.01(e), the Revolving Creditiviitly Date shall be extended in
accordance with such Extension Request; providedekier, that on the original Revolving Credit MatDate (as such date may have been
previously extended), the Commitment of each Nagredihg Lender shall be terminated, the Borrowell glagy to the Agent for the account
of such Nonextending Lender such Nonextending Lesdro Rata share of the principal of and intepestll outstanding Revolving Credit
Loans and Letter of Credit Reimbursement Obligaj@md the total Revolving Credit Commitment shalirrevocably reduced by an ama
equal to the aggregate Commitments of all Nonextendenders. If all Lenders consent to any sucteksion Request (or, if any
Nonextending Lenders are replaced in accordandethig Section), then as of 5:00 p.m. Pittsburgteton the Anniversary Date t

Revolving Credit Maturity Date shall be deemed awdnbeen extended for, and shall be the date, @sreafter the then effective Revolving
Credit Maturity Date (as such date may have beewnipusly extended pursuant to this Section).

2.02. Revolving Credit Commitment Fee; Reductiothef Revolving Credit Committed Amoun



(a) Revolving Credit Commitment Fee. The Borrowmalkpay to the Agent for the account of each Leredeommitment fee (the "Revolving
Credit Commitment Fee") equal to 0.25% per annuas€ld on a year of 365 or 366 days, as the caséenayd actual days elapsed), for
each day from and including the date hereof tanbtiincluding the Revolving Credit Maturity Date) the amount (not less than zero) equal
to (i) such Lender's Revolving Credit Committed Ambon such day, minus (ii) the Dollar Equivalemhdunt aggregate principal amount of
such Lender's Revolving Credit Extensions of Credistanding on such day. Such Revolving Credit @dment Fee shall be due and
payable for the preceding period for which suchHas not been paid (x) on each Regular Payment Baten the date of each reduction of
the Revolving Credit Committed Amount (whether optl or mandatory) on the amount so reduced andn(#)e Revolving Credit Maturity
Date.

(b) Reduction of the Revolving Credit Committed Aint¢s. The Borrower may at any time or from timeinee reduce Pro Rata the
Revolving Credit Committed Amounts of the Lenderah aggregate amount (which may be zero) nottessthe Dollar Equivalent Amount
sum of the unpaid principal amount of the Revolv@rgdit Loans then outstanding plus the principabant of all Revolving Credit Loans
not yet made as to which notice has been givehé@Bobrrower under Section 2.03 hereof. Any reductibthe Revolving Credit Committed
Amounts shall be in an aggregate amount whichmisrégmum amount of $5,000,000 and integral multimé&$500,000 thereof. Reduction of
the Revolving Credit Committed Amounts shall be mbg providing not less than 30 days' notice (whiotice shall be irrevocable) to such
effect to the Agent. After the date specified islsmotice the Revolving Credit Commitment Fee shaltalculated upon the Revolving Cr
Committed Amounts as so reduced. Upon reducticgh@Revolving Credit Committed Amounts to zero,pawnt in full of all Obligations
and expiration or termination of all outstandingtees of Credit, this Agreement shall be terminated

2.03. Making of Loans. Whenever the Borrower dasihat the Lenders make Revolving Credit LoansBitveower shall provide Standard
Natice to the Agent setting forth the following amiation:

(a) The currency, which shall be either US Curremicgn Other Currency, in which such Revolving @redans are to be made;
(b) The party making the borrowing thereunder;
(c) The date, which shall be a Business Day, orclwvhuch proposed Loans are to be made;

(d) The aggregate principal amount of such propaseehs, which shall be the sum of the principal anms selected pursuant to clause (e) of
this Section 2.03;

(e) The interest rate Option or Options selecteattordance with Section 2.04(a) hereof and thecjpal amounts selected in accordance
with Section 2.04(d) hereof of the Base Rate Poriiod each Funding Segment of the CD Rate Portidritee Euro-Rate Portion, as the case
may be, of such proposed Loans; and

(f) With respect to each such Funding Segment ofi smoposed Loans, the Funding Period to applyth $unding Segment, selected in
accordance with Section 2.04(c) hereof.

Standard Notice having been so provided, the Agleall promptly notify each Lender of the informaticontained therein and of the amount
of such Lender's Loan. Unless any applicable cadgpecified in Article V hereof has not beens&i, on the date specified in such
Standard Notice each Lender shall make the proaefatisLoan available to the Agent (a) with redpieca Loan denominated in US
Currency, at the Agent's Office, no later than 02®lock Noon, Pittsburgh time, in funds immediagvailable at such Office, and (b) with
respect to a Loan denominated in an Other Curreatdipe Agent's London Office, no later than 120@fock Noon, London time, in funds
immediately available at such London Office. TheeAgwill make the funds so received available ®Borrower in funds immediately
available at the Agent's Office or London Office,the case may be.

2.04. Interest Rates.

(a) Optional Bases of Borrowing. The unpaid priati@mount of the Loans shall bear interest for ekghuntil due on one or more bases
selected by the Borrower from among the interest @ptions set forth below. Subject to the provisiof this Agreement the Borrower may
select different options to apply simultaneousldifferent Portions of the Loans and may selededéht Funding Segments to apply
simultaneously to different parts of the CD RatetiBo or the Euro-Rate Portion of the Loans. Thgragate number of Funding Segments
applicable to the CD Rate Portion and the Euro-Ratgion of the Revolving Credit Loans at any tisiall not exceed five.

(i) Base Rate Option: A rate per annum (computed on the basis
of a year of 365 or 366 days, as the cas e may be, and actual days
elapsed) for each day equal to the Bas e Rate for such day plus the
Applicable Margin for such day. The "Base Rate" for any day shall mean
the greater of (A) the Prime Rate for suc h day or (B) 0.625% plus the
Federal Funds Effective Rate for such day, such interest rate to change
automatically from time to time effectiv e as of the effective date of
each change in the Prime Rate or the Feder al Funds Effective Rate.

(ii) CD Rate Option: A rate per annum (based on a year of 360
days and actual days elapsed) for each day equal to the CD Rate for

such day plus the Applicable Margin for su ch day. "CD Rate" for any day
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to the first day of such Euro-Rate Fundi
first day of such Euro-Rate Funding Per
such Funding Segment and having maturitie
Period by (B) a number equal to

1.00 minus the Euro-Rate Rese

The "Euro-Rate" may also be
formula:

[average of the rates offered

[center banks in the London i
Euro-Rate = [determined by the Agent per

[1.00 - Euro-Rate Reserve Per

"Euro-Rate Reserve Percentage”

wo London Business Days prior
ng Period for delivery on the
iod in amounts comparable to
s comparable to such Funding

rve Percentage.

expressed by the following
to major money ]

nterbank market]

subsection (A) ]
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for any day shall mean the

percentage (expressed as a decimal, rounded upavird nearest 1/100 of 1%), as determined in daitid by the Agent (which
determination shall be conclusive absent manifest)e which is in effect on such day as prescribgdhe Board of Governors of the Federal
Reserve System (or any successor) representingdRenum reserve requirement (including, withoutitation, supplemental, marginal and
emergency reserve requirements) with respect wcemency funding (currently referred to as "Eunoency liabilities") of a member bank
such System. The Euro-Rate shall be adjusted atitmatiya as of the effective date of each changteEuro-Rate Reserve Percentage. The
Euro-Rate Option shall be calculated in accordavitie the foregoing whether or not any Lender isiatly required to hold reserves in
connection with its eurocurrency funding or, if uggd to hold such reserves, is required to hadémees at the "Euro-Rate Reserve
Percentage" as herein defined.

The Agent shall give prompt notice to the Borrowrd to the Lenders of the Euro-Rate determinedijoisted in accordance with the
definition of the Euro-Rate, which determinatioragijustment shall be conclusive absent manifest.err

(iv) As-Offered Rate Option. A rate per annum (comeol on the basis of a year of 360 days and adtyal elapsed) for each day equal to the
"As-Offered Rate" for such day. The "As-Offered &dbr any day shall mean such rate per annum gsbeaffered by the Lenders in their
sole discretion to the Borrower from December 3®8lto December 31, 1998 (the "As-Offered Fundiagdd") for such Funding Segment
as Lenders shall offer in their sole discretionjolitrate shall remain fixed for the duration of lsuks-Offered Rate Funding Period. Without
limiting the discretion of Lender or the generalifythe foregoing, the As-Offered Rate (if offeresthall reflect Lender's fully reserved cost of
funds and shall include a margin of at least 0.625%

(b) Applicable Margin. The "Applicable Margin" feach interest rate Option for any day shall mearptrcentage set forth below:

Interest Rate Option
Base Rate Option

Applicable Margin

CD Rate Option 0.625%
Euro Rate Option 0.625%
As-Offered 0

(c) Funding Periods. At any time when the Borrogleall select, convert to or renew the CD Rate @ptiothe Euro-Rate Option to apply to
any part of the Loans, the Borrower shall specifg or more periods (the "Funding Periods") durifgclv each such Option shall apply, such
Funding Periods being as set forth below:

Interest Rate Option Available Funding Pe riods

CD Rate Option
30, 60, 90, 180 da ys or such
longer period as may be
offered by all of th e Lenders
in their sole discr etion ("CD
Rate Funding Period" ); and

Euro-Rate Option
One, two, three, six months or
one year or such lon ger period
as may be offered by all of
the Lenders in t heir sole
discretion ("Euro-Ra te Funding
Period");

As-Offered
December 30, 1998 t o December
31, 1998 ("As-Offere d Funding

Period");

provided, that:

(i) Each CD Rate Funding Period which would otheerénd on a day which is not a Business Day shakbended to the next succeec



Business Day;

(i) Each Euro-Rate Funding Period shall begin droadon Business Day, and the term "month", whesdus connection with a Euro-Rate
Funding Period, shall be construed in accordantie pvevailing practices in the interbank eurodoltarket at the commencement of such
Euro-Rate Funding Period, as determined in godH fai the Agent (which determination shall be caosite);

(iii) The Borrower may not select a Funding Periiodt would end after the Revolving Credit Matuiliigite; and

(iv) The Borrower shall, in selecting any FundirgriBd, allow for scheduled mandatory payments anelseeable mandatory prepayments of
the Loans.

(d) Transactional Amounts. Every selection of, asion from, conversion to or renewal of an interate Option and every payment or
prepayment of any Loans shall be in a principal @mauch that after giving effect thereto the aggte principal amount of the Base Rate
Portion of the Revolving Credit Loans, or the agate principal amount of each Funding Segmentefib Rate Portion or the Euro-Rate
Portion of the Revolving Credit Loans, shall besasforth below:

Portion or Funding Segment Allowable Aggrega

Base Rate Portion an integral multi
or the Other Curr

Borrower

Each Funding Segment of the an integral mul
CD Rate Portion of 500,000 of US
the Other Currenc

te Principal Amounts

ple of 500,000 of US Currency
ency denominated by the

tiple
Currency or
y denominated

by the Borrower

Each Funding Segment of the an integral multi
Euro-Rate Portion Currency or the O
the Borrower

ple of 1,000,000 of US
ther Currency denominated by

Each Funding Segment of the an integral multi ple of 500,000 of US
As-Offered Portion Currency or the O ther Currency
denominated by th e Borrower

(e) CD Rate or Euro-Rate Unascertainable; Imprabtiity. If

(i) on any date on which a CD Rate or a ERate would otherwise be set the Agent (in the castauses (A) or (B) below) or any Lender
the case of clause (C) below) shall have determimgdod faith (which determination shall be cosdhe absent manifest error) that:

(A) adequate and reasonable means do not exiastartaining such CD Rate or Euro-Rate,

(B) a contingency has occurred which materially addersely affects the secondary market for nebletieertificates of deposit maintained
by dealers of recognized standing or the interlmnkdollar market, as the case may be, or

(C) the effective cost to such Lender of fundingreposed Funding Segment of the CD Rate PortidheoEuro-Rate Portion from a
Corresponding Source of Funds shall exceed the @B & the Euro-Rate, as the case may be, ap@italsuch Funding Segment, or

(i) at any time any Lender shall have determimmedaod faith (which determination shall be conafasabsent manifest error) that the mak
maintenance or funding of any part of the CD Ratdién or the Euro-Rate Portion has been made iotipable or unlawful by compliance
by such Lender or a Notional Euro-Rate Fundingdeffih good faith with any Law or guideline or irgegtation or administration thereof by
any Governmental Authority charged with the intetption or administration thereof or with any resjugr directive of any such
Governmental Authority (whether or not having tbecgé of law);

then, and in any such event, the Agent or such éeras the case may be, may notify the Borrowsuoh determination (and any Lender
giving such notice shall notify the Agent). Uportkudate as shall be specified in such notice (whiil not be earlier than the date such
notice is given), the obligation of each of the ters to allow the Borrower to select, convert toeaorew the CD Rate Option or Euro-Rate
Option, as the case may be, shall be suspendddhenfigent or such Lender, as the case may b#,lehee later notified the Borrower (and
any Lender giving such notice shall notify the Aeaf the Agent's or such Lender's determinatiogand faith (which determination shall be
conclusive absent manifest error) that the circantst giving rise to such previous determinatiotonger exist.

If any Lender notifies the Borrower of a determiaatunder subsection (ii) of this Section 2.04{bg CD Rate Portion or the Er-Rate



Portion, as the case may be, of the Loans of seddlér (the "Affected Lender") shall automaticaléydonverted to the Base Rate Option as
of the date specified in such notice (and accroeztést thereon shall be due and payable on sueh da

If at the time the Agent or a Lender makes a detetion under subsection (i) or (ii) of this Seati®.04(e) the Borrower previously has
notified the Agent that it wishes to select, comnveror renew the CD Rate Option or the Euro-Rgtéidd, as the case may be, with respect to
any proposed Loans but such Loans have not yetinade, such notification shall be deemed to profadeselection of, conversion to or
renewal of the Base Rate Option instead of the @ ®ption or the Euro-Rate Option, as the casebmawith respect to such Loans or, in
the case of a determination by a Lender, such Lofssch Lender.

2.05. Conversion or Renewal of Interest Rate Option

(a) Conversion or Renewal. Subject to the provisiohSections 2.09(c) and 2.10(b) hereof, unledsvaamt of Default shall have occurred .
be continuing, the Borrower may convert any paitof.oans from any interest rate Option or Optitmene or more different interest rate
Options and may renew the CD Rate Option or th@Rate Option as to any Funding Segment of the @f2 Rortion or the Euro-Rate
Portion:

(i) At any time with respect to conversion from tBase Rate Option; or

(i) At the expiration of any Funding Period witbspect to conversions from the As-Offered Rateddpr conversions from or renewals of
the CD Rate Option or the Euro-Rate Option, ag#s® may be, as to the Funding Segment corresgptalguch expiring Funding Period.

Whenever the Borrower desires to convert or rengpirterest rate Option or Options, the Borroweallsprovide to the Agent Standard
Notice setting forth the following informatio

(w) The date, which shall be a Business Day, orclwitie proposed conversion or renewal is to be made

(x) The principal amounts selected in accordandk $ection 2.04(d) hereof of the Base Rate Poaimheach Funding Segment of the As-
Offered Rate Option, the CD Rate Portion and thefRate Portion, as the case may be, to be comvEdm or renewed;

(y) The interest rate Option or Options selecteddoordance with Section 2.04(a) hereof and thecipal amounts selected in accordance
with Section 2.04(d) hereof of the Base Rate Portiod each Funding Segment of the As-Offered Rpt®@ the CD Rate Portion and the
Euro-Rate Portion, as the case may be, to be cauyemd

(z) With respect to each Funding Segment to be @ed to or renewed, the Funding Period selecteddordance with Section 2.04(c)
hereof to apply to such Funding Segment.

Standard Notice having been so provided, afted#te specified in such Standard Notice, interesil ble calculated upon the principal
amount of the Loans as so converted or renewegrdsiton the principal amount of any part of thariconverted or renewed (automatic
or otherwise) shall be due and payable on the asioreor renewal date.

(b) Failure to Convert or Renew. Absent due ndtiom the Borrower of conversion or renewal in tireemstances described in Section 2.05
(a)(ii) hereof, any part of the As-Offered Rateti®or, the CD Rate Portion or Euro-Rate Portionviitiich such notice is not received shall be
converted automatically to the Base Rate Optiotherlast day of the expiring Funding Period; preddhowever, that if any Euro-Rate
Portion is in an Other Currency, such portion shalfenewed automatically for one month on thedagtof the expiring Funding Period.

2.06. Prepayments Generally. Whenever the Borralesires or is required to prepay any part of itarlsg it shall provide Standard Notice to
the Agent setting forth the following information:

(a) The currency, which shall be either US Curremicgn Other Currency, in which such prepaymetd e made;
(b) The date, which shall be a Business Day, orchvtiie proposed prepayment is to be made;

(c) The total principal amount of such prepaymaiitich shall be the sum of the principal amounteaeld pursuant to clause (c) of this
Section 2.06; and

(d) The principal amounts selected in accordantle $&ction 2.04(d) hereof of the Base Rate Podimheach part of each Funding Segment
of the As-Offered Rate Portion, the CD Rate Por#iad the Euro-Rate Portion, as the case may lie, pvepaid.

Standard Notice having been so provided, on the siacified in such Standard Notice, the princgmabunts of the Base Rate Portion and
each Funding Segment of the As-Offered Rate Opti@CD Rate Portion and the Euro-Rate Portioniipddn such notice, together with
interest on each such principal amount to such datdl be due and payab



2.07. Optional Prepayments. The Borrower shall hbeeight at its option from time to time to prg@es Loans in whole or part without
premium or penalty (subject, however, to Sectidigh) hereof):

(a) At any time with respect to any part of the 8B&ate Portion; or

(b) At the expiration of any Funding Period witlspect to prepayment of the As-Offered Rate Portloe CD Rate Portion or the Euro-Rate
Portion, as the case may be, with respect to artyopéhe Funding Segment corresponding to sucliriegpFunding Period.

Any such prepayment shall be made in accordandeSettion 2.06 hereof.

2.08. Interest Payment Dates. Interest on the Base Portion shall be due and payable on each ReBayment Date. Interest on each
Funding Segment of the As-Offered Portion shallibe and payable on the last day of the correspgmnOffered Funding Period. Interest
on each Funding Segment of the CD Rate Portiort Bhalue and payable on the last day of the cooredipg CD Rate Funding Period anc
such CD Rate Funding Period is longer than 90 dalgs, every 90th day during such CD Rate Funding®elnterest on each Funding
Segment of the Euro-Rate Portion shall be due agédlge on the last day of the corresponding Eure-Randing Period and, if such Euro-
Rate Funding Period is longer than three montiss, @ery third month during such Funding PeriodeAmaturity of any part of the Loans
(by acceleration or otherwise), interest on suat gfathe Loans shall be due and payable on demand.

2.09. Pro Rata Treatment; Payments Generally.

(a) Pro Rata Treatment. Each borrowing and conmer@nd renewal of interest rate Options hereuntu@t be made, and all payments made
in respect of principal, interest and Revolving @ir€ommitment Fees due from the Borrower hereundemder the Notes shall be applied,
Pro Rata from and to each Lender, except for paysrarinterest involving an Affected Lender as pded in Section 2.04(e) hereof,
payments to a Lender under Sections 2.10, 2.120art8ereof and payments to any Issuing Bank putsoa®ection 3.02(b) hereof. The
failure of any Lender to make a Loan shall noteneti any other Lender of its obligation to lend beder, but neither the Agent nor any
Lender shall be responsible for the failure of athyer Lender to make a Loan.

(b) Payments Generally. The parties agree thatl(payments and prepayments of principal, inteaest other amounts in connection with
Loans denominated in US Currency and all fees $leathade in US Currency and (i) all payments afgpal, interest and other amounts
(other than fees) in connection with Revolving Grédans denominated in any Other Currency shalhbee in such Other Currency. All
payments and prepayments to be made in respednefgal, interest, fees or other amounts due ftoenBorrower in US Currency shall be
payable by 12:00 o'clock noon, Pittsburgh timettenday when due without presentment, demand, girotenotice of any kind, all of which
are hereby expressly waived, and an action thestfalt immediately accrue. Except for payments niS#etions 2.10 and 10.06, such
payments shall be made to the Agent at its Officd$ Currency in funds immediately available atsQéfice without setoff, counterclaim
other deduction of any nature. All payments angh@yenents to be made in respect of principal, istéfees or other amounts due from the
Borrower in any Other Currency shall be payabld B0 o'clock noon, London time, on the day whea dithout presentment, demand,
protest or notice of any kind, all of which aredigy expressly waived, and an action therefor simiediately accrue. Except for payments
under Sections 2.10 and 10.06, such paymentstehatiade to the Agent at its London Office in su¢the®Currency in funds immediately
available at such Office without setoff, counteirtlar other deduction of any nature. Any paymenpr@payment received (i) in US Currel
by the Agent or such Lender after 12:00 o'clock NdRittsburgh time, on any day shall be deemeat fheen received on the next
succeeding Business Day and (ii) in any Other Qurdoy the agent or such Lender after 12:00 o'ctamdn, London time, on any day shall
be deemed to have been received on the next suegegasiness Day. The Agent shall distribute toltbaders all such payments receive(
it from the Borrower as promptly as practicableafeceipt by the Agent.

(c) Default Interest. To the extent permitted by,l&rom and after the date on which an Event ofdb#fshall have occurred hereunder, an
long as such Event of Default continues to exishqgipal, interest, fees, indemnity, expenses gra@her amounts due from the Borrower
hereunder or under any other Loan Document, skall interest for each day (before and after juddnpayable on demand, at a rate per
annum (in each case based on a year of 360 dayectunl days elapsed) which for each day shallp@leo the following:

(i) In the case of any part of the As-Offered RRtetion, the CD Rate Portion or Euro-Rate Portibarty Loans, (A) until the end of the
applicable then-current Funding Period at a rateapaum 2% above the rate otherwise applicableth part, and (B) thereafter in
accordance with the following clause (ii); and

(i) In the case of any other amount due from tleerBwer hereunder or under any Loan Document, 28v@khe then-current Base Rate
Option.

To the extent permitted by law, interest accruedenrthis Section 2.09 on any amount shall compaumd day-by-day basis, and hence shall
be added daily to the overdue amount to which sutehest relates.

2.10. Additional Compensation in Certain Circumsts

(@) Increased Costs or Reduced Return Resulting Fiaxes, Reserves, Capital Adequacy Requiremerperises, Etc. If any Law or
guideline or interpretation or application theregfany Governmental Authority charged with the iiptetation or administration thereof or
compliance with any request or directive of any &ownental Authority (whether or not having the #oof law) now existing or hereaft



adopted:

(i) subjects any Lender or any Notional Euro-Ratading Office to any tax or changes the basis xadttan with respect to this Agreement,
the Notes, the Loans or payments by the Borroweriatipal, interest, commitment fees or other amiswlue from the Borrower hereunder
or under the Notes (except for taxes on the ovagrilincome or overall gross receipts of such Lendsuch Notional Euro-Rate Funding
Office imposed by the jurisdictions (federal, statel local) in which the Lender's principal offimeNotional Euro-Rate Funding Office is
located),

(i) imposes, modifies or deems applicable anymasespecial deposit or similar requirement againstlits or commitments to extend credit
extended by, assets (funded or contingent) of, siepwith or for the account of, other acquisitiaigunds by, such Lender or any Notional
Euro-Rate Funding Office (other than requiremerfzessly included herein in the determination ef @D Rate or the Euro-Rate, as the case
may be, hereunder),

(iii) imposes, modifies or deems applicable anyitehjpdequacy or similar requirement (A) againsteds (funded or contingent) of, or credits
or commitments to extend credit extended by, amdee or any Notional Euro-Rate Funding Office, By ¢therwise applicable to the
obligations of any Lender or any Notional Euro-Riateding Office under this Agreement, or

(iv) imposes upon any Lender or any Notional EuadeR-unding Office any other condition or expengh vespect to this Agreement, the
Notes or its making, maintenance or funding of bagn or any security therefc

and the result of any of the foregoing is to inseethe cost to, reduce the income receivable bynpose any expense (including loss of
margin) upon any Lender, any Notional Euro-Ratedtum office or, in the case of clause (iii) heremry Person controlling a Lender, with
respect to this Agreement, the Notes or the makimgntenance or funding of any Loan (or, in thesgafsany capital adequacy or similar
requirement, to have the effect of reducing the dditreturn on such Lender's or controlling Peisoapital, taking into consideration such
Lender's or controlling Person's policies with exggo capital adequacy) by an amount which suctdeedeems to be material (such Lender
being deemed for this purpose to have made, maadair funded each Funding Segment of the CD Rat#oR and the Euro-Rate Portion
from a Corresponding Source of Funds), such Lendsr from time to time notify the Borrower of the anmt determined in good faith (usi
any averaging and attribution methods) by such eeQahich determination shall be conclusive) tanbeessary to compensate such Lender
or such Notional Euro-Rate Funding Office for siratrease, reduction or imposition. Such amountl ffeatlue and payable by the Borrower
to such Lender five Business Days after such ndgiggven, together with an amount equal to inteoassuch amount from the date two
Business Days after the date demanded until suelddte at the Base Rate Option. A certificate lmh diender as to the amount due and
payable under this

Section 2.10(a) from time to time and the methodad€ulating such amount shall be conclusive abswmifest error.

(b) Funding Breakage. In addition to all other amtsipayable hereunder, if and to the extent forreagon any part of any Funding Segment
of any As-Offered Rate Portion, CD Rate Portiofcaro-Rate Portion of the Loans becomes due (bylexat®n or otherwise), or is paid,
prepaid or converted to another interest rate @gtidhether or not such payment, prepayment or asiveis mandatory or automatic and
whether or not such payment or prepayment is thien), @n a day other than the last day of the cpording Funding Period (the date such
amount so becomes due, or is so paid, prepaidmected, being referred to as the "Funding Brealtate"), the Borrower shall pay each
Lender an amount ("Funding Breakage Indemnity"edeined by such Lender as follows:

(i) first, calculate the following amount: (A) thgincipal amount of such Funding Segment of thenisoaving to such Lender which so
became due, or which was so paid, prepaid or ctedigtimes (B) the greater of (x) zero or (y) thterof interest applicable to such principal
amount on the Funding Breakage Date minus the Aalple Funding Rate as of the Funding Breakage Dates (C) the number of days
from and including the Funding Breakage Date tortmitincluding the last day of such Funding Pertades (D) 1/360;

(i) the Funding Breakage Indemnity to be paid by Borrower to such Lender shall be the amountlgqube present value as of the
Funding Breakage Date (discounted at the Applicebleding Rate as of such Funding Breakage Datecalcdlated on the basis of a year of
365 or 366 days, as the case may be, and actuskttgysed) of the amount described in the precadige (i) (which amount described in
the preceding clause (i) is assumed for purposesdf present value calculation to be payable efatst day of the corresponding Funding
Period).

For purposes of this Section, the term "Applicafleding Rate" shall mean (i) in the case of angudation of a Funding Breakage Indemi
payment with respect to a particular Funding Sedrfa@rwhich the corresponding Funding Period wagioally one year or longer, the
Treasury Rate, and (ii) in the case of any calauiadf a Funding Breakage Indemnity payment wipeet to a Funding Segment for which
the corresponding Funding Period was originallg lgmsn one year, the Euro-Rate.

Such Funding Breakage Indemnity shall be due agdlpa on demand, and each Lender shall, upon makicly demand, notify the Agent of
the amount so demanded. In addition, the Borrowall,son the due date for payment of any FundingaRage Indemnity, pay to such Lender
an additional amount equal to interest on such FgnBreakage Indemnity from the Funding Breakagee@a but not including such due
date at the Base Rate Option applicable to the 4 ¢eaiculated on the basis of a year of 360 dagisaatual days elapsed). The amount
payable to each Lender under this Section 2.10l) be determined in good faith by such Lended such determination shall be conclus
absent manifest error.

2.11. HLT Classification. In the event that aftee date hereof the Loans hereunder are classsiad'ighly leveraged transaction" (an "H



Classification™") by any Governmental Authority hagijurisdiction over any Lender, such Lender maitdrdiscretion from time to time so
notify the Agent, and upon receiving such notice Atgent shall promptly give notice of such eventht Borrower, the Issuing Banks and the
Lenders. In such event the parties hereto shalhoemece negotiations to agree on revised Revolvigi€Commitment Fees, interest rates
and Applicable Margins hereunder. If the partieeteefail to agree on such matters in their respeabsolute discretion within 60 days of
the notice given by the Agent referred to aboventtihe Required Lenders may at any time or frone tiotime thereafter direct the Agent to
(a) by ten Business Days' notice to the Borroveminate the Revolving Credit Commitments, andRb&olving Credit Commitments shall
thereupon terminate, or (b) by ten Business Dayt&t@ to the Borrower, declare the Obligationsetbgr with (without duplication) accrued
interest thereon, to be, and the Obligations gshalleupon become, immediately due and payable utith@sentment, demand, protest or
other notice of any kind, all of which are herebgived, and an action therefor shall immediatelyaecThe Lenders acknowledge that an
HLT Classification is not an Event of Default ort€atial Default hereunder.

2.12. Taxes.

(a) Payments Net of Taxes. All payments made byBtireower under this Agreement or any other Loaruoent shall be made free and
clear of, and without reduction or withholding faron account of, any present or future incomemptar other taxes, levies, imposts, duties,
charges, fees, deductions or withholdings, noweoe&fter imposed, levied, collected, withheld @meased by any Governmental Authority,
and all liabilities with respect thereto, excluding

() in the case of the Agent and each Lender, ircomfranchise taxes imposed on the Agent or sectdér by the jurisdiction under the laws
of which the Agent or such Lender is organizedror political subdivision or taxing authority thefew therein or as a result of a connection
between such Lender and any jurisdiction other thaannection resulting solely from this Agreemamd the transactions contemplated
hereby, and

(i) in the case of each Lender, income or franehéxes imposed by any jurisdiction in which suemder's lending offices which make or
book Loans are located or any political subdivisionaxing authority thereof or therein

(all such non-excluded taxes, levies, imposts, déolus, charges or withholdings being hereinaftdied "Taxes"). If any Taxes are required
to be withheld or deducted from any amounts paytbtee Agent or any Lender under this Agreemeratnyr other Loan Document, the
Borrower shall pay the relevant amount of such $a@ the amounts so payable to the Agent or senldr shall be increased to the extent
necessary to yield to the Agent or such Lendeefgfayment of all Taxes) interest or any such adineounts payable hereunder at the rates ol
in the amounts specified in this Agreement andother Loan Documents. Whenever any Taxes are paildebBorrower with respect to
payments made in connection with this Agreememtngrother Loan Document, as promptly as possitdectfter, the Borrower shall send to
the Agent for its own account or for the accounswéh Lender, as the case may be, a certified cbpg original official receipt received by
the Borrower showing payment thereof.

(b) Indemnity. The Borrower hereby indemnifies #gent and each of the Lenders for the full amodruezh Taxes and any present or fut
claims, liabilities or losses with respect to aulting from any omission to pay or delay in paysugh Taxes (including any incremental
Taxes, interest or penalties that may become payabthe Agent or such Lender as a result of aityréato pay such Taxes but excluding
claims, liabilities or losses with respect to dsisig from omissions to pay or delays in paymenttaitable to the act or omission of the Ag
or any Lender), whether or not such Taxes weresctyror legally asserted. Such indemnificationlidbe made within 30 days from the date
such Lender or the Agent, as the case may be, makitsn demand therefor.

(c) Withholding and Backup Withholding. Each Lendheat is incorporated or organized under the lafaang jurisdiction other than the
United States or any state thereof agrees thaiy prior to the date any payment is due to be ntadtehereunder or under any other Loan
Document, it will furnish to the Borrower and thgent

(i) two valid, duly completed copies of United ®minternal Revenue Service Form 4224 or UniteteStaternal Revenue Form 1001 or
successor applicable form, as the case may bdyaegtin each case that such Lender is entitletbtieive payments under this Agreement
and the other Loan Documents without deductionitrwlding of any United States federal income saaed

(i) a valid, duly completed Internal Revenue SeeviForm W-8 or W-9 or successor applicable fornthascase may be, to establish an
exemption from United States backup withholding tax

Each Lender which so delivers to the Borrower dnr@dAgent a Form 1001 or 4224 and Form W-8 or WrSuacessor applicable forms
agrees to deliver to the Borrower and the Agentfuvther copies of the said Form 1001 or 4224 aowirPW-8 or W-9, or successor
applicable forms, or other manner of certificatias the case may be, on or before the date thaguaryform expires or becomes obsolete or
otherwise is required to be resubmitted as a cimdio obtaining an exemption from withholding tax,after the occurrence of any event
requiring a change in the most recent form pre\nodslivered by it, and such extensions or renewaseof as may reasonably be requested
by the Borrower and the Agent, certifying in theeaf a Form 1001 or Form 4224 that such Lendentifled to receive payments under this
Agreement or any other Loan Document without dédaatr withholding of any United States federaldnme taxes, unless in any such cases
an event (including any changes in Law) has ocdyprér to the date on which any such delivery wicetherwise be required which renders
all such forms inapplicable or which would preveath Lender from duly completing and delivering angh letter or form with respect to it
and such Lender advises the Borrower and the Aganit is not capable of receiving payments witheny deduction or withholding of
United States federal income tax, and in the chseForm W-8 or W-9, establishing an exemption from United Statekijaevithholding tax



2.13. Funding by Branch, Subsidiary or Affiliate.

(a) Notional Funding. Each Lender shall have tgatrfrom time to time, prospectively or retrospeely, without notice to the Borrower, to
deem any branch, subsidiary or affiliate of suchdear to have made, maintained or funded any paheoEuro-Rate Portion at any time. Any
branch, subsidiary or affiliate so deemed shaltti@vn as a "Notional Euro-Rate Funding office." Blender shall deem any part of the
Euro-Rate Portion of the Loans or the funding tfaareo have been transferred to a different Notidiro-Rate Funding Office if such
transfer would avoid or cure an event or conditiescribed in Section 2.04(e)(ii) hereof or woulssken compensation payable by the
Borrower under Section 2.10(a) hereof, and if duehder determines in its sole discretion that duahsfer would be practicable and would
not have a Material Adverse Effect on such pathefLoans, such Lender or any Notional Euro-Ratedifg office (it being assumed for
purposes of such determination that each parteoEtiro-Rate Portion is actually made or maintaimgdr funded through the corresponding
Notional Eur-Rate Funding Office). Notional Euro-Rate Fundinific®s may be selected by such Lender without rk¢@isuch Lender's
actual methods of making, maintaining or fundingihe or any sources of funding actually used byailable to such Lender.

(b) Actual Funding. Each Lender shall have thetrfgbm time to time to make or maintain any partlef Euro-Rate Portion by arranging for
a branch, subsidiary or affiliate of such Lendemtake or maintain such part of the Euro-Rate PorBuch Lender shall have the right to (i)
hold any applicable Note payable to its order ffar benefit and account of such branch, subsidiaaffiiate or (ii) request the Borrower to
issue one or more substitute promissory notesdmpticipal amount of such Euro-Rate Portion, ibpstantially the form attached hereto as
Exhibit A, with the blanks appropriately filled, yeble to such branch, subsidiary or affiliate anthwappropriate changes reflecting that the
holder thereof is not obligated to make any addélid.oans to the Borrower; provided, that if a Lentequests the Borrower to issue one or
more substitute promissory notes in accordance oldtirse (ii) above, the amount of the Note payabkich Lender shall automatically be
reduced accordingly. The Borrower agrees to corppiynptly with any request under subsection (iijho$ Section 2.13(b). If any Lender
causes a branch, subsidiary or affiliate to makeaintain any part of the Euro-Rate Portion hereunall terms and conditions of this
Agreement shall, except where the context cleadpires otherwise, be applicable to such part@hBhro-Rate Portion and to any note
payable to the order of such branch, subsidiaaffiiate to the same extent as if such part ofEleo-Rate Portion were made or maintained
and such note were a Revolving Credit Note paytmbseich Lender's order.

2.14. Closing Fee. The Borrower shall pay to themtdor the account of each Lender on the Closiatg fee equal to .10 of 1% of each
Lender's Revolving Credit Commitment.

2.15. Multicurrency Payments.
(a) Dollar Equivalent Amounts.

(i) Calculation of Dollar Equivalent Amounts. Upeach making and upon each payment of a RevolviediClcoan denominated in an Ott
Currency, the Agent shall calculate the Dollar Eglent Amount of such Revolving Credit Loan, asd¢hse may be, and shall provide wri
confirmation to the Lenders.

(il) Recalculation of Dollar Equivalent Amounts. dietermining the Dollar Equivalent Amount of thegegpate Revolving Credit Extensions
of Credit of the Lenders, the Agent may use thpeetve Dollar Equivalent Amounts for the Revolvi@gedit Loans pursuant to paragrapl
of this subsection (a), unless such Dollar Equiviakémount so calculated exceeds 90% of the Revgl@redit Commitment Amount, in
which case the Agent shall recalculate the Dollguizalent Amount of the Revolving Credit Loans daitgling no less frequently than once
each week. The Agent may recalculate the DollaiEdent Amounts of each of the Revolving Credit heas frequently as it determines to
do so in its discretion, provided, that such redialiton shall be made for all of the Revolving Gtéans no less frequently than once each
week during any period when the aggregate Dollardent Amount of the aggregate Credit ExposurthefLenders exceeds 90% of the
Revolving Credit Commitment Amount.

(b) Unavailability.

(i) General. Subject to paragraph (i) of this sdi®n (b), if, in the reasonable judgment of thgeAt, any Other Currency ceases to be
available and freely tradable in the London foreggiehange market, such Other Currency shall cedse an Other Currency. The Agent s
give prompt notice to the Borrower and the Lenadrsuch event. In the event that (A) the Agentdietermined that an Other Currency has
ceased to be available and freely tradable in trabn foreign exchange market and (B) the Agendetarmined in good faith that such
Other Currency is not otherwise available to therBwer, then, on the date any Revolving Credit Ldanominated in such Other Currency
would become due under the terms of this Agreerfather than as a result of an optional prepaymedéuSection 2.07 or of the
acceleration of such Revolving Credit Loans undsatien 8.02), the Borrower shall repay such Revg\Credit Loans by paying to each
Lender an amount in Dollars equal to the amourgrdghed in good faith by such Lender (which deteation shall be conclusive absent
manifest error) necessary to compensate such Léodgre principal of and accrued interest on sRelrolving Credit Loans and any
additional cost, expense or loss incurred by suwatider as a result of such Revolving Credit Loarsgoeepaid in Dollars (rather than in the
denominated Other Currency).

(i) European Monetary Union.

A. Definitions. In this Section 2.15 and Articledhd in each other provision of this Agreement bacl reference is made in this Section 2.15
expressly or impliedly, the following terms have timeanings given to them in this
Section 2.15



"commencement of the third stage of EMU" meanddtite of commencement of the third stage of EMUh@atdate of this Agreement
expected to be January 1, 1999) or the date onhwdiicumstances arise which (in the opinion ofAldeninistrative Agent) have substantially
the same effect and result in substantially theesaomsequences as commencement of the third st&déld as contemplated by the Treaty
on European Union.

"EMU" means economic and monetary union as contataglin the Treaty on European Union.

"EMU legislation" means legislative measures of Buegopean Council for the introduction of, changaaw or operation of a single or unif
European currency (whether known as the euro @retke), being in part the implementation of thiedtlstage of EMU;

"euro" means the single currency of participatirgmmber states of the European Union;

"euro unit" means the currency unit of the euro;

"national currency unit" means the unit of currefather than a euro unit) of a participating mendiate;
"participating member state" means each state stribed in any EMU legislation; and

"Treaty on European Union" means the Treaty of Rofridarch 25, 1957, as amended by the Single Eamopet 1986 and the Maastricht
Treaty (which was signed at Maastricht on Febrdard©92, and came into force on November 1, 1283amended from time to time.

B. Effectiveness of Provisions. The provisions afggraphs C to G below (inclusive) shall be effectt and from the commencement of the
third stage of EMU, provided, that if and to theemt that any such provision relates to any statéhge currency of such state) that is not a
participating member state on the commencemeitteofitird stage of EMU, such provision shall becafiective in relation to such state
(and the currency of such state) at and from the dia which such state becomes a participating reestate.

C. Redenomination and Alternative Currencies. Editgation under this Agreement of a party to thigeement which has been
denominated in the national currency unit of aipgrating member state shall be redenominatedtheceuro unit in accordance with EMU
legislation, provided, that if and to the exteratthny EMU legislation provides that following tbemmencement of the third stage of EMU
an amount denominated either in the euro or im#i®nal currency unit of a participating membettesiand payable within that participating
member state by crediting an account of the credda be paid by the debtor either in the euro amih that national currency unit, each p
to this Agreement shall be entitled to pay or repay such amount either in the euro unit or sud¢lonal currency unit.

D. Business Days. With respect to any amount denat@dl or to be denominated in the euro or a ndtmmeency unit, any reference to a
"Business Day" shall be construed as a referenaadtty (other than a Saturday or Sunday) on wiactké are generally open for business in
London and Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania and/or sugttigal financial center or centers in such partitimg member state or states as the Agent
may from time to time denominate for this purpose.

E. Payments by the Agent Generally. With respethiégpayment of any amount denominated in the euno a national currency unit, the
Agent shall not be liable to the Borrower or anytd Lenders in any way whatsoever for any delayh® consequences of any delay, in the
crediting to any account of any amount requiredhiy Agreement to be paid by the Agent if the Agsmll have taken all relevant steps to
achieve, on the date required by this Agreemeatpttyment of such amount in immediately availaloémly transferable, cleared funds (in
the euro unit or, as the case may be, in a natmmaéncy unit) to the account with the bank in phiacipal financial center in the participati
member state which the Borrower shall have spetffie such purpose. In this paragraph E, "all rete\steps” means all such steps as m:
prescribed from time to time by the regulation®perating procedures of such clearing or settlersgstem as the Agent may from time to
time determine for the purpose of clearing or segftbayments of euro.

F. Rounding and Other Consequential Changes. Withr@judice and in addition to any method of cosi@r or rounding prescribed by any
EMU legislation and without prejudice to the respexliabilities for indebtedness of the Borrowerthe Lenders and the Lenders to the
Borrower under or pursuant to this Agreement:

(i) each reference in this Agreement to a minimumoant (or an integral multiple thereof) in a natibaurrency unit to be paid to or by the
Agent shall be replaced by a reference to suclonedy comparable and convenient amount (or agiatenultiple thereof) in the euro unit
as the Agent may from time to time specify; and

(i) except as expressly provided in this Sectidtb2each provision of this Agreement shall be ecifio such reasonable changes of
construction as the Agent may from time to timec#igdo be necessary or appropriate to reflectiirduction of or changeover to the euro
in participating member states.

G. Increased Costs. The Borrower shall from timénte, at the request of the Agent, pay to the Adenthe account of each Lender the
amount of any cost or increased cost incurred bgf any reduction in any amount payable to ohim éffective return on its capital to, or of
interest or other return foregone by, such Lendemy holding company of such Lender as a resuh®introduction of, changeover to or
operation of the euro in any participating memtiates



EIGHTH AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT AND WAIVER

THIS EIGHTH AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT AND WAIVIR, dated as of January 26, 1999 (this "Amendmebyand
between CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION, a Delaware ocaion (the "Borrower"), the lenders parties hefedbm time to time (the
“Lenders", as defined further below), the IssuiramBs referred to herein (the "Issuing Banks") arElLMON BANK, N.A., a national
banking association, as agent for the Lendersfaissuing Banks hereunder (in such capacity, hegeatith its successors in such capacity,
the "Agent").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Borrower, the Lenders, the IssuingiBaand the Agent are parties to a Credit Agreentsied as of October 29, 1991 (as
amended, the "Credit Agreement"), pursuant to wthehLenders have made Loans to the Borrower ardigdssuing Banks have issued
Letters of Credit on behalf of the Borrower andStssidiaries; and

WHEREAS, the Borrower, the Lenders and the Ageatparties to a Short Term Credit Agreement, daseaf ©ctober 29, 1994 (as
amended, the "Short Term Credit Agreement"), purstaawhich the Lenders have made Loans to thedBeer; and

WHEREAS, the Borrower has requested the Lendeasiend certain provisions of the Credit Agreemedttanvaive certain terms under 1
Credit Agreement and the Short Term Credit Agredmaerd

WHEREAS, the Lenders are willing to amend the GrAdreement and to waive certain terms under tfeli€Agreement and the Short
Term Credit Agreement upon the terms and conditimrsinafter set forth; and

WHEREAS, capitalized terms used herein and notrafise defined shall have the meanings assignédtktm in the Credit Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises ainthe mutual covenants herein contained, arahdihg to be legally bound here
the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Amendments to Credit Agreement. Section 7.0B@{Credit Agreement is hereby amended to substituthe fifth line thereof the amount
"$25,000,000" for the amount "$15,250,000".

2. Waiver. The Lenders hereby consent to the Baravwdeviation from compliance with the provisiafisSection 7.03 of the Credit
Agreement to the extent, but only to the exteratt Huch deviation occurred prior to the date hea@ofresulted from the Borrower permitting
its domestic Subsidiaries to create, incur, asssuier to exist or have outstanding Funded Ind#tiss which in the aggregate for all
domestic Subsidiaries exceeded $15,250,000; prdvtimvever, that at no time such Funded Indebtedeeseeded $25,000,000. Any Event
of Default under the Credit Agreement or the SAerm Credit Agreement arising out of the Borrowdgsiation from Section 7.03 for the
reason described above prior to the date herdwrisby waived.

3. Conditions Precedent. The effectiveness ofAni@ndment is subject to the accuracy as of the luateof of the representations and
warranties herein contained, to the performancehbyBorrower of its obligations to be performedewrder on or before the date hereof and
to the satisfaction, on or before January 26, 1889 date of such satisfaction being referred teiheas the "Effective Date"), of the
following further conditions precedent:

(a) Amendment. Each Lender shall have receiveduategpart of this Amendment, duly executed by toer@wer.

(b) Representations and Warranties; Events of Dtedad Potential Defaults. The representationswaaigtanties contained in Section 4 hereof
shall be true and correct on and as of the Effediate with the same effect as though made on aflsuch date. On the Effective Date, no
Event of Default and no Potential Default shall@aecurred and be continuing or shall exist orlsadur or exist after giving effect to this
Amendment and the transactions contemplated heBsbgxecution of this Amendment, the Borrower disito the Lenders that as of the
Effective Date (a) the representations and warearget forth in Section 4 hereof are true and come and as of such date and (b) on such
date no Event of Default or Potential Default hasusred and is continuing or exists or will occueaist after giving effect to this
Amendment and the transactions contemplated hereby.

(c) Opinions of Counsel. On the Effective Dateréhghall have been delivered to the Agent writteimions, dated the Effective Date, of the
General Counsel to the Borrower in form and sulestaatisfactory to the Agent and as to such matteident to the transactions
contemplated hereby as the Agent may reasonablestq

4. Representations and Warranties. The Borrowebyetepresents and warrants to the Agent and thddre that the representations and
warranties set forth in the Credit Agreement, asmaahed by this Amendment, are true and correct draarof the date hereof as if made on
and as of the date hereof, and that no Event cduldedr Potential Default has occurred and is cwritig or exists on and as of the date hel
provided, however, that, for purposes of the fonegioall references in the Credit Agreement tos'thgreement” shall be deemed to be
references to this Amendment and the Credit Agre¢me amended by this Amendment. In addition, ¢éfierence in Section 4.05 of the
Credit Agreement to the financial statements ofBberower and its consolidated Subsidiaries aseddbnber 31, 1989 and December



1990 shall be deemed to be a reference to thediglestatements of the Borrower and its consolidi&absidiaries as of December 31, 1997
and December 31, 1998, respectively, the referensech Section to the parallel interim consoliddiaancial statements for and as of the
end of the six months ended June 30, 1991 shalebmed to be a reference to the parallel interinsaldated financial statements for and as
of the end of the second fiscal quarter of thealigear beginning January 1, 1998, and the refeeimcthe last sentence of Section 4.05 o
Credit Agreement to June 30, 1991 and Decembet @) shall be deemed to be references to Juned98,dnd December 31, 1997,
respectively; and the reference in Section 4.1ihefCredit Agreement to December 31, 1990 shalldmmned to be a reference to December
31, 1998.

5. Effectiveness of Amendment. This Amendment dbalkffective from and after the Effective Date migatisfaction of the conditions
precedent referred to herein.

6. Effect of Amendment. The Credit Agreement, asmaaed by this Amendment, is in all respects ratjfapproved and confirmed and shall,
as so amended, remain in full force and effect.

7. Governing Law. This Amendment shall be deemdukta contract under the laws of the State of Newkand for all purposes shall be
governed by, construed and enforced in accordaitbetive laws of the State of New York, without redjéo principles of conflicts of law.

8. Counterparts. This Amendment may be executagiymumber of counterparts and by the differentigghereto on separate counterparts,
each of which, when so executed, shall be deemexiiginal, but all such counterparts shall congtitout one and the same instrum:



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exettliss Amendment as of the date first above written

CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION
By /sl Gary Benschip

Title Tr easurer

MELLON BANK, N.A., individually and as Agent

By /sl David N. Snmith

Title Vi ce President

PNC BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

By /'s/ Judy B. Land

Title Vi ce President
THE BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA

By /sl Brian Allen

Title Seni or Rel ati onshi p Manager



Exhibit 4(iii)
THIRD AMENDMENT TO SHORT TERM CREDIT AGREEMENT

THIS THIRD AMENDMENT TO SHORT TERM CREDIT AGREEMENTdated as of October 23, 1998 (this "Amendmeby/)and
between CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION, a Delaware ooafion (the "Borrower"), the lenders parties hefedvm time to time (the
“Lenders", as defined further below), and MELLONBWK, N.A., a national banking association, as agenthe Lenders hereunder (in such
capacity, together with its successors in suchagpahe "Agent");

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Borrower, the Lenders and the Ageatparties to a Short Term Credit Agreement, daseaf ©ctober 29, 1994 (as
amended, the "Credit Agreement"), pursuant to wthehLenders have made Loans to the Borrower; and

WHEREAS, the Borrower has requested the Lendeestiend the Expiration Date to October 22, 1999; and
WHEREAS, the Lenders are willing to so extend thpiEation Date upon the terms and conditions haféén set forth; and
WHEREAS, capitalized terms used herein and notrafise defined shall have the meanings assignétktm in the Credit Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises ainthe mutual covenants herein contained, arahdihg to be legally bound here
the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Extension of Expiration Date. The date "Octad@r1998" appearing in the definition of the tefxpiration Date" in Section 1.01 of the
Credit Agreement is hereby amended to be "Octobet 299"

2. Conditions Precedent. The effectiveness ofAni@ndment is subject to the accuracy as of the luateof of the representations and
warranties herein contained, to the performancehbyBorrower of its obligations to be performedewrder on or before the date hereof and
to the satisfaction, on or before October 23, 1@88 date of such satisfaction being referred teineas the "Effective Date"), of the
following further conditions precedent:

(a) Amendment. Each Lender shall have receiveduategpart of this Amendment, duly executed by toer@®wer.

(b) Representations and Warranties; Events of Dtedad Potential Defaults. The representationsvaaidtanties contained in Section 3 hereof
shall be true and correct on and as of the Effediate with the same effect as though made on aflsuch date. On the Effective Date, no
Event of Default and no Potential Default shalldaecurred and be continuing or shall exist orlsi@lur or exist after giving effect to this
Amendment and the transactions contemplated heBybgxecution of this Amendment, the Borrower dixsito the Lenders that (a) the
representations and warranties set forth in Se&ibareof are true and correct on and as of sutehadtal (b) on such date no Event of Default
or Potential Default has occurred and is continaingxists or will occur or exist after giving efte¢o this Amendment and the transactions
contemplated hereby.

3. Representations and Warranties. The Borrowatlyerepresents and warrants to the Agent and thddre that the representations and
warranties set forth in the Credit Agreement, asrated by this Amendment, are true and correct draarof the date hereof as if made on
and as of the date hereof, and that no Event cdudedr Potential Default has occurred and is cwritig or exists on and as of the date hel
provided, however, that, for purposes of the fonegioall references in the Credit Agreement tos'thgreement” shall be deemed to be
references to this Amendment and the Credit Agreg¢ime amended by this Amendment.

4. Effectiveness of Amendment. This Amendment dimkkffective from and after the Effective Date migatisfaction of the conditions
precedent referred to herein.

5. Effect of Amendment. The Credit Agreement, asaaed by this Amendment, is in all respects ratjfapproved and confirmed and shall,
as so amended, remain in full force and effect.

6. Governing Law. This Amendment shall be deemdakta contract under the laws of the State of Newkand for all purposes shall be
governed by and construed and enforced in accoedaith the laws of said State.

7. Counterparts. This Amendment may be executagiymumber of counterparts and by the differentigghereto on separate counterparts,
each of which, when so executed, shall be deemexdiiginal, but all such counterparts shall congtitout one and the same instrum



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exettliss Amendment as of the date first above written

CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION
By /sl Gary Benschip

Title Tr easurer

MELLON BANK, N.A., individually and as Agent

By /'s/ David N. Smith

Title Vi ce President

PNC BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

By /'s/ Judy B. Land

Title Vi ce President
THE BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA

By /sl Brian Allen

Title Seni or Rel ati onshi p Manager



FOURTH AMENDMENT TO SHORT TERM CREDIT AGREEMENT

THIS FOURTH AMENDMENT TO SHORT TERM CREDIT AGREEMEN dated as of December 28, 1998 (this "Amendmehyand
between CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION, a Delaware ocaion (the "Borrower"), the lenders parties hefebm time to time (the
"Lenders", as defined further below), and MELLONBIK, N.A., a national banking association, as agenthe Lenders hereunder (in such
capacity, together with its successors in suchagpahe "Agent");

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Borrower, the Lenders and the Ageatparties to a Short Term Credit Agreement, daseaf ©ctober 29, 1994 (as
amended, the "Credit Agreement"), pursuant to wthehLenders have made Loans to the Borrower; and

WHEREAS, the Borrower has requested the Lendeasiend certain provisions of the Credit Agreemendttaradd certain terms thereto; ¢
WHEREAS, the Lenders are willing to amend the Gradreement upon the terms and conditions hereinaft forth; and
WHEREAS, capitalized terms used herein and notratise defined shall have the meanings assigneuktn in the Credit Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises @fithe mutual covenants herein contained, arehiihg to be legally bound here
the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Amendments to Credit Agreement. The Credit Agrest is hereby amended as follows:
1.1 Section 1.01 is hereby amended as follows:
(i) The following definitions shall be added ther@t the proper alphabetical order:

"As-Offered Rate" shall have the meaning set forth
Section 2.04(a) hereof.

"Dollar Equivalent Amount" of any Revolving Crediban shall mean (a) with respect to a RevolvingdZfeoan denominated in an Other
Currency, an amount equal to the amount of Dotlaais the amount of such Other Currency (equal égotimcipal amount of such Revolving
Credit Loan) could purchase at 12:00 p.m., noottsiRirgh time, on the date of determination, bag®sh the quoted spot rates of the Agent,
at which its applicable branch or office offersstachange Dollars for such currency in the foreigchange market and (b) with respect to a
Revolving Credit Loan denominated in US Currenecyamount in Dollars equal to the principal amourguch Revolving Credit Loan.

"Other Currency" shall mean British Pounds, SwismEs, Belgium Francs, French Francs, Italian [Garman Marks, Eurodollars,
Singapore Dollars, Dutch Guilders, Denmark Krond any freely available currency that is freely sfemable and freely convertible into
Dollars and requested by the Borrower and acceptabdll of the Lenders and to the Agent.

"Subsidiary Borrower" shall mean Curtiss-Wrightghli Systems, Inc., a Delaware corporation; Metadrbmement Company, Inc., a
Delaware corporation; Curtiss-Wright Flow Contrar@oration, a New York corporation; Curtiggright Flow Control Service Corporation
Delaware corporation; Curtiss-Wright Foreign S&esp., a Barbados corporation; Curtiss-Wright Rli§histems Europe A/S, a Danish
corporation. Subsidiary Borrower shall also incl@deCurtiss-Wright Antriebstechnik GmbH, upon ftgmation as a wholly owned
subsidiary of Curtiss-Wright Corporation, and 8i)G Antriebstechnik Ag, upon the consummation ef plurchased of its issued and
outstanding capital stock by Curtiss-Wright Corpimraor a wholly owned subsidiary of Curtiss-Wrigborporation.

"US Currency" shall mean Dollars.
(i) The following definitions set forth in Sectidh01 shall be amended as follows:

"Loan Documents" shall be amended by adding "Gharanty" in the first line thereof after "the N&tend before "the Transfer
Supplements".

1.2 Article Il is deleted in its entirety and Attgcll shall be amended and restated, as attachretbhes Annex A.
1.3 A new Section 8.03 is hereby added:

"8.03. Judgment Currency. If any Lender or the Agdnains a judgment against the Borrower in are©@urrency, the obligations of the
Borrower in respect of any sum adjudged to be dwath Lender or the Agent hereunder or under thwRing Credit Notes (the "Judgment
Amount") shall be discharged only to the extent,tha the Business Day following receipt by suchder or the Agent of the Judgment
Amount in such Other Currency, such Lender or Agerdccordance with normal banking procedures;imses Dollars with the Judgm



Amount in such Other Currency. If the amount ofIBxa so purchased is less than the amount of Bdlteat could have been purchased with
the Judgment Amount on the date or dates the Juatghmeount was originally due and owing to the Lersder the Agent hereunder or under
the Revolving Credit Notes (the "Original Due Daté&xcluding the portion of the Judgment Amountethinas accrued as a result of the
failure of the Borrower to pay the sum originallyedhereunder or under the Revolving Credit Notesmihwas originally due hereunder or
under the Revolving Credit Notes) (the "Loss"), Bwrower agrees, to indemnify such Lender or tgem, as the case may be, against the
Loss, and if the amount of Dollars so purchase@eds the amount of Dollars that could have beechaigsed with the Judgment Amount on
the Original Due Date, such Lender or the Ageneagito remit such excess to the Borrower."

2. Conditions Precedent. The effectiveness ofAni@ndment is subject to the accuracy as of the luteof of the representations and
warranties herein contained, to the performancthbyBorrower of its obligations to be performedéwarder on or before the date hereof and
to the satisfaction, on or before December 28, {888date of such satisfaction being referredet@im as the "Effective Date"), of the
following further conditions precedent:

(a) Amendment. Each Lender shall have receiveduategpart of this Amendment, duly executed by toer@®wer.

(b) Representations and Warranties; Events of Dtedad Potential Defaults. The representationsvaaigtanties contained in Section 3 hereof
shall be true and correct on and as of the EffedDate with the same effect as though made onswoflsuch date. On the Effective Date, no
Event of Default and no Potential Default shalléaecurred and be continuing or shall exist andl skaur or exist after giving effect to this
Amendment and the transactions contemplated he@@tyhe Effective Date, there shall have been dedig to the Agent a certificate, dated
the Effective Date and signed on behalf of the Boer by the President, Treasurer or chief finanaffiter of the Borrower, that (a) the
representations and warranties set forth in Se&ibareof are true and correct on and as of sutehadtel (b) on such date no Event of Default
or Potential Default has occurred and is continaingxists or will occur or exist after giving etdo this Amendment and the transactions
contemplated hereby.

(c) Proceedings and Incumbency. On the Effectivie[xhere shall have been delivered to the Agettit an original counterpart for each
Lender a certificate, dated the Effective Date sigded on behalf of the Borrower by the SecretagoAssistant Secretary of the Borrower,
certifying as to (i) true copies of the articlesmmforporation and bylaws of the Borrower as ireeffon such date (or a certificate of the
Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Borrowehé¢oeffect that there have been no changes inatickes of incorporation or bylaws from
the forms thereof previously delivered to the Agamd the Lenders or, if there have been any suahggs, attaching copies thereof), (ii) true
copies of all corporate action taken by the Bornokedative to this Amendment and (iii) the namesetsignatures and incumbency of the
officer or officers of the Borrower authorized teeeute and deliver this Amendment and the otheuhents and instrument to be executed
and delivered under the Credit Agreement, as anteheeeby. The Agent shall be entitled to conclugively on such certificate unless and
until a later certificate revising the prior ceitdte has been furnished to the Agent.

(d) Opinions of Counsel. On the Effective Dateyéhghall have been delivered to the Agent writtgimions, dated the Effective Date, of the
General Counsel to the Borrower in form and sulestaatisfactory to the Agent and as to such matteident to the transactions
contemplated hereby as the Agent may reasonablyestq

(e) Details, Proceedings and Documents. All legéhits and proceedings in connection with the tatisns contemplated by this
Amendment shall be satisfactory to the Lenders, andhe Effective Date, the Agent shall have nesgtiall such counterpart originals or
certified or other copies of such documents andg®dings in connection with such transactionspimfand substance satisfactory to the
Agent and the Lenders, as the Agent or any Lendgrneasonably request.

3. Representations and Warranties. The Borrowetlyarepresents and warrants to the Agent and thddre that the representations and
warranties set forth in the Credit Agreement, asmatted by this Amendment, are true and correct draarof the date hereof as if made on
and as of the date hereof, and that no Event cdldedr Potential Default has occurred and is cwritig or exists on and as of the date hel
provided, however, that, for purposes of the fonegioall references in the Credit Agreement tos'thgreement” shall be deemed to be
references to this Amendment and the Credit Agre¢me amended by this Amendment.

4. Effectiveness of Amendment. This Amendment diakffective from and after the Effective Date mgatisfaction of the conditions
precedent referred to herein.

5. Effect of Amendment. The Credit Agreement, asaaed by this Amendment, is in all respects ratjfapproved and confirmed and shall,
as so amended, remain in full force and effect.

6. Governing Law. This Amendment shall be deemdakta contract under the laws of the State of Newkand for all purposes shall be
governed by, construed and enforced in accordaitbetle laws of the State of New York, without redjéo principles of conflicts of law.

7. Counterparts. This Amendment may be executesiymumber of counterparts and by the differentigmhereto on separate counterparts,
each of which, when so executed, shall be deemexdiiginal, but all such counterparts shall contitout one and the same instrum



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exettliss Amendment as of the date first above written

CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION
By /sl Gary Benschip

Title Tr easurer

MELLON BANK, N.A., individually and as Agent

By /'s/ David N. Smith

Title Vi ce President

PNC BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

By /'s/ Judy B. Land

Title Vi ce President
THE BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA

By /sl Brian Allen

Title Seni or Rel ati onshi p Manager



CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION

Subsidiary Note

$ Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania ,

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned, [INSERT PROPERME OF SUBSIDIARY] (the "Borrower"), promises fimy to the order of
[INSERT PROPER NAME OF THE LENDER] (the "Lender'h or before the Expiration Date (as defined inAlgeeement referred to
below), and at such earlier dates as may be ratjbiresuch Agreement, the lesser of (i) the priricipan of ($ ) or (ii) the aggregate

unpaid principal amount of all Revolving Credit Insamade by the Lender to the Borrower from timgnh@ pursuant to the Agreement. The
Borrower further promises to pay to the order @flitlender interest on the unpaid principal amoungdigfrom time to time outstanding at the
rate or rates per annum determined pursuant tdgheement, payable on the dates set forth in thedgent.

This Note is one of the "Subsidiary Notes" as mefito in, and is entitled to the benefits of, 8r@rt Term Credit Agreement, dated as of
October 29, 1994, as amended, by and among theBerythe Lenders parties thereto from time to fithe Issuing Banks from time to time
thereunder, and Mellon Bank, N.A., as Agent (assdmae may be amended, modified or supplementedtfreento time, the "Agreement”),
which among other things provides for the acceilenatf the maturity hereof upon the occurrenceastain events and for prepayments in
certain circumstances and upon certain terms anditions. Terms defined in the Agreement have #mesmeanings herein.

The Borrower hereby expressly waives presentmematd, notice, protest and all other demands aticksan connection with the delivel
acceptance, performance, default or enforcemetiti®Note and the Agreement, and an action for antsodue hereunder or thereunder shall
immediately accrue.

This Note shall be governed by, construed and eatbin accordance with the laws of the State of Nevk, without regard to principles of
conflicts of law.

[INSERT PROPER NAME OF THE SUBSIDIARY]
By:

Name:
Title:



Annex A

ARTICLE Il
THE CREDITS

2.01. Revolving Credit Loans.

(a) Revolving Credit Commitments. Subject to theneand conditions and relying upon the represiemsiand warranties herein set forth,
each Lender, severally and not jointly, agreesHagreement being herein called such Lender's "RiegpoCredit Commitment”) to make
loans in either US Currency or in an Other Curreftiog "Revolving Credit Loans") to the Borroweraaty time or from time to time on or
after the date hereof and to but not includingERpiration Date.

Subject to the terms and conditions herein, eacliéeagrees to make Loans to any Subsidiary Bomratvany time or from time to time on
or after the date hereof and to but not includheyExpiration Date. The Loans shall be made to Sudisidiary Borrower upon the
completion of the following conditions: (i) subn8tandard Notice under Section 2.03 hereof, (ii)ti€swWright Corporation executes and
delivers to the Agent a Guaranty and SuretyshipeA@grent in favor of Lenders in the form as attadiez@to as Exhibit B (the "Guaranty"),
and (iii) the obligation of such Subsidiary Borravte repay the unpaid principal amount of the Rew) Credit Loans made to it by each
Lender and to pay interest thereon shall be evilgint part by promissory notes from such Subsidgogrower to each Lender in
substantially the form attached hereto as Exhikith€ "Subsidiary Borrower Notes"). In the everatth Subsidiary Borrower becomes a
Borrower under this Section 2.01(a), all referertoe®Borrower" herein shall be deemed to includehsBubsidiary Borrower.

A Lender shall have no obligation to make any Rewgl Credit Loan to the extent that the aggregaitecjpal amount of such Lender's Pro
Rata share of the total Revolving Credit Loansngttame outstanding would exceed such Lender's RagCredit Committed Amount at
such time. Each Lender's "Revolving Credit Comrdiféénount” at any time shall be equal to the amaettforth as its "Initial Revolving
Credit Committed Amount" below its name on the atgine pages hereof, as either such amount mayteerereduced under

Section 2.02 hereof at such time, and subjecttuster to another Lender as provided in Sectioa Beteof.

(b) Nature of Credit. Within the limits of time amadhount set forth in this Section 2.01, and sulietihe provisions of this Agreement, the
Borrower may borrow, repay and reborrow Revolvirrgdit Loans hereunder.

(c) Revolving Credit Notes. The obligation of therBywer to repay the unpaid principal amount of Reolving Credit Loans made to it by
each Lender and to pay interest thereon shall inkeeeed in part by (i) promissory notes of the Barer, one to each Lender, dated the
Closing Date (the "Borrower Notes") in substaryidtie form attached hereto as Exhibit A, with thenks appropriately filled, payable to the
order of such Lender in a face amount equal to tecider's Initial Revolving Credit Committed Amouartd

(i) the Subsidiary Notes (the Borrower Notes dmel Subsidiary Notes are collectively the "RevolvZigdit Notes").

(d) Maturity. To the extent not due and payabldieaithe Revolving Credit Loans shall be due aaggble on the Expiration Date.
2.02. Fees; Reduction of the Committed Amounts.

(a) Commitment Fee. The Borrower shall pay to tigent for the account of each Lender a commitmenttfee "Commitment Fee") equal to
0.125% per annum (based on a year of 365 or 36§ daythe case may be, and actual days elapsedpdo day from and including the date
hereof to but not including the Expiration Date,tba amount (not less than zero) equal to (i) dueider's Revolving Credit Committed
Amount on such day, minus (ii) the aggregate ppalcamount of such Lender's Revolving Credit Loamstanding on such day. Such
Commitment Fee shall be due and payable for theegieag period for which such fee has not been pgidn each Regular Payment Date,
(y) on the date of each reduction of the Revolamgdit Committed Amount (whether optional or mawdgf on the amount so reduced and
(2) on the Expiration Date.

(b) Reduction of the Revolving Credit Committed Aint¢s. The Borrower may at any time or from timeinoe reduce Pro Rata the
Revolving Credit Committed Amounts of the Lenderah aggregate amount (which may be zero) nottessthe sum of the unpaid
principal amount of the Revolving Credit Loans tteeristanding plus the principal amount of all Reimmy Credit Loans not yet made as to
which notice has been given by the Borrower under

Section 2.03 hereof. Any reduction of the Revolv@rgdit Committed Amounts shall be in an aggregateunt which is a minimum amount
of $5,000,000 and integral multiples of $500,00&r¢of. Reduction of the Revolving Credit Commitéedounts shall be made by providing
not less than 30 days' notice (which notice shairkevocable) to such effect to the Agent. Aftex tlate specified in such notice the
Revolving Credit Commitment Fee shall be calculatpdn the Revolving Credit Committed Amounts asextuced. Upon reduction of the
Revolving Credit Committed Amounts to zero, paymarfull of all Loans, this Agreement shall be témated. After the date specified in
such notice the Commitment Fee shall be calculapesh the Revolving Credit Committed Amounts aseshiced.

2.03. Making of Loans. Whenever the Borrower dasihait the Lenders make Revolving Credit LoansBiveower shall provide Standard
Natice to the Agent setting forth the following amiation:

(a) The currency, which shall be either US Curreoicgn Other Currency, in which such Revolving @redans are to be mad



(b) The party making the borrowing thereunder;
(c) The date, which shall be a Business Day, orthvhuch proposed Loans are to be made;

(d) The aggregate principal amount of such propasehs, which shall be the sum of the principal ants selected pursuant to clause (e) of
this Section 2.03;

(e) The interest rate Option or Options selectectordance with Section 2.04(a) hereof and thecjp@l amounts selected in accordance
with Section 2.04(d) hereof of the Base Rate Poriiod each Funding Segment of the CD Rate Portidritee Euro-Rate Portion, as the case
may be, of such proposed Loans; and

(f) With respect to each such Funding Segment ¢t smoposed Loans, the Funding Period to applyth $unding Segment, selected in
accordance with Section 2.04(c) hereof.

Standard Notice having been so provided, the Agleall promptly notify each Lender of the informaticontained therein and of the amount
of such Lender's Loan. Unless any applicable cadgpecified in Article V hereof has not beens&id, on the date specified in such
Standard Notice each Lender shall make the proaefatisLoan available to the Agent (a) with regpeca Loan denominated in US
Currency, at the Agent's Office, no later than 02@lock Noon, Pittsburgh time, in funds immediatevailable at such Office, and (b) with
respect to a Loan denominated in an Other Curreatdipe Agent's London Office, no later than 120@fock Noon, London time, in funds
immediately available at such London Office. TheeAgwill make the funds so received available ®Borrower in funds immediately
available at the Agent's Office or London Office,the case may be.

2.04. Interest Rates.

(a) Optional Bases of Borrowing. The unpaid priatipmount of the Loans shall bear interest for elghuntil due on one or more bases
selected by the Borrower from among the interdst oations set forth below. Subject to the provisiof this Agreement the Borrower may
select different options to apply simultaneousldifferent Portions of the Loans and may selededént Funding Segments to apply
simultaneously to different parts of the CD RatetiBo or the Euro-Rate Portion of the Loans. Thgragate number of Funding Segments
applicable to the CD Rate Portion and the Euro-Rattion of the Revolving Credit Loans at any tismall not exceed five.
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percentage (expressed as a decimal, rounded upavtrd nearest 1/100 of 1%), as determined in daitld by the Agent (which
determination shall be conclusive absent manifeet)e which is in effect on such day as prescribgdhe Board of Governors of the Federal
Reserve System (or any successor) representingdReEnum reserve requirement (including, withoutitation, supplemental, marginal and
emergency reserve requirements) with respect mcetrency funding (currently referred to as "Eunmency liabilities") of a member bank
such System. The Euro-Rate shall be adjusted atitmatha as of the effective date of each changtenEuro-Rate Reserve Percentage. The
Euro-Rate Option shall be calculated in accordavitie the foregoing whether or not any Lender isuatly required to hold reserves in
connection with its eurocurrency funding or, if uggd to hold such reserves, is required to hadémees at the "Euro-Rate Reserve
Percentage" as herein defined.

The Agent shall give prompt notice to the Borrowed to the Lenders of the E-Rate determined or adjusted in accordance witl



definition of the Euro-Rate, which determinatiorapijustment shall be conclusive absent manifest.err

(iv) As-Offered Rate Option. A rate per annum (comegl on the basis of a year of 360 days and adayal elapsed) for each day equal to the
"As-Offered Rate" for such day. The "As-Offered &dbr any day shall mean such rate per annum gsheaffered by the Lenders in their
sole discretion to the Borrower from December 3®8lto December 31, 1998 (the "As-Offered Rate FagnBeriod") for such Funding
Segment as Lenders shall offer in their sole dismrewhich rate shall remain fixed for the duratiof such As-Offered Rate Funding Period.
Without limiting the discretion of Lender or thergeality of the foregoing, the As-Offered Ratedfifered) shall reflect Lender's fully
reserved cost of funds and shall include a marfjat teast 0.625%.

(b) Applicable Margin. The "Applicable Margin" feach interest rate Option for any day shall mearprcentage set forth below:

Interest Rate Option Applicable Margin
Base Rate Option 0

CD Rate Option 0.625%

Euro Rate Option 0.625%
As-Offered Option 0

(c) Funding Periods. At any time when the Borrogleall select, convert to or renew the CD Rate @ptiothe Euro-Rate Option to apply to
any part of the Loans, the Borrower shall specifg or more periods (the "Funding Periods") durifgclv each such Option shall apply, such
Funding Periods being as set forth below:

Interest Rate Option Available Funding Pe riods

CD Rate Option
30, 60, 90, 180 da ys or such
longer period as may be
offered by all of th e Lenders
in their sole discr etion ("CD
Rate Funding Period" ); and

Euro-Rate Option
One, two, three, six months or
one year or such lon ger period
as may be offered by all of
the Lenders in t heir sole
discretion ("Euro-Ra te Funding
Period");

As-Offered
December 30, 1998 t o December
31, 1998 ("As-Offere d Funding
Period");

provided, that:

(i) Each CD Rate Funding Period which would otheerénd on a day which is not a Business Day shakbended to the next succeeding
Business Day;

(i) Each Euro-Rate Funding Period shall begin droadon Business Day, and the term "month", whesdus connection with a Euro-Rate
Funding Period, shall be construed in accordantle pvevailing practices in the interbank eurodoftarket at the commencement of such
Euro-Rate Funding Period, as determined in godH fai the Agent (which determination shall be casite);

(iii) The Borrower may not select a Funding Periiodt would end after the Expiration Date; and

(iv) The Borrower shall, in selecting any FundirgriBd, allow for scheduled mandatory payments anelseeable mandatory prepayments of
the Loans.

(d) Transactional Amounts. Every selection of, asion from, conversion to or renewal of an interate Option and every payment or
prepayment of any Loans shall be in a principal amsuch that after giving effect thereto the aggte principal amount of the Base Rate
Portion of the Revolving Credit Loans, or the agate principal amount of each Funding Segmentefib Rate Portion or the Euro-Rate
Portion of the Revolving Credit Loans, shall besasforth below:

Portion or Funding Segment Allowable Aggrega te Principal Amounts
Base Rate Portion an integral multi ple of 500,000 of US Currency
or the Other Curr ency denominated by the

Borrower




Each Funding Segment of the an integral mul tiple

CD Rate Portion of 500,000 of US Currency or
the Other Currenc y denominated
by the Borrower

Each Funding Segment of the an integral multi ple of 1,000,000 of US
Euro-Rate Portion Currency or the O ther Currency denominated by
the Borrower

Each Funding Segment of the an integral multi ple of 500,000 of US
As-Offered Portion Currency or the O ther Currency
denominated by th e Borrower

(e) CD Rate or Euro-Rate Unascertainable; Imprabtiity. If

(i) on any date on which a CD Rate or a ERatte would otherwise be set the Agent (in the castauses (A) or (B) below) or any Lender
the case of clause (C) below) shall have determimgdod faith (which determination shall be corsdhe absent manifest error) that:

(A) adequate and reasonable means do not exiaséartaining such CD Rate or Euro-Rate,

(B) a contingency has occurred which materially addersely affects the secondary market for nelletieertificates of deposit maintained
by dealers of recognized standing or the interlmnbkdollar market, as the case may be, or

(C) the effective cost to such Lender of fundingreposed Funding Segment of the CD Rate PortidheoEuro-Rate Portion from a
Corresponding Source of Funds shall exceed the & the Euro-Rate, as the case may be, apm@italsuch Funding Segment, or

(i) at any time any Lender shall have determimedaod faith (which determination shall be conalasibsent manifest error) that the mak
maintenance or funding of any part of the CD Raidién or the Euro-Rate Portion has been made iatigeble or unlawful by compliance
by such Lender or a Notional Euro-Rate Fundingdeffih good faith with any Law or guideline or irgegtation or administration thereof by
any Governmental Authority charged with the intetption or administration thereof or with any resjugr directive of any such
Governmental Authority (whether or not having tbecgé of law);

then, and in any such event, the Agent or such éeraé the case may be, may notify the Borrowsuoh determination (and any Lender
giving such notice shall notify the Agent). Uportkuate as shall be specified in such notice (whiil not be earlier than the date such
notice is given), the obligation of each of the ders to allow the Borrower to select, convert toeaorew the CD Rate Option or Euro-Rate
Option, as the case may be, shall be suspendddhenf\gent or such Lender, as the case may bé,shee later notified the Borrower (and
any Lender giving such notice shall notify the Ajeaf the Agent's or such Lender's determinatiogaond faith (which determination shall be
conclusive absent manifest error) that the circantst giving rise to such previous determinatiotonger exist.

If any Lender notifies the Borrower of a determioatunder subsection (ii) of this Section 2.04{eg CD Rate Portion or the Euro-Rate
Portion, as the case may be, of the Loans of sedlér (the "Affected Lender") shall automaticaléydonverted to the Base Rate Option as
of the date specified in such notice (and accroeztést thereon shall be due and payable on sueh da

If at the time the Agent or a Lender makes a detetion under subsection (i) or (ii) of this Seati®.04(e) the Borrower previously has
notified the Agent that it wishes to select, comnveror renew the CD Rate Option or the Euro-Rgtéidd, as the case may be, with respect to
any proposed Loans but such Loans have not yetinade, such notification shall be deemed to profadeselection of, conversion to or
renewal of the Base Rate Option instead of the @ ®ption or the Euro-Rate Option, as the casebmawith respect to such Loans or, in
the case of a determination by a Lender, such Lofssch Lender.

2.05. Conversion or Renewal of Interest Rate Option

(a) Conversion or Renewal. Subject to the provisiohSections 2.09(c) and 2.10(b) hereof, unledsvaamt of Default shall have occurred .
be continuing, the Borrower may convert any paitof.oans from any interest rate Option or Optitmene or more different interest rate
Options and may renew the CD Rate Option or the@Rate Option as to any Funding Segment of the @f2 Rortion or the Euro-Rate
Portion:

(i) At any time with respect to conversion from tBase Rate Option; or

(i) At the expiration of any Funding Period withspect to conversions from the &dfered Option or conversions from or renewalshef CC
Rate Option or the Euro-Rate Option, as the caselreaas to the Funding Segment correspondingdio sxpiring Funding Period.

Whenever the Borrower desires to convert or rengpirgterest rate Option or Options, the Borroweallsprovide to the Agent Standard
Notice setting forth the following informatio



(w) The date, which shall be a Business Day, orclwitie proposed conversion or renewal is to be made

(x) The principal amounts selected in accordandk $ection 2.04(d) hereof of the Base Rate Poaimheach Funding Segment of the As-
Offered Rate Option, the CD Rate Portion and thefRate Portion, as the case may be, to be comvidm or renewed;

(y) The interest rate Option or Options selecteddoordance with Section 2.04(a) hereof and thecipél amounts selected in accordance
with Section 2.04(d) hereof of the Base Rate Portiod each Funding Segment of the As-Offered Rpt®@ the CD Rate Portion and the
Euro-Rate Portion, as the case may be, to be caiyemd

(z) With respect to each Funding Segment to be @oed to or renewed, the Funding Period selecteddordance with Section 2.04(c)
hereof to apply to such Funding Segment.

Standard Notice having been so provided, aftedéie specified in such Standard Notice, interesil S calculated upon the principal
amount of the Loans as so converted or renewegrdsiton the principal amount of any part of thariconverted or renewed (automatic
or otherwise) shall be due and payable on the asioreor renewal date.

(b) Failure to Convert or Renew. Absent due ndtiom the Borrower of conversion or renewal in tireemstances described in Section 2.05
(a)(ii) hereof, any part of the As-Offered Rateti®or, the CD Rate Portion or Euro-Rate Portionviitiich such notice is not received shall be
converted automatically to the Base Rate Optiotherlast day of the expiring Funding Period; preddhowever, that if any Euro-Rate
Portion is in an Other Currency, such portion shalfenewed automatically for one month on thedagtof the expiring Funding Period.

2.06. Prepayments Generally. Whenever the Borralesires or is required to prepay any part of itarlsg it shall provide Standard Notice to
the Agent setting forth the following information:

(a) The currency, which shall be either US Curreoicgn Other Currency, in which such prepaymetd e made;
(b) The date, which shall be a Business Day, orchvtiie proposed prepayment is to be made;

(c) The total principal amount of such prepaymaiitich shall be the sum of the principal amounteaeld pursuant to clause (c) of this
Section 2.06; and

(d) The principal amounts selected in accordantle $&ction 2.04(d) hereof of the Base Rate Podimheach part of each Funding Segment
of the As-Offered Rate Option, the CD Rate Portiod the Euro-Rate Portion, as the case may be, podpaid.

Standard Notice having been so provided, on the siacified in such Standard Notice, the princgmabunts of the Base Rate Portion and
each Funding Segment of the As-Offered Rate Opti@CD Rate Portion and the Euro-Rate Portioniipddn such notice, together with
interest on each such principal amount to such datdl be due and payable.

2.07. Optional Prepayments. The Borrower shall hagegight at its option from time to time to prgpes Loans in whole or part without
premium or penalty (subject, however, to Sectididgh) hereof):

(a) At any time with respect to any part of the 88&sate Portion; or

(b) At the expiration of any Funding Period witlspect to prepayment of the As-Offered Rate Optio&,CD Rate Portion or the Euro-Rate
Portion, as the case may be, with respect to artyopéhe Funding Segment corresponding to sucliriegpFunding Period.

Any such prepayment shall be made in accordandeSdttion 2.06 hereof.

2.08. Interest Payment Dates. Interest on the Base Portion shall be due and payable on each ReBayment Date. Interest on each
Funding Segment of the As-Offered Portion shallbe and payable on the last day of the correspgniérOffered Funding Period. Interest
on each Funding Segment of BB Rate Portion shall be due and payable on thel&asof the corresponding CD Rate Funding Periad] &
such CD Rate Funding Period is longer than 90 dalgs, every 90th day during such CD Rate Funding®elnterest on each Funding
Segment of the Euro-Rate Portion shall be due agédlge on the last day of the corresponding Eure-Randing Period and, if such Euro-
Rate Funding Period is longer than three montlss, e@very third month during such Funding PeriodeAmaturity of any part of the Loans
(by acceleration or otherwise), interest on suat gfathe Loans shall be due and payable on demand.

2.09. Pro Rata Treatment; Payments Generally.

(a) Pro Rata Treatment. Each borrowing and conmer@nd renewal of interest rate Options hereuntu@t be made, and all payments made
in respect of principal, interest and Revolving @ir€ommitment Fees due from the Borrower hereundemder the Notes shall be applied,
Pro Rata from and to each Lender, except for paysrarinterest involving an Affected Lender as pded in Section 2.04(e) hereof,
payments to a Lender under Sections 2.10 or 2.6ébheThe failure of any Lender to make a Loan Ishat relieve any other Lender of its
obligation to lend hereunder, but neither the Agemtany Lender shall be responsible for the failofrany other Lender to make a Lo



(b) Payments Generally. The parties agree thall(Bayments and prepayments of principal, inteaest other amounts in connection with
Loans denominated in US Currency and all fees $lgathade in US Currency and (i) all payments afgipal, interest and other amounts
(other than fees) in connection with Revolving Grédans denominated in any Other Currency shalhlagle in such Other Currency. All
payments and prepayments to be made in respednefpal, interest, fees or other amounts due ftbenBorrower in US Currency shall be
payable by 12:00 o'clock noon, Pittsburgh timettenday when due without presentment, demand, girotenotice of any kind, all of which
are hereby expressly waived, and an action thestfalt immediately accrue. Except for payments uiS#etions 2.10 and 8.06, such
payments shall be made to the Agent at its Officgd$ Currency in funds immediately available ats@défice without setoff, counterclaim
other deduction of any nature. All payments anghayenents to be made in respect of principal, istéfieees or other amounts due from the
Borrower in any Other Currency shall be payabld YO0 o'clock noon, London time, on the day whea without presentment, demand,
protest or notice of any kind, all of which aredigy expressly waived, and an action therefor simiediately accrue. Except for payments
under Sections 2.10 and 8.06, such payments shatldale to the Agent at its London Office in suchedCurrency in funds immediately
available at such Office without setoff, counteirtl@r other deduction of any nature. Any paymenp@payment received (i) in US Curret
by the Agent or such Lender after 12:00 o'clock NdRittsburgh time, on any day shall be deemedte tbeen received on the next
succeeding Business Day and (ii) in any Other Qurdoy the agent or such Lender after 12:00 o'ctamin, London time, on any day shall
be deemed to have been received on the next suogdguasiness Day. The Agent shall distribute toltbaders all such payments receive(
it from the Borrower as promptly as practicableafeceipt by the Agent.

(c) Default Interest. To the extent permitted by,lfrom and after the date on which an Event ofdb#fshall have occurred hereunder, an
long as such Event of Default continues to exighqipal, interest, fees, indemnity, expenses gra@her amounts due from the Borrower
hereunder or under any other Loan Document, skall interest for each day (before and after juddnpayable on demand, at a rate per
annum (in each case based on a year of 360 daysctunl days elapsed) which for each day shalbjpalgo the following:

() In the case of any part of the As-Offered Rottithe CD Rate Portion or EuRate Portion of any Loans, (A) until the end of dpplicable
then-current Funding Period at a rate per annuna@éte the rate otherwise applicable to such padt(B) thereafter in accordance with the
following clause (ii); and

(i) In the case of any other amount due from tloerBwer hereunder or under any Loan Document, 28¢a@khe then-current Base Rate
Option.

To the extent permitted by law, interest accruedeunrthis Section 2.09 on any amount shall compaumd day-by-day basis, and hence shall
be added daily to the overdue amount to which sutehest relates.

2.10. Additional Compensation in Certain Circumss

(a) Increased Costs or Reduced Return Resulting Fiaxes, Reserves, Capital Adequacy Requiremerpgrises, Etc. If any Law or
guideline or interpretation or application therbgfany Governmental Authority charged with the liptetation or administration thereof or
compliance with any request or directive of any &ownental Authority (whether or not having the foof law) now existing or hereafter
adopted:

(i) subjects any Lender or any Notional Euro-Rateding Office to any tax or changes the basisadtian with respect to this Agreement,
the Notes, the Loans or payments by the Borroweriatipal, interest, commitment fees or other amiswlue from the Borrower hereunder
or under the Notes (except for taxes on the ovamtlincome or overall gross receipts of such Lendsuch Notional Euro-Rate Funding
Office imposed by the jurisdictions (federal, statel local) in which the Lender's principal offimeNotional Euro-Rate Funding Office is
located),

(i) imposes, modifies or deems applicable anymasespecial deposit or similar requirement againstlits or commitments to extend credit
extended by, assets (funded or contingent) of, siepwith or for the account of, other acquisitiaisunds by, such Lender or any Notional
Euro-Rate Funding Office (other than requiremertgessly included herein in the determination &f @D Rate or the Euro-Rate, as the case
may be, hereunder),

(iii) imposes, modifies or deems applicable anyitedjpdequacy or similar requirement (A) againsteds (funded or contingent) of, or credits
or commitments to extend credit extended by, amdee or any Notional Euro-Rate Funding Office, By ¢therwise applicable to the
obligations of any Lender or any Notional Euro-Rateding Office under this Agreement, or

(iv) imposes upon any Lender or any Notional EuateR-unding Office any other condition or expenga vespect to this Agreement, the
Notes or its making, maintenance or funding of bagn or any security therefc

and the result of any of the foregoing is to inseethe cost to, reduce the income receivable byppose any expense (including loss of
margin) upon any Lender, any Notional Euro-Ratedtu office or, in the case of clause (iii) hereary Person controlling a Lender, with
respect to this Agreement, the Notes or the makiragntenance or funding of any Loan (or, in theecafsany capital adequacy or similar
requirement, to have the effect of reducing the cdireturn on such Lender's or controlling Peisoapital, taking into consideration such
Lender's or controlling Person's policies with exgo capital adequacy) by an amount which suctdeedeems to be material (such Lender
being deemed for this purpose to have made, maadair funded each Funding Segment of the CD Rat#oR and the Euro-Rate Portion
from a Corresponding Source of Funds), such Lendsr from time to time notify the Borrower of the anmt determined in good faith (usi
any averaging and attribution methods) by such eefghich determination shall be conclusive) tbeessary to compensate such Lel



or such Notional Euro-Rate Funding Office for siratrease, reduction or imposition. Such amountl ffeatlue and payable by the Borrower
to such Lender five Business Days after such nagiggven, together with an amount equal to inteoassuch amount from the date two
Business Days after the date demanded until sueltdte at the Base Rate Option. A certificate lmh diender as to the amount due and
payable under this

Section 2.10(a) from time to time and the methodadfulating such amount shall be conclusive absemifest error.

(b) Funding Breakage. In addition to all other amtsipayable hereunder, if and to the extent forraagon any part of any Funding Segment
of any As-Offered Portion, CD Rate Portion or ERate Portion of the Loans becomes due (by acciarat otherwise), or is paid, prepaid
or converted to another interest rate Option (wéietin not such payment, prepayment or conversiomaisdatory or automatic and whethe
not such payment or prepayment is then due), ayather than the last day of the correspondinglifgnPeriod (the date such amount so
becomes due, or is so paid, prepaid or convertgdglreferred to as the "Funding Breakage Datkg) Borrower shall pay each Lender an
amount ("Funding Breakage Indemnity") determinedbgh Lender as follows:

(i) first, calculate the following amount: (A) thgincipal amount of such Funding Segment of thenisoaving to such Lender which so
became due, or which was so paid, prepaid or ctedgtimes (B) the greater of (x) zero or (y) thterof interest applicable to such principal
amount on the Funding Breakage Date minus the Agiplé Funding Rate as of the Funding Breakage Dates (C) the number of days
from and including the Funding Breakage Date tortmitincluding the last day of such Funding Pertades (D) 1/360;

(i) the Funding Breakage Indemnity to be paid sy Borrower to such Lender shall be the amountlgqube present value as of the
Funding Breakage Date (discounted at the Applickbleding Rate as of such Funding Breakage Datecalcdlated on the basis of a year of
365 or 366 days, as the case may be, and actuaktiysed) of the amount described in the precadige (i) (which amount described in
the preceding clause (i) is assumed for purpossesaf present value calculation to be payable efatt day of the corresponding Funding
Period).

For purposes of this Section, the term "Applicafleding Rate" shall mean (i) in the case of angudation of a Funding Breakage Indemi
payment with respect to a particular Funding Sedrfa@rwhich the corresponding Funding Period wagioally one year or longer, the
Treasury Rate, and (ii) in the case of any calauabf a Funding Breakage Indemnity payment wipeet to a Funding Segment for which
the corresponding Funding Period was originallg ldmsn one year, the Euro-Rate.

Such Funding Breakage Indemnity shall be due agdlpa on demand, and each Lender shall, upon makicly demand, notify the Agent of
the amount so demanded. In addition, the Borrowall,son the due date for payment of any FundingaRage Indemnity, pay to such Lender
an additional amount equal to interest on such FgnBreakage Indemnity from the Funding Breakagtea but not including such due
date at the Base Rate Option applicable to the 4 ¢eaiculated on the basis of a year of 360 dagisaatual days elapsed). The amount
payable to each Lender under this Section 2.10l) be determined in good faith by such Lended such determination shall be conclus
absent manifest error.

2.11. HLT Classification. In the event that aftee date hereof the Loans hereunder are classsiad'aighly leveraged transaction" (an "H
Classification") by any Governmental Authority hagijurisdiction over any Lender, such Lender maitsrdiscretion from time to time so
notify the Agent, and upon receiving such notice Algent shall promptly give notice of such eventhi® Borrower and the Lenders. In such
event the parties hereto shall commence negot&timagree on revised Revolving Credit Commitmesgd: interest rates and Applicable
Margins hereunder. If the parties hereto fail teeagon such matters in their respective absolseretion within 60 days of the notice given
by the Agent referred to above, then the Requiuders may at any time or from time to time thesgafirect the Agent to (a) by ten
Business Days' notice to the Borrower, terminateRRvolving Credit Commitments, and the Revolvimgdit Commitments shall thereupon
terminate, or

(b) by ten Business Days' notice to the Borroweclate the Loans, together with (without duplicajiaccrued interest thereon, to be, and the
Loans shall thereupon become, immediately due agdlge without presentment, demand, protest or atbigce of any kind, all of which a
hereby waived, and an action therefor shall imntetliaaccrue. The Lenders acknowledge that an HLasS$ilication is not an Event of
Default or Potential Default hereunder.

2.12. Taxes.

(a) Payments Net of Taxes. All payments made byBtireower under this Agreement or any other Loaruoent shall be made free and
clear of, and without reduction or withholding faron account of, any present or future incomemptar other taxes, levies, imposts, duties,
charges, fees, deductions or withholdings, noweoe&fter imposed, levied, collected, withheld @eased by any Governmental Authority,
and all liabilities with respect thereto, excluding

(i) in the case of the Agent and each Lender, ireomfranchise taxes imposed on the Agent or sectdér by the jurisdiction under the laws
of which the Agent or such Lender is organizedror political subdivision or taxing authority thefew therein or as a result of a connection
between such Lender and any jurisdiction other thaannection resulting solely from this Agreemamd the transactions contemplated
hereby, and

(i) in the case of each Lender, income or franehéxes imposed by any jurisdiction in which suemder's lending offices which make or
book Loans are located or any political subdivisioraxing authority thereof or therein

(all such no-excluded taxes, levies, imposts, deductions, clsasg&ithholdings being hereinafter called "Taxef"any Taxes are require



to be withheld or deducted from any amounts paytbtee Agent or any Lender under this Agreemeratnyr other Loan Document, the
Borrower shall pay the relevant amount of such $a® the amounts so payable to the Agent or senbtdr shall be increased to the extent
necessary to yield to the Agent or such Lendeefgfayment of all Taxes) interest or any such adineounts payable hereunder at the rates ol
in the amounts specified in this Agreement andother Loan Documents. Whenever any Taxes are aildebBorrower with respect to
payments made in connection with this Agreememtngrother Loan Document, as promptly as possitdectifter, the Borrower shall send to
the Agent for its own account or for the accounswéh Lender, as the case may be, a certified cbag original official receipt received by
the Borrower showing payment thereof.

(b) Indemnity. The Borrower hereby indemnifies #kgent and each of the Lenders for the full amodsuezh Taxes and any present or fut
claims, liabilities or losses with respect to aulting from any omission to pay or delay in paysugh Taxes (including any incremental
Taxes, interest or penalties that may become payabthe Agent or such Lender as a result of aityréato pay such Taxes but excluding
claims, liabilities or losses with respect to dsisug from omissions to pay or delays in paymenttaitable to the act or omission of the Ag
or any Lender), whether or not such Taxes weresctyror legally asserted. Such indemnificationlidbe made within 30 days from the date
such Lender or the Agent, as the case may be, makitsn demand therefor.

(c) Withholding and Backup Withholding. Each Lendleat is incorporated or organized under the lafaang jurisdiction other than the
United States or any state thereof agrees thaiy prior to the date any payment is due to be ntadtehereunder or under any other Loan
Document, it will furnish to the Borrower and thgent

(i) two valid, duly completed copies of United ®wminternal Revenue Service Form 4224 or UniteteStaternal Revenue Form 1001 or
successor applicable form, as the case may bdyaegtin each case that such Lender is entitletbteive payments under this Agreement
and the other Loan Documents without deductionitithelding of any United States federal income taanad

(i) a valid, duly completed Internal Revenue SeeviForm W-8 or W-9 or successor applicable fornthasase may be, to establish an
exemption from United States backup withholding tax

Each Lender which so delivers to the Borrower dnr@dAgent a Form 1001 or 4224 and Form W-8 or WrSuacessor applicable forms
agrees to deliver to the Borrower and the Agentfuvther copies of the said Form 1001 or 4224 aowirPW-8 or W-9, or successor
applicable forms, or other manner of certificatias the case may be, on or before the date thaguaryform expires or becomes obsolete or
otherwise is required to be resubmitted as a cimdio obtaining an exemption from withholding tax,after the occurrence of any event
requiring a change in the most recent form pre\nodslivered by it, and such extensions or renewraseof as may reasonably be requested
by the Borrower and the Agent, certifying in theeaf a Form 1001 or Form 4224 that such Lendentiled to receive payments under this
Agreement or any other Loan Document without dédaatr withholding of any United States federaldnme taxes, unless in any such cases
an event (including any changes in Law) has ocdyprér to the date on which any such delivery wicetherwise be required which renders
all such forms inapplicable or which would preveath Lender from duly completing and delivering angh letter or form with respect to it
and such Lender advises the Borrower and the Aganit is not capable of receiving payments witheny deduction or withholding of
United States federal income tax, and in the chseForm W-8 or WO, establishing an exemption from United Statekijaevithholding tax

2.13. Funding by Branch, Subsidiary or Affiliate.

(a) Notional Funding. Each Lender shall have tgatrfrom time to time, prospectively or retrospeely, without notice to the Borrower, to
deem any branch, subsidiary or affiliate of suchdear to have made, maintained or funded any paheoEuro-Rate Portion at any time. Any
branch, subsidiary or affiliate so deemed shaltt@vn as a "Notional Euro-Rate Funding office." Blender shall deem any part of the
Euro-Rate Portion of the Loans or the funding tfaareo have been transferred to a different Notidiro-Rate Funding Office if such
transfer would avoid or cure an event or conditiescribed in Section 2.04(e)(ii) hereof or woulskken compensation payable by the
Borrower under Section 2.10(a) hereof, and if duehder determines in its sole discretion that duahsfer would be practicable and would
not have a Material Adverse Effect on such pathefLoans, such Lender or any Notional Euro-Ratedig office (it being assumed for
purposes of such determination that each parteoEtiro-Rate Portion is actually made or maintaimgdr funded through the corresponding
Notional Eur-Rate Funding Office). Notional Euro-Rate Fundinific@s may be selected by such Lender without mk¢@isuch Lender's
actual methods of making, maintaining or fundinghse or any sources of funding actually used byailable to such Lender.

(b) Actual Funding. Each Lender shall have thetrfgtm time to time to make or maintain any partted Euro-Rate Portion by arranging for
a branch, subsidiary or affiliate of such Lendemtake or maintain such part of the Euro-Rate PorBuch Lender shall have the right to (i)
hold any applicable Note payable to its order ffar benefit and account of such branch, subsidiaaffiiate or (ii) request the Borrower to
issue one or more substitute promissory notesamthicipal amount of such Euro-Rate Portion, ibssantially the form attached hereto as
Exhibit A, with the blanks appropriately filled, yeble to such branch, subsidiary or affiliate anthwappropriate changes reflecting that the
holder thereof is not obligated to make any addélid.oans to the Borrower; provided, that if a Lentequests the Borrower to issue one or
more substitute promissory notes in accordance oldtirse (ii) above, the amount of the Note payabkich Lender shall automatically be
reduced accordingly. The Borrower agrees to corppiynptly with any request under subsection (iijfo§ Section 2.13(b). If any Lender
causes a branch, subsidiary or affiliate to makeaintain any part of the Euro-Rate Portion hereunall terms and conditions of this
Agreement shall, except where the context cleadpires otherwise, be applicable to such part®fhro-Rate Portion and to any note
payable to the order of such branch, subsidiagffiiate to the same extent as if such part ofEeo-Rate Portion were made or maintained
and such note were a Revolving Credit Note pay@bseich Lender's order.

2.14. Extension of Expiration Date. (a) Extensibfxpiration Date. The Revolving Credit Commitmeiithe Lenders shall expire and st



be automatically reduced to zero on the Expirabate. Not later than 45 days and not sooner thasha§® immediately preceding the
Expiration Date then in effect, if the Borrower tves the Lenders to extend the Expiration Date ficadditional period (not to exceed 300
days) beyond the Expiration Date then in effea,Blorrower shall so advise the Agent in writing {(Bmtension Request"). The Agent shall
thereupon promptly notify each of the Lenders afhslxtension Request of the Borrower. Within 20dafyits receipt of such Extension
Request from the Borrower, the Agent shall notifg Borrower as to whether the Lenders have ageéal extend the Expiration Date and, if
S0, as to any additional or different terms on Whsach extension is conditioned (the determinaticiie Lenders as to whether to agree to
such extension and upon what terms being in thes ablsolute and unconditional discretion of eaaidee). If such notice contains any such
additional or different terms, the Borrower shalVse the Agent in writing within 5 days next folling receipt of such notice from the Agent
as to whether the Borrower agrees to such terntiseIBorrower notifies the Agent that it so agreedf the Agent's notice that the Lenders
have agreed to extend the Expiration Date contarsuch additional or different terms, the ExpoatDate shall automatically be extended
for the additional period requested by the Borrowfahe Agent fails to notify the Borrower withRD days of the Agent's receipt of any
Extension Request from the Borrower as specifiealas to whether the Lenders have agreed to sutelmgton Request, the Lenders shall
be deemed not to have agreed to such ExtensioneRequ

(b) If (i) any Lender notifies the Agent in writirthat it will not consent to such Extension Requedii) all of the Lenders have not in writing
expressly consented to any such Extension Regsgsbaided in the preceding paragraph, then thenAgieall so notify the Borrower and t
Borrower, at its option, may replace each Lendeckvhas not agreed to such Extension Request (aé¥tending Lender") with another
commercial lending institution reasonably satisfagto the Agent (a "Replacement Lender") by givimagice of the name of such
Replacement Lender to the Agent. Unless the Adeait ebject to the identity of such proposed Repiaent Lender prior to the date 5 days
prior to the then current Expiration Date, uponicefrom the Agent, each Nonextending Lender gtralinptly (but in no event later than the
then current Expiration Date) assign all of itenessts hereunder to such Replacement Lender imdeouee with the provisions of Section 8.14
(c) hereof. If, immediately prior to the Expirati@rate some, but not all, of the Lenders have agi@sdch Extension Request, and each
Nonextending Lender has not been replaced by the®er in accordance with the terms of this Sec8di(b), the Expiration Date shall
extended in accordance with such Extension Regpestided, however, that on the original Expiratidate (as such date may have been
previously extended), the total Revolving Credin@oitment shall be irrevocably reduced by an amegpial to the Commitment of each
Nonextending Lender. If all Lenders consent to sungh Extension Request (or, if any Nonextendingdees are replaced in accordance v
this Section), then as of 5:00 pm. New York timetloa then current Expiration Date, such Expirafdate shall be deemed to have been
extended for the period requested by the Borrowéhne related Extension Request.

2.15. Multicurrency Payments.
(a) Dollar Equivalent Amounts.

(i) Calculation of Dollar Equivalent Amounts. Upeach making and upon each payment of a RevolviegiClcoan denominated in an Ott
Currency, the Agent shall calculate the Dollar Eglént Amount of such Revolving Credit Loan, as¢hee may be, and shall provide wri
confirmation to the Lenders.

(i) Recalculation of Dollar Equivalent Amounts. dietermining the Dollar Equivalent Amount of thegyeggate Revolving Credit Extensions
of Credit of the Lenders, the Agent may use thpeetve Dollar Equivalent Amounts for the Revolvi@gedit Loans pursuant to paragrapl
of this subsection (a), unless such Dollar Equiviakemount so calculated exceeds 90% of the Revgl@redit Commitment Amount, in
which case the Agent shall recalculate the Dollgumizalent Amount of the Revolving Credit Loans daitgling no less frequently than once
each week. The Agent may recalculate the DollaiEdent Amounts of each of the Revolving Credit heas frequently as it determines to
do so in its discretion, provided, that such redaliton shall be made for all of the Revolving Gtéadans no less frequently than once each
week during any period when the aggregate DollarnEdent Amount of the aggregate Credit ExposurthefLenders exceeds 90% of the
Revolving Credit Commitment Amount.

(b) Unavailability.

(i) General. Subject to paragraph (i) of this @din (b), if, in the reasonable judgment of thgeAt, any Other Currency ceases to be
available and freely tradable in the London foredgmhange market, such Other Currency shall cease &an Other Currency. The Agent s
give prompt notice to the Borrower and the Lenaédrsuch event. In the event that (A) the Agentdietermined that an Other Currency has
ceased to be available and freely tradable in threlbn foreign exchange market and (B) the Agentletsrmined in good faith that such
Other Currency is not otherwise available to ther8wer, then, on the date any Revolving Credit Ldanominated in such Other Currency
would become due under the terms of this Agreerfaher than as a result of an optional prepaymedeuSection 2.07 or of the
acceleration of such Revolving Credit Loans undmtien 8.02), the Borrower shall repay such Revig\Credit Loans by paying to each
Lender an amount in Dollars equal to the amourgrd@nhed in good faith by such Lender (which deteation shall be conclusive absent
manifest error) necessary to compensate such Léodtre principal of and accrued interest on sRelvolving Credit Loans and any
additional cost, expense or loss incurred by suwanider as a result of such Revolving Credit Loarisgoeepaid in Dollars (rather than in the
denominated Other Currency).

(i) European Monetary Union.

A. Definitions. In this Section 2.15 and Articledhd in each other provision of this Agreement kicl reference is made in this
Section 2.15 expressly or impliedly, the followitegms have the meanings given to them in this Se&il5:



"commencement of the third stage of EMU" meanddtite of commencement of the third stage of EMUh@atdate of this Agreement
expected to be January 1, 1999) or the date onhwdiicumstances arise which (in the opinion ofAldeninistrative Agent) have substantially
the same effect and result in substantially theesaomsequences as commencement of the third st&déld as contemplated by the Treaty
on European Union.

"EMU" means economic and monetary union as contataglin the Treaty on European Union.

"EMU legislation" means legislative measures of Buegopean Council for the introduction of, changaaw or operation of a single or unif
European currency (whether known as the euro @retke), being in part the implementation of thiedtlstage of EMU;

"euro" means the single currency of participatirgmmber states of the European Union;

"euro unit" means the currency unit of the euro;

"national currency unit" means the unit of currefather than a euro unit) of a participating mendiate;
"participating member state" means each state stribed in any EMU legislation; and

"Treaty on European Union" means the Treaty of Rofridarch 25, 1957, as amended by the Single Eamopet 1986 and the Maastricht
Treaty (which was signed at Maastricht on Febrdard©92, and came into force on November 1, 1283amended from time to time.

B. Effectiveness of Provisions. The provisions afggraphs C to G below (inclusive) shall be effectt and from the commencement of the
third stage of EMU, provided, that if and to theemt that any such provision relates to any statéhge currency of such state) that is not a
participating member state on the commencemeitteofitird stage of EMU, such provision shall becafiective in relation to such state
(and the currency of such state) at and from the dia which such state becomes a participating reestate.

C. Redenomination and Alternative Currencies. Editgation under this Agreement of a party to thigeement which has been
denominated in the national currency unit of aipgrating member state shall be redenominatedtheceuro unit in accordance with EMU
legislation, provided, that if and to the exteratthny EMU legislation provides that following tbemmencement of the third stage of EMU
an amount denominated either in the euro or im#i®nal currency unit of a participating membettesiand payable within that participating
member state by crediting an account of the credda be paid by the debtor either in the euro amih that national currency unit, each p
to this Agreement shall be entitled to pay or repay such amount either in the euro unit or sud¢lonal currency unit.

D. Business Days. With respect to any amount denat@dl or to be denominated in the euro or a ndtmmeency unit, any reference to a
"Business Day" shall be construed as a referenaadtty (other than a Saturday or Sunday) on wiactké are generally open for business in
London and Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania and/or sugttigal financial center or centers in such partitimg member state or states as the Agent
may from time to time denominate for this purpose.

E. Payments by the Agent Generally. With respethiégpayment of any amount denominated in the euno a national currency unit, the
Agent shall not be liable to the Borrower or anytd Lenders in any way whatsoever for any delayh® consequences of any delay, in the
crediting to any account of any amount requiredhiy Agreement to be paid by the Agent if the Agsmll have taken all relevant steps to
achieve, on the date required by this Agreemeatpttyment of such amount in immediately availaloémly transferable, cleared funds (in
the euro unit or, as the case may be, in a natmmaéncy unit) to the account with the bank in phiacipal financial center in the participati
member state which the Borrower shall have spetffie such purpose. In this paragraph E, "all rete\steps” means all such steps as m:
prescribed from time to time by the regulation®perating procedures of such clearing or settlersgstem as the Agent may from time to
time determine for the purpose of clearing or segftbayments of euro.

F. Rounding and Other Consequential Changes. Withr@judice and in addition to any method of cosi@r or rounding prescribed by any
EMU legislation and without prejudice to the respexliabilities for indebtedness of the Borrowerthe Lenders and the Lenders to the
Borrower under or pursuant to this Agreement:

(i) each reference in this Agreement to a minimumoant (or an integral multiple thereof) in a natibaurrency unit to be paid to or by the
Agent shall be replaced by a reference to suclonedy comparable and convenient amount (or agiatenultiple thereof) in the euro unit
as the Agent may from time to time specify; and

(i) except as expressly provided in this Sectidtb2each provision of this Agreement shall be ecifio such reasonable changes of
construction as the Agent may from time to timec#igdo be necessary or appropriate to reflectiirduction of or changeover to the euro
in participating member states.

G. Increased Costs. The Borrower shall from timénte, at the request of the Agent, pay to the Adenthe account of each Lender the
amount of any cost or increased cost incurred bgf any reduction in any amount payable to ohim éffective return on its capital to, or of
interest or other return foregone by, such Lendemy holding company of such Lender as a resuh®introduction of, changeover to or
operation of the euro in any participating memtiates
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Curtiss-Wright Corporation, headquartered in LyndhuN.J., is a diversified multinational manufaatg and service concern that designs,
manufactures and overhauls precision componentsystdms and provides highly engineered servicdsetaerospace, defense, automotive,
shipbuilding, oil, petrochemical, agricultural eguoient, power generation, railroad, metalworkingl fire and rescue industries. The
Company employs approximately 2,050 people. Opmratare conducted through five manufacturing fiedi(four domestic and one in
Switzerland), 36 metal treatment service facilitmsated in North America and Europe, and four congmt overhaul facilities located in
Florida, North Carolina, Denmark and Singapore.
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INDUSTRY FOCUS

industry focus

In 1998, the aerospace industry faced record shifsraf new commercial aircraft while strugglingciope with the production strains created
by the rapid ramp-up of production volumes. Loomimghe background were order cancellations an&gl delays resulting from the
economic disruptions occurring in the Pacific Rmattthreatened to dampen production levels in da future. The current delivery schec
for aircraft with capacities exceeding 100 sealis ¢ar still higher levels in 1999, with some dieels expected beginning in the year 2000.
These out-year deliveries, while lower, are stjpected to be at profitable levels for the indusairyd the overall downturn is not expected to
be as severe as the one that began in 1991.

Throughout 1998, the larger airlines continuecei@tage their purchasing power, generating largersrto meet their longgrm requiremen
at the lowest possible prices from Airbus and Bgebriving the industry's performance continueséahe airlines, which, in general, rem
profitable. The economic outlook appears favorathle;,economies of North America and Europe appealthy, while the Asian market has
suffered a severe downturn. Some feel that thetvedithe Asian crisis is behind us and a recovetyile gradual, may have begun. The
current unknown is the impact of any downturn iutBoAmerica that may result from the recent dishmdes in Brazil.

While new aircraft production tends to produce dedchsurges in the industry, a stabilizing forceha tommercial area is the repair and
overhaul market. The total repair market is exptdegrow at a long-term rate of 2--3% per yeailisnowth reflects the outlook for
passenger miles, which drive maintenance needkelshort term, repair market growth may exceeslrtiite as the average age of aircraft
increases; however, as older planes are replacetémomic, noise and pollution regulation reasgnawth levels will return to long-term
expectations. For third-party maintenance provideich as Curtiss-Wright, growth should exceed dfh#tte total market as increased
outsourcing by airlines continues. Although airsirgtill perform most overhaul and repair activitieemselves, many appear to be refocusing
their attention on the basic services they prowide are beginning to accept that third-party vesdan more effectively meet their
maintenance requirements.

Military aircraft production is currently at lowvels. Procurement for existing models is, for theshpart, limited to purchases by foreign
governments. Procurement by the United States éticd=is at minimal levels, with most spending rediatio development activities. On a
positive note, production of the F-22 (Raptor) &hé2 (Osprey) has been initiated and should ramfoupgher levels in the foreseeable
future.

To summarize the state of the aerospace indukimgetmarkets in which Curtiss-Wright participatesexpected to remain at healthy levels
overall. Commercial business will see some dedlines projected to maintain adequate levels. Cangrand repair activities will provide a
stable base with growth opportunities in increasetdourcing, and additional upside benefits aresetqul from the increased activity on the
military programs.

The stable revenue base that Curtiss-Wright hasldpeed as a supplier of valves and services tavtr&lwide nuclear power industry
became even more solid with a 1998 acquisitiomclieases our participation in new constructiorgprms in South Korea and Taiwan, wt
projects underway have progressed without disrapide continue to pursue business in China, whemggressive new construction
program for nuclear power plants is planned to rttezturrent power capacity shortage. Outside tiotear power market, the United States
proposed build schedule for nuclear submarinesa@odaft carriers, for which we are a valve supplig the strongest in recent years.

1 | Curtiss-Wright Corporation and Subsidiaries



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(In thousands, except per share data)

1998 1997
Performance:
Sales $249,413 $ 219,395
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and a mortization 57,726 51,383
Net earnings 29,053 27,885
Diluted earnings per common share 2.82 2.71
Return on sales 11.6% 12.7%
Return on assets 9.1% 10.1%
Return on average stockholders' equity 13.4% 14.4%
Research and development costs:
Corporation sponsored 1,346 1,877
Customer sponsored 7,669 12,403
New orders 232,217 259,260
Backlog at year-end 198,297 149,201
Year-End Financial Position:
Working capital $ 130,763 $ 132,751
Current ratio 29to1 44101
Total assets $ 352,740 $ 284,708
Stockholders' equity $ 229,593 $ 204,853
Stockholders' equity per common share $ 2253 $ 20.13
Other Year-End Data:
Depreciation and amortization $ 9,661 $ 9,097
Capital expenditures $ 10,642 $ 11,231
Shares of common stock outstanding 10,190,790 10,175,140
Number of stockholders 3,926 4,142
Number of employees 2,052 1,884
Dividends per Common Share $ .52 $ .505
[GRAPHIC OMITTED]
[The following table was depicted as a line grapkhie printed material.]
Sales/Backlog
(in thousands)
94 95 96 97 98
Sales $249,413
Backlog $198,297
[GRAPHIC OMITTED]
[The following table was depicted as a line grapthie printed material.]
Operating Income/Net Earnings
(in thousands)
94 95 96 97 98
Operating Income $36,347
Net Earnings $29,053

[GRAPHIC OMITTED]
[The following table was depicted as a line grapkhie printed material.]

Return on Equity
(percentage)

94 95 96 97 98 13.4%
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$ 170,536
33,462
16,109

1.58
9.4%
6.3%
9.1%

997
15,248
171,649
109,336

$ 115,417
3.7t01
$ 267,164
$ 183,363
$ 18.04

$ 8,946

$ 14,156

10,162,206
4,719






LETTERS TO STOCKHOLDERS

FELLOW STOCKHOLDERS:

In 1998 we continued to implement our strategieb&danced growth that we outlined in last yeamsual report:
| Growing our positions in the aftermarket segmenftsur businesses

| Increasing our role as a service provider

| Diversifying our customer base

| Diversifying the industries we serve

| Continuing our efforts to globalize the Company

These strategies are designed to enable us tovaabie financial objectives of 15% average anneeénue growth and 12% average return
on capital. While in 1998 Curtiss-Wright posted4&4lincrease in sales, for the last two years dessacreased at a compound annual rate of
21%. Our return on average capital (excluding @ashshort-term investments) in 1998 was 17%. We Isat our growth objectives at what
we believe to be realistically attainable levels@urtiss-Wright to strive for on a long-term basisile maintaining good profit margins.
Achievement of these objectives will result in gimogvvalue for Curtiss-Wright's stockholders. Thrbagt 1998, we pursued our strategies
through acquisitions, new product development, rmadket expansion, each of which is discussed iatgraletail on the following pages.

Our Acquisition Program Moved Ahead in 1998

In 1998, Curtiss-Wright completed three strategiguasitions, adding to each of our business opmmatiFocused acquisitions are an
important part of our strategy for growth. We hagtablished programs for each of our businessearenaktively pursuing acquisition
candidates. An important non-financial ingrediesetlaok for, not only in our evaluation of acquisiticandidates but also as a parameter in
selecting investments for internal development @ots, is that they make us a better competitorsapglier to our customers.

Among the benefits we look for in acquisitions teehnologies that will expand our existing capébsi. In many areas in which we do
business we want to control a broader scope afykeems we supply. We also want to add to ouriegiftase of products and services to
expand the value we can provide existing custon@us.customer relationships are excellent, andee& $o build upon this strength.

We completed three acquisitions in 1998, and bexafisur strong balance sheet and cash flow, Westled the year in a solid position to
finance additional acquisitions. Each acquisiti®aécretive to earnings and will contribute to lomg-term financial growth. With a focus on
new products, new markets and regional expansidrareed by our acquisition program, each of ouiness segments has entered 1999
better positioned for long-term success.

Growing Our Precision Manufacturing Products & Services Business

Curtiss-Wright has been a provider of shot-peemfiog services to put the curvature in wing skinsnfmst Airbus commercial aircraft. This
has resulted in an 18-year relationship with Briderospace (BAe), which supplies wings to the Aglgonsortium. This long-standing
relationship was continued in 1998 with a long-tewntract extension under which we will continugtovide forming and other services for
Airbus aircraft, including the new A340-600. In erdo meet the increased demand for these servieeare in the process of constructing a
new 170,000-square-foot facility on land providgdBAe that is adjacent to their plant in the Unitddgdom. The facility, which will

replace our current, smaller facility, is schedutetéecome operational toward the end of 1999.&tirhirbus projections indicate aircraft
deliveries increasing in 1999 as well as in ther p€DO0.

In addition to our new facility, we have been grogvour Precision Manufacturing Products & ServigdgPS) business through the addition
of other new facilities in recent years. Our expams
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has included three new operations in Europe inabietwo years, as well as another in the UnitedeSt In addition, Alpha Heat Treaters, in
York, Pennsylvania, was acquired in April of 19@8ir high level of activity reflects the growth oppmities we see for this business. We
plan to grow not only through the addition of ldoas but also by an expansion of the services weige.

In 1999, the performance of PMPS will include iesuly opened facilities, expanded production scheslat Airbus, and new contracts to
form wing skins on the Boeing 717 aircraft andrgdamilitary transport plane. The segment will adsatinue to benefit from acquisitions
such as the 1998 purchase of Alpha Heat Treatdphafgives Curtiss-Wright a presence in an impaféortheast industrial corridor and
contributed to our growth in 1998. As a consolidatbheat-treating facilities in industrial areaswand the world, and a greenfield developer
of shot-peening services worldwide, we intend totcwe gaining strategic, local presence in geduycatly diversified industrial and
aerospace markets.

We Have Reduced Our Exposure to Commercial AircraftProduction Cycles

While Boeing is an important customer and sourdeusiness, Curtisg¢right is not overly dependent on the company. \&eehtaken action
including acquisitions, that continue to grow oatuation and control products segments beyondaag/Boeing.

During this past year, we signed an agreement @fC-Marconi to develop a trailing edge flap drivtuation system for the Ayres
Loadmaster LM2000 cargo utility aircraft. We comtinl production work on the V-22 Vertical Take-Ofida_anding craft, which began
initial low-rate production in 1999. We are preparior initial production of the F-22 Advanced Tiaat Fighter. Of the three systems we
have on the F-22, the leading edge flap systenttmapleted the development and testing stages. fiiee programs for the main and side
weapons bay doors are well along in final testing.

Overhaul and repair operations are also poisedaw g 1999. During 1998, we expanded our busimgsairlines and cargo haulers, which
will contribute to next year's revenues. Additidpalve will be relocating our overhaul and repaisimess from our Shelby, North Carolina
facility to one dedicated solely to that operation.

Supplementing our internal growth efforts, the Axion and Control Products & Services segmenthaiiefit from the establishment of
Curtiss-Wright Drive Technology (CWDT), which waated with the acquisition of SIG Drive Technold®® in December. CWDT

designs and manufactures drives and suspensiansy$br armored military vehicles and tilting sysgefor high-speed railway car
applications. This new operation, which will remamadquartered in Neuhausen am Rheinfall, Switzéylgives us access to technology that
we will adapt to certain of our aerospace prodU€WDT does not currently sell into the North Amarncmarket. We view this as a longer-
term opportunity to gain acceptance of CWDT's potsiand technology in the North American marketplac

In light of the anticipated delivery slowdowns aieééng, and with our new military programs not expdado achieve full production levels for
a few years, we were faced with a period whereviigtivas not adequate to support two manufactuf@egities for our Actuation and Contr
business. This resulted in our decision to conatdidhe OEM manufacturing operations carried oouat-airfield, New Jersey facility into
our plant in Shelby, North Carolina. Restructurexgpenses affected our 1998 financial performancappyoximately $500,000 after tax, and
additional relocation expenses estimated at $10800after tax will be incurred in 1999. The condation, expected to be completed in the
third quarter of 1999, will result in longer-terrast efficiencies as our manufacturing capacity tdétter match our forecasted requirements.

Addition of Enertech to Our Flow Control Products & Services Business Segment

Our 1998 acquisition of Enertech fits into our FlI@ontrol Products & Services group. Enertech, headgred in Brea, California, expands
our product line and gives us services we are e/ ta offer to a greater variety of customers.rawh will help us diversify our Flow
Control operations, not merely beyond the nucleatainment area of ships and power plants, butéuinto commercial
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and industrial applications. We also expect thatabmbination of Enertech's sales and marketingrozgtion with our existing personnel v
strengthen our aftermarket products position asdltén an invigorated approach to current and newkets. Finally, we believe Enertech's
outstanding service organization will help us baildresence in the growing on-site service maetfaintenance and nuclear utility repair
operations, which are becoming increasingly impartmmponents of the domestic power business.

Internal development programs have opened thetdoather new applications. We will be looking tgpard our leakless valve technology
and use alternative materials for nonnuclear Nadychemical/petrochemical plant applications. Thigue nature of our designs lends itself
to extended life while requiring little maintenant®e have also recently supplied titanium valvesléztrical power plants for seawater
applications.

Conclusion

In 1998, we strengthened our Company, further dified our operations, and improved our positionlémg-term growth. As we move
forward, we understand the challenges and tasksugt address to capitalize on 1998's achievemémadurther recognize the market's
current valuation of our stock as disappointing hade initiated a stock repurchase program to dsirate our belief that Curtiss-Wright is
undervalued. We believe that achieving our goal4999 and in future years, will result in a grogviecognition of the value of this company
and greater value for our stockholders.

Nineteen ninet-nine will mark Curtiss-Wright's 70th year of opgoa. We are looking forward to this milestone, aaadding to the
Company's reputation, history and legacy. Stil,wark is far from complete. As we continue thisijoey we thank our employees and
stockholders for their continued support.

Sincerely,

/'s/ David Lasky

Davi d Lasky
Chai rman and Presi dent
February 2, 1999

[PHOTO OMITTED]
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW:

Net income for 1998 of $29.1 million, or $2.82 piduted share, was 4.2% greater than 1997 earmih$27.9 million or $2.71 per shai
Included in 1998 results were insurance recoversasell as the costs of consolidation related ¢omioving of manufacturing operations fri
our facility in Fairfield, New Jersey to Shelby, o Carolina. The net aftdax impact on 1998 net income of these items wasnafit of $1..
million, or $.13 per share. Earnings in 1997 inelddjains on the sale of property of $2.0 millior$0r20 per share. Absent these items,
earnings in 1998 were $27.8 million or $2.69 pershan increase of 7.3% over 1997 earnings oB$2ilion, or $2.51 per share.

Sales in 1998 of $249.4 million represented aneiase of 13.7% over 1997 sales of $219.4 milliotesSia 1998 benefited from the
acquisitions of Alpha Heat Treaters on April 30tiddEnertech on July 31st. Additionally, greaterquation levels for commercial aircraft on
the part of our customers increased the demanalfioproducts and services.

We made significant progress on two of our longatéusiness initiatives in 1998. These includedr#uiction of our reliance on the military
as a source of revenues and the expansion of ouics®perations. Growth in commercial operation§998, combined with a general
decline in military procurement, resulted in mdrart 83% of our 1998 revenues coming from commesciaices and less than 17% from the
military. Despite a military component of our nevagquired Curtiss-Wright Drive Technology and aasly pursuit of defense business, we
expect military sales as a percentage of our ltainess to be maintained at a relatively low leVbe mix of our sales in 1998 between
service and manufacturing operations maintainediahe same relationship experienced in 1997. @wice operations represented 64% of
our total sales versus 36% for manufacturing.

CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION
[GRAPHICS OMITTED]
[The following tables were depicted as pie chartthe printed material.]

Sales by Business Segment
Precision Manufacturing  43%
Actuation & Control 42%
Flow Control 15%

Sales by Industry

Commercial Aerospace 56%
Other 10%
Power Generation 10%
Automotive 6%
Marine 6%
Military Aerospace 5%
Transportation 3%
Agriculture 1%
Construction & Mining 1%
Oil & Petroleum 1%
Rescue 1%

Precision Manufacturing Products & Services

Precision Manufacturing Products & Services (PM&8)erienced its fifth consecutive year of improvaisén revenues and operating
income. This was accomplished through gaining nestamers, extending the range of products sendoeldyeographical expansion.
Particular strength in 1998 came from advancediegtpins for metal-treating services for aerospacgomers worldwide. We not only
provide shot-peen forming services for wings of awencial, business and military aircraft but alsmfsh metaltreating services to jet engi
manufacturers which have product going on all newratt being produced. We expect our aerospaceelbusiness in this segment to
continue to increase in 1999 over 1998 levels.

Operating results for 1998 were affected slighthtie start-up costs associated with four new ifaesl that opened in 1997 and 1998. These
service locations are now fully operational andeatgected to have improved performance in 1998)a&eting and sales efforts are carried
out to increase their customer base and saleslevel

In order to increase capacity to meet growing negliclemands, we will be relocating three of ourrafiens to larger facilities in 1999. The
metal treatment centers affected are our operaiiotie Chester, U.K. area, Belleville, Michigarhieh services the Detroit region, and
Bayonne, France. These expansions supplementltoatien in 1998 to larger quarters of our Lynn,ddachusetts facility. Although the
increased capacity will enhance our ability to nmettomer demands and take on additional busittes® will be some expenses incurred in
1999 related to these facility relocatio
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Having facilities in North America and Europe amuhgcing a broad industrial base, Curtiss-Wright baen able to participate in the general
economic expansions that occurred in those reg@wsr the long term there has been a reductiongrdependency of PMPS on the
aerospace sector as new facilities and customesslieen added. This expansion has provided therymity for considerable growth for tt
segment. Additional markets where new facilities ba established continue to open up, as the nuaitagplications for our services and
acceptance of the benefits of our treatment presdsoaden.

Actuation and Control Products & Services

Actuation and Control Products & Services (ACPS)canted for 42% of total revenues in 1998 but peeduunsatisfactory returns.
Throughout the year, manufacturing activities wanieen largely by the continued ramp-up to meetiBg's production schedules. We
continued to meet our delivery obligations desgiteramp-up. Although Boeing was a primary growtket for this segment, our overall
diversification efforts have expanded our otherifiess areas.

Our aerospace component and overhaul operatiomoeutto generate sales growth in 1998. We hawveased the number of component
parts on which we are qualified, and that numbev approximates 9,700, compared to about 7,000eatial of 1997. In 1999, as part of our
program to improve our manufacturing efficiencies, will be moving the repair and overhaul actidtigerformed at the Shelby, North
Carolina facility to its own dedicated location.erhew facility will be near our current locatiomdathe continuity of the labor force is
expected to remain intact.

In the fourth quarter of 1998 we began to constdidaur Fairfield, New Jersey manufacturing operetimto our facility in Shelby, North
Carolina. Administration of our military programdgsign engineering functions and testing will remiaiNew Jersey. The consolidation was
targeted to align our capacity requirements witmufiacturing activity levels. Thus we will improvelomanufacturing efficiencies from
current inadequate levels and allow Curtiss-Wrighte more competitive in obtaining future businéssharge of $0.5 million after taxes
associated with the consolidation was made inakeduarter of 1998. In addition, relocation exgsrare being recognized as they are
incurred during the moving process. In 1999, expsm@ssociated with the consolidation are expeotéatal approximately $1.6 million after
taxes. The consolidation is scheduled to be comgliet the third quarter of 1999.

[GRAPHICS OMITTED]
[The following tables were depicted as pie chartthe printed material.]
Actuation and Controls 1998 Sales Balance

Aftermarket 52%
OEM 48%

Flow Control Products & Services

In 1998, commercial revenues in this segment exagtdtbse from the military sector. This was largelyibutable to the acquisition of
Enertech in the third quarter. Aside from this éactommercial business increases were associateew greater involvement in foreign
nuclear plant construction and higher revenuesa@le upgrade programs at domestic nuclear poaedities. Our success in 1998 on
upgrade programs reflects our ability to developdsesolutions for our customers. Their decisianseplace already installed and fully
operational valves were driven by the improvedcedficies that our products provided. Success satea not only benefits current
performance, but increases the installed baserofalues, leading to future spare part and replacérsales.

Sales to the nuclear power generation industrizennited States provides stability to our salek@ofits, allowing the Company to address
the new construction market for nuclear plants ssas and the expansion of our domestic servicenza@n. The combined service offeri

of Enertech and our existing services will estdbéisstrong base from which we can increase ouepoesin this growing market. Investments
have been made both in building our service orgdina and in further developing diagnostic systémngrovide engineering, inspection and
testing services to the nuclear community.

Military sales were lower in 1998 as compared ®hor year because of the absence in 1998 ofadgograms related to improved valve
designs and the utilization of new materials fa thS. Navy, which benefited sales in 1997. Newess, in 1998 we continued to enjoy
considerable success in the U.S. Navy's nuclegrane, as evidenced by winning a significant nundfeontract awards. The forecasted
build rate for new submarines and aircraft carrigmsncouraging. We expect to be successful inimoinig to obtain the contracts we pursue
on these programs, enhancing an already solid éssinase. In addition, we intend to build uponk@se in naval sales by expanding beyond
products for nuclear applications to become a sepfur other shipboard requirements where oureédchnology and manufacturing
capabilities are applicable.

[GRAPHICS OMITTED]
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Flow Control 1998 Sales Balance
Commercial 62% Military 38%
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AT A GLANCE

Precision Manufacturing Products & Services
Products and Services

Among the approximately 50 services provided are:
| Aluminum/Nonferrous Treating

| Annealing/Stress Relieving

| Austempering/Brazing

| Blast Cleaning

| Carbonitriding/Nitriding

| Carbon Restoration/Carburizing

| Cryogenic Treatments

| Deburring

| Edge, Vibratory & Superfinishing

| Engineering & Field Services

| Fabrication of Machinery, Tooling, Parts & Supgli
| Fatigue & Physical Testing

| Flame, Induction & Precipitation Hardening

| Marquenching/Normalizing

| Nondestructive Testing

| Painting/Plating

| Shot-Peening

| Shot-Peen Forming

| Straightening

| Texturizing

| Vacuum Treatments

| Valve Reed Manufacturing

Major Markets

| Aerospace Manufacturers

| Automotive Manufacturers

| Metalworking Industrie



| Oil and Gas Drilling/Exploration

| Power Generation

| Jet Engine Manufacturers

| Agricultural Equipment

| Transportation

| Construction and Mining

Actuation and Control Products & Services

| Control and Actuation
Components and Systems

| Aerospace Overhaul Services

| Hydropneumatic Suspension Systems

| Electromechanical Drives and Systems

| Electrohydraulic Drives and Systems

| Rescue Tools

| Aerospace Manufacturers

| Commercial Airlines

| Military Air Forces

| Military Vehicle Manufacturers

| Railway Car Manufacturers

| Diesel Engine Manufacturers

| Rescue Tool Industry

Flow Control Products & Services

| Military & Commercial Nuclear/Nonnuclear Valvegigbe, gate, control, safety, solenoid and relief)
| Fluid Power Products and Systems

| Valve Overhaul and Repair

| Engineering, Inspection and Testing Services
| U.S. Navy Propulsion Systems

| U.S. Navy Shipbuilding

| Nuclear Power Plants

| Automotive Manufacturers



| Petrochemical/Chemical Industry
| Entertainment Industry
PRODUCTS

[PHOTO OMITTED]

Every product we manufacture at Curtiss-Wright megth the highest level of quality and performaneguirements. This is demanded by
the applications for which they are used.

We supply the actuators for controlling wing flapscommercial and military aircraft where depentitgtin harsh weather conditions and
temperature ranges is a necessity. We will be giogithe systems for operating the side and manasapons doors on the F-22 Raptor,
which in order to maintain its stealth qualitiessnhapen, deploy weapons and close in a time regeiné measured in seconds. This must all
be accomplished under the stresses generatedrirshagd flight.

Our flow control valves are used in nuclear envinents where the integrity of performance of thedpod must be unquestioned. As with
valves used in other applications, performanceitrolling and monitoring flows is important. Indition, our products must be able to
operate with absolutely no tolerance for leakage. t&chnology and designs fulfill these requirersent

The quality and performance requirements of oudpets reflect the engineering and manufacturingbgipies of Curtiss-Wright. Our
development, design and testing capabilities ailityatn manufacture to exact specifications witkry narrow tolerances allow us to maint
the high standards demanded and required by otoroess.

SERVICES
[PHOTO OMITTED]
Services represent an increasing proportion otatal operations and provide fertile opportunifiesfuture growth for the Company.

Our metal treatment operation is the largest seriicsiness in which we are involved. We providecad variety of metal treating services.
Our success in this business is attributable toge®es that improve our customers' products antdiedivered at a reasonable cost. Working
with our customers, we identify areas where oucgsses can enhance their products or provide sotutd existing problems. Our ability to
maintain these services is demonstrated by thdHattve have a satisfied customer base numbariegdess of 5,000.

In 1992 we began to expand our manufacturing afatizin components and systems for aerospace OEfdnass to provide maintenance,
repair and overhaul (MRO) services on not only gaducts, but also those produced by others. We bartinuously expanded our
capabilities and today MRO sales volume equalsdghptoducts we manufacture. We have recently &skeadl an MRO base for our flow
control business and we seek to be as succesgfubiving this segment as we have our other seavieas.

In order not to disrupt customers' manufacturingcpsses our metal treatment operations must beéabieet strict time requirements as well
as performance and quality standards. We have aulistrad this by establishing a network of regidiaallities that allows us to be close to
our customers. Quick turnaround time is also a majacern for our aerospace overhaul and repaiomess to minimize downtime of
aircraft being serviced. We established a new staha@then we provided seven-day turnaround on regairoverhaul for products that were
originally manufactured by Curtiss-Wright.

BENEFITS
[PHOTO OMITTED]

Curtiss-Wright plays an important role in thousaonfiproducts that touch people every day, in maaysvAs an example, most cars contain
component parts that we have metal-treated. Al@eosty large commercial aircraft has wing flaps apedt by our actuation systems or wing
skins that were formed by our processes. Elegtrisigenerated by nuclear plants that use CurtisgtWvalves.
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| Focused acquisitions are an

important part of our strategy for growth.

ACQUISITIONS

In 1998, we used our strong balance sheet to fsnanoeasured acquisition strategy. Through acouisitwe sought to increase the breadth
of our product lines, and to identify related maski®r our technologies. We looked to expand otwaoek of services to make Curtiss-Wright
more of a full-service provider in specific markéfgée sought to increase our technological expedtskto expand the markets we serve.

The acquisitions of Enertech, Alpha Heat Treai@nsl, Curtiss-Wright Drive Technology are excellanategic fits for Curtiss-Wright. The
capabilities they bring offer opportunities to dane to meet our growth objectives and grow stotddrovalue.

Enertech is a provider of advanced valves, engingg@rograms and services to the nuclear powersinguThe company also designs and
manufactures hydraulic systems for the automotigeentertainment industries. Enertech offers diatiadesting, predictive maintenance,
parts repair and rebuilding, training, engineeingl staff augmentation in technical areas. Enertentinues to operate with its original
management from its facilities in Brea, Califorraad Suwanee, Georgia.

Enertech, with annual revenues of approximately ®#kon, significantly strengthens our presencehia nuclear power market. Most
importantly, Enertech broadens Curtissight's product line and expands what we can ddHfe customer. Enertech also enhances our st
offerings to include engineering, inspection arediostic services.

The acquisition of Alpha Heat Treaters expandsnaiwork of heat-treating facilities by providingtong regional presence and a solid
reputation in York, Pennsylvania, a highly indwstred area. Alpha provides carburizing, surfageléaing, stress relieving, induction
hardening and black oxide surface treatment sesvitieese processes extend the life of industriapmments and prevent metal fatigue from
causing component failures and lost productivity.

Curtiss-Wright Drive Technology (CWDT) was estabéid via the acquisition of a subsidiary of SIG Swislustrial Company Holding LTD
that closed on December 31, 1998. CWDT is a leaplingider of high-technology solutions for drivel@ology applications to military
tracked and wheeled vehicles, railroad car levediyggems and marine propulsion. This Sviiased operation serves a growing customer
in Europe and Asia. Its addition not only introdsices into these new markets served by CWDT, botmisvides us with hydraulic and
electronic capabilities that we can apply to oupapace product lines. This expands ounause systems integration capabilities as a pre
of aerospace actuation systems.
acquisitions
Through acquisitions we plan to build a networlheét-treating facilities.
[PHOTO OMITTED]
Enertech increased our capabilities for servicimgrtuclear power industry.
[PHOTO OMITTED]
Technology applied to other markets can be intedratto our aerospace systems.
[PHOTO OMITTED]

[GRAPHIC OMITTED]
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| Internal development programs have

opened the door to other new applications.

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

Our internal growth strategies include the develepnof new products. New product development mosp@plish one of three objectives
for Curtiss-Wright:

expand a product or service line currently provitiedatisfy a need in a market we currently seméuice the costs of servicing our
customers; or apply an existing or modified prodarctechnology to a new market.

We currently have a number of initiatives undent@gxpand our product lines and increase the seofferings we provide in many of our
markets. Curtiss-Wright has been developing wiag fictuation systems for applications to typesrofaft with which we have not
previously been associated. This would includermss jets and cargo/utility aircraft. In the aeeasgpcomponent overhaul and repair areas,
we have expanded the number of parts we are eertidi repair to 9,700.

In Precision Manufacturing Products & Services,ame developing a new laser metal-treating techryotadled Lasershot(TM) Peening. This
process will be used in lieu of traditional shoepmg for selected areas where increased compeestsasses are required. Lasershot(TM)
Peening extends the benefits of compressive str@sseh deeper into the surface of metal than cledrehot-peening.

Within our Flow Control Products & Services segmeve are developing products that apply our vadodhology to areas beyond our
traditional applications. We believe that opporti@si exist in all of our current markets:

the nuclear navy, power generation and processirids. An example of such an opportunity relabasaval ships. We want to expand our
valve applications beyond the nuclear containmesdas We are working to respond to two specifialsed the United States Navy. The first
is a requirement to lower shipboard manning levEtisough the development of "smart valves," whioh self-monitoring and regulating,
manual requirements can be significantly reducee.ar¢ developing such products through the usetbfibternal resources and teaming
arrangements where appropriate. We are also respptudanother need, which is to provide titaniuatves that have greater resistance tc
water corrosion and are made of materials more atityip with on-board piping systems. Success isdlaeas would expand our
opportunities with a customer with whom we have &dong-term relationship.

Flow Control Products & Services also has develap&isk-Informed Program that has been submittededNuclear Regulatory
Commission for review and approval. It is a prog@asigned to improve the inspection process fodagtjoints at nuclear power plants
resulting in reduced costs to electrical utilitifsve are successful in obtaining the Commissiapigroval, we feel that it has outstanding
potential as an additional service that CurtissgMrcan provide to our customers.

An example of expanding our existing technologgesdw products and markets has been the applicationr aerospace actuator gear
technology to the rescue market, which resultaetiénCurtiss-Wright PowerHawk(R) Rescue Tool--a picidve feel has significant
advantages over competitive alternatives. In 1988¢continued to expand the line of accessoriescdrabe used in conjunction with the tool.
Our line of PowerHawk(R) products now includes svpopusher ram for vehicle extraction and builddodapse situations, a
turboventilator/portable blower, and a portable ahinAlthough sales of our PowerHawk(R) line of prot$ have not grown as fast as
originally anticipated, based upon customer feekibae continue to believe that through persistear market education, the significant
advantages of our patented technology will makentedves apparent.

product development

New flow control products can expand our busineisis the U.S. Navy

[PHOTO OMITTED]

Our valve technology can be applied to new prodfmtsise outside the nuclear power industry.

[PHOTO OMITTED]

Our development work on laser technology illussatdy we are considered a technological leademfetal-treating applications.
[PHOTO OMITTED]
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| We will continue to enter new global markets argand the applications of our products, technegnd services.

NEW MARKETS

CurtissWright has been involved in the aviation indusince each of the original companies, the Wright @any and the Curtiss Aeropla
and Motor Corporation, began operations. Througl@uutiss-Wright's 69-year history, we have beensgontforce in aviation and much of
our prosperity has resulted from the strength efabmmercial aviation market.

Many industry analysts are projecting a slowdowthimaerospace industry. As we look to the futwesare seeking to continue to expand
diversified base to new markets for added balan@it growth and to offset the effect the aviafimustry's cyclical nature has had on our
financial performance. In diversifying, we seeletgand our current capabilities in metal treatnaat flow control and in applying aviation
technology to other industries, to increase ourketashare in our existing product lines, and tetstr our geographic reach. The acquisitions
we made in 1998 were steps toward more diversgfieath.

The acquisition of Enertech gives Curtiss-Wrightess to new markets--we move outside the nucledgaitonent area into the entire plant
and increase our service capabilities. These oppitigs will broaden our exposure to the entirel@aicpower industry. Our Flow Control
Products & Services business was also enhancedheitaward of contracts to supply valves for nucpeaver plant construction in Eastern
Asia. This success reflects the design capabilitie3urtiss-Wright and gives us the ability to pepate in new nuclear plant construction in
Asian markets.

Enertech also provides us with a presence in teggdemanufacture and distribution of fluid poweogucts and systems. Enertech currently
conducts activities in the automotive and entent&int industries and looks to potentially expandifiplications to serve existing needs in
other markets.

In our Precision Manufacturing Products & Serviopsration, we see significant opportunities for mearket development. First, the high
cost of shipping parts for metal treating and shamaround requirements create pressures to Ifacitéies near the original manufacturing
sites. To date, we have established 36 facilitiearsd the world, and we intend to continue incnegishat number. We seek to establish a
network of heat-treating facilities, while expanglithe number of shot-peening operations. In 19%8added Alpha Heat Treaters in York,
Pennsylvania. We have also opened three faciliti€urope in the last two years. Geographical egjmmis an emphasis for these businesses
as there are a number of attractive markets wherkave yet to establish a presence.

New market opportunities resulted from the acquisiof Curtis-Wright Drive Technology (CWDT). CWDT takes us intolitary vehicle
and railway markets. These markets are not tigdd@ommercial aircraft build cycle and should hedpdampen the effect of downturns in
that market on the Company's performance.

new markets
Global expansion will provide new opportunitiesags continue to enter new markets overseas.
[PHOTO OMITTED]
We will be increasing our presence in the growirayket for maintenance, repair and overhaul senategectrical power plants.
[PHOTO OMITTED]
A benefit of a 1998 acquisition is that we now haviétary vehicles and railway cars as new marlketshich to participate.
[PHOTO OMITTED]
[GRAPHIC OMITTED]
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QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (Unaudited)

(In thousands except per share amounts)

1998 Quarters:

Sales

Gross profit

Net earnings

Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per common share
Dividends per common share

1997 Quarters:

Sales

Gross profit

Net earnings

Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per common share
Dividends per common share

CONSOLIDATED SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA (Unaudited)

(In thousands except per share data)

Sales

Earnings before changes in accounting
principles

Net earnings

Total assets

Long-term debt

Basic earnings per common share:
Earnings before changes in accounting

principles

Net earnings
Cash dividends

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

First Second Third Four th
$60,846 $59,405 $62,603 $66,5 59
18,122 21,749 20,851 21,2 92
6,605 7,701 6,758 7,9 89
$ 65 $ 76 $ 66 $ 78
$ 13 $ 13 $ 13 % 13
$53,148 $54,412 $52,677 $59,1 58
16,644 19,125 19,002 20,9 18
4,955 7,050 8,076 7,8 04
.49 .69 .79 77
.125 .125 .125 13
1998 1997 1996 19 95 1994
$249,413 $219,395 $170,536 $154,4 46 $155,001
29,053 27,885 16,109 18,1 69 19,547
29,053 27,885 16,109 18,1 69 19,303
352,740 284,708 267,164 246,2 01 238,694
20,162 10,347 10,347 10,3 47 9,047
$ 2.85 $ 274 $ 159 $ 1 79 $ 1.93
$ 2.85 $ 274 $ 1.59 $ 1. 79 $ 191
$ .52 $ .505 $ .50 $ 50 $ .50

This annual report contains not only historicabimfiation but also forward-looking statements regr@xpectations for future company
performance. Forward-looking statements involvk &igd uncertainty. See the Company's 1998 AnnupbRRen Form 10-K for a discussion
of factors which could cause future results toatiffom current expectations.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Curtiss-Wright Corporation continued to post imprdwsales and operating performance in 1998. Satekd year totaled $249.4 million
reflecting a 14% increase over 1997 sales of $248l#bn and 46% above 1996 sales of $170.5 milli@perating income increased 21%
from $30.0 million in 1997 to $36.3 million in 192®1d more than doubled operating income of $15lkomifrom 1996. For the year, the
Corporation posted consolidated net earnings ofi$@8llion or $2.82 per diluted share, 4% above7186t earnings of $27.9 million or $2.
per diluted share and 80% above the net earnin§&@f million posted in 1996.

Sales increases for 1998, as compared with 199%, aghieved in all of the Corporation's businesrajing segments. Sales from Enertec
valve manufacturing and service concern acquireduiyn31, 1998, sales from Alpha Heat Treaters imedwon April 30, 1998 and an
expansion of Precision Manufacturing Products &/ess ("PMPS") operations, which added three aolai facilities, augmented this
increase. 1997 was also the first full year of apens for the overhaul and repair facility in Mietiat was acquired in mid-year 1996. In the
aggregate, acquisitions and business expansiomsduled sales of $42.3 million to the Corporati®898 total.

Net earnings for 1998 were, however, impaired leytigh level of additional charges for anticipaieskses on Actuation and Control Produ

& Services ("ACPS") segment military developmerdgyams, inventory adjustments and costs relatéltetconsolidation of its
manufacturing operations referred to below. Inabgregate, 1998 net earnings were lowered by $Bliemor $.38 per share as a result tr
charges. Partially offsetting those charges wasebegnition in 1998 of insurance claims proceé&ti® 1997 earnings results included a one-
time gain from the sale of excess real estate wiaifthr the benefit of a capital-loss carry-forwaadded $2.0 million or $.20 per share. Net
earnings for both 1997 and 1996 had also been irgdny losses caused by significant overruns oitamnjlactuation development contracts.
In 1996 there were lower levels of non-operatingereie in comparison to 1997 and 1998.

New orders recorded in 1998 totaled $232.2 milliotih an ending backlog of $198.3 million. This repents a $49 million increase

backlog compared to the $149.2 million backlodhaténd of 1997 substantially due to the acquisibio8IG Drive Technology Limited
("SDT") on December 31, 1998. It should be noted Hales in the PMPS segment are sold with veryestddad times. Accordingly, backlog
for these product lines is less of an indicatiofubdire sales activity than the Corporation's bagldf long-lead Actuation and Control and
Flow Control segment products.

SEGMENT PERFORMANCE
Precision Manufacturing Products & Services

The Corporation's PMPS business continues to aelselstantial increases in sales for 1998 as cadpeith the prior year. Sales improved
11% for 1998, reflecting increases in applicatigregticularly in aerospace, oil tool, petrochemiziadl other industrial markets, worldwide. In
addition, 1998 sales benefited from contributioharoadditional heat-treating facility in York, Reylvania acquired in April 1998. Sales
improvements also reflect newly opened facilitie®elgium, Germany, England and Kansas. 1998 wenie for the segment increased fr
1997 by $3.3 million or 22% to $18.2 million. Thigrease reflected improved sales in traditionalk®is, growth in producing flapper valve
components, lower overhead costs and a reductistaitrup costs from new facilities.

Sales and net earnings for 1997 had shown subdtanfirovements over 1996 results as well. 199¢ssahd net earnings were 15% and
67%, respectively, above sales of $82.6 million aetlearnings of $9.0 million posted in 1996. Whemparing 1997 to 1996, increases w
largely the result of a worldwide improvement ima@gpace applications and reflected the diversificadf products serviced by this segment,
including services to form wingskins of commercialgional and business aircraft and services omer@mponents and other aircraft parts.

Flow Control Products & Services

The Corporation's Flow Control Products & Servif€CPS") segment posted increases in sales anehnangs of 43% and 39% from 1997
to 1998. These sales increases largely refleciuhe31, 1998 acquisition of Enertech, LLC. Enéntetanufactures, distributes and represents
a number of products for sale into commercial rarcwer plants, both domestically and internatignand provides a broad range of
overhaul and maintenance services to such plant998, sales of commercial valve products increastecting work performed for a

foreign nuclear power plant under a contract resxbin late 1997. Net income for the year also Héed-from improved cost performance on
valve remakes and upgrade programs. While the Asiancial situation has not had an adverse efiadhis business, the Corporation
anticipates some slow-downs or stretch-outs inrgritem this area in the future.

Sales for 1997 were 14% above those of 1996, wigtéencome decreased by 3% in the comparable eriado U.S. Navy military valve
programs and a high level of commercial field sesand spare parts sales accounted for the sgbesviements. Net earnings for 1997, as
compared to 1996, were slightly impaired by high@ministrative costs and expenses relating to amencial royalty agreement.
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Actuation and Control Products & Services

The ACPS segment posted a sales increase of 8¥9%& when compared with those of 1997 primarilyexing the continued high level of
original equipment manufactured (OEM) productsBoeing. However, as the market approaches thegtenjgeak of the jetliner production
cycle, this segment continues to experience a nupftEost and efficiency issues. In addition, inwey write-offs, book to physical and
valuation adjustments severely impacted profitgfies segment. In the aggregate, accounting adgrgsncost overruns on military
development contracts and costs related to theotidaion of manufacturing operations resulted charge to net earnings of $3.9 million or
$.38 per share in 1998.

Sales of military actuation products were slightéfow those of 1997 as sales resulting from theptetion of "safety of flight" testing on F-
22 components early in 1998 were offset by theadrath F-16 shaft retrofit contract and lower foremilitary sales. Sales of component
overhaul services to foreign regions, while sliglitlow expectations, have been steady in 199&emndbove 1997 levels. The economic
problems of foreign regions, including Asia, hawt had an adverse impact on current performancen®a998, the Corporation's sales of
component overhaul and repair services in the gageehave improved 7% compared with the prior year.

In the fourth quarter of 1998, the Corporation amued its plans to move the manufacturing operatadrits Fairfield, New Jersey facility to
its Shelby, North Carolina facility to reduce itgesating costs. The Corporation recorded a char§esamillion after taxes for severance and
other employee-related costs and anticipates expeesl of $1.6 million after taxes, in transpodatand plant rearrangement costs in 1999.

Sales of this segment improved 51% in 1997 oveb 81l the segment reported net earnings of $2libmds compared to a net loss of $1.0
million in 1996. OEM sales of commercial aircrafingponents more than doubled those of 1996, refigdaticreased Boeing requirements for
actuation and control equipment. The Corporatiatigipates on every Boeing commercial aircraft eatly flying and production levels we

at a record high at the end of 1997. Sales of agréind repair services increased 53% when conmpa#@A7 to 1996. Sales improvements
were primarily reflective of a full year's operatifrom the Miami-based location, which had beeru&eg in May 1996. The net loss for this
segment reported in 1996 was the combined resaltiditions to the workforce, associated training ather costs incurred during the stapt-
phase of new Boeing production programs. Costs fugtieer increased by the timing and magnitudenofeased production work stemming
from Boeing's aggressive ramp-up.

CORPORATE AND OTHER EXPENSES

These costs include administrative expenses, réimgof remediation costs, costs for legal sersit@pursue claims against related parties
and related recoveries of such claims.

OTHER REVENUES

The Corporation recorded other non-operating netmmees for 1998 aggregating $11.7 million compavied $12.3 million in 1997 and $9.0
million in 1996. In 1997, the Corporation sold tyarcels of undeveloped land generating the sigmifilcrease in other revenues for 1997,
as compared with 1996. The Corporation recogniztcarnings of $2.0 million or $.20 per share, Whiflects tax benefits from the
application of a capital-loss carry-forward to tans realized on the sales. Other revenues gedeogtinvestments and rental properties
have been relatively consistent over the last thesgs.

Included in other revenues for the Corporationesgion income resulting from the amortization iimmome of the excess of the retirement
plan's assets over the estimated obligations uhégulan. On an after-tax basis, pension incomeuated to $3.2 million in 1998 as
compared with $2.2 million in 1997 and $2.3 million1996. The amount recorded largely reflectsetktent to which the expected return on
plan assets exceeds the service and interestafgatsviding benefits, as detailed in Note 12 tm€alidated Financial Statements.
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CHANGES IN FINANCIAL POSITION
Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Corporation's working capital decreased shghtlIDecember 31, 1998, totaling $130.8 milliorcampared with $132.8 million at
December 31, 1997. The ratio of current assetaneiat liabilities was 2.9 to 1 at December 31,880mpared with 4.4 to 1 at the end of
1997. The Corporation's balance of cash and short-investments totaled $72.3 million at Decemtiegrd®98 increasing $3.5 million over
balances at December 31, 1997.

Working capital changes were highlighted by anéase in accounts receivable of $19.3 million anémtories of $4.3 million during the
year. These increases are largely due to the atigussof Alpha, Enertech and SDT during 1998. @untiiabilities increased $29.2 million
December 31, 1998, compared with the prior year kangely due to borrowings under the Corporatigh'srt-term credit agreement used to
fund the SDT acquisition.

At December 31, 1998, the Corporation's balancetshias dramatically different than its balance saé®ecember 31, 1997. The changes
reflect the acquisition of three companies in 1988, of which involved aggregated cash outflow$59.3 million, while the third added
$21.9 million of debt to the year-end financial gios. Acquisitions in 1998 also added $27.0 milliof goodwill to the balance sheet for the
excess of the purchase prices over the combineddhie of the net assets acquired. In additiom Gbrporation completed an industrial
revenue bond (IRB) financing in 1998. The additigdta4 million of debt provided for the plant exjgéon of the Shelby, North Carolina
facility and related equipment purchases necegsaneet the demands of the new Boeing contractsétengrowth of the overhaul service
business.

The Corporation continues to maintain its $22.3iarilrevolving credit lending facility and its $Z2million short-term credit agreement. As
discussed above and in Note 9 to Consolidated EiabBtatements, these credit agreements weretadaethnce the SDT acquisition at
December 31, 1998. The revolving credit agreemisotencompasses various letters of credit issueathpily in connection with outstanding
industrial revenue bonds. The combined maximumialvi@ credit unused under these agreements at Meredfh, 1998 was $3.0 million.
Borrowings under the short-term credit agreemetal ®20.5 million and are payable at the expiratbthe agreement on October 22, 1999.
However, the Corporation intends to seek an extensi this agreement in advance of its expiratioexplore other financing vehicles as
necessary to extend the payment of this debt bey686.

Capital expenditures were $10.6 million in 199&réasing from $11.2 million spent in 1997 and veellow capital expenditures of $14.1
million in 1996. Principal expenditures were foe txpansion of PMPS facilities, which is relocatihgee sites to larger, more efficient
facilities, and purchased additional equipmentiwise those facilities. Strategic purchases ferRCPS segment include procuring state-of-
the-art welding capabilities to service nuclearteer requirements and additional machining cajiesilfor large valve components. ACPS
segment capital costs in 1998 were predominanttgptace older equipment to maintain the segmemisufacturing capabilities.

In 1999, capital expenditures are expected to aszesignificantly due to the continued expansiothefPMPS and the relocation of the AC
segment's overhaul business to a second NorthiGarfelkility. In addition, expenditures for OEM epment in both the ACPS and FCPS
segments are expected. At December 31, 1998, thm@dion had commitments of $7.5 million primarity the relocation of the PMPS
segment's United Kingdom facility and to purchasgital equipment in 1999.

Cash generated from operations and current shontitevestment holdings are considered adequatestt the Corporation's overall cash
requirements for the upcoming year, absent the glatyments as discussed above. This includesqdarapital expenditures, normal
dividends, satisfying environmental obligations awatking capital requirements.

Year 2000

As many computer systems and other equipment witheelded chips or processors (collectively, "Busir®gstems") use only two digits to
represent the year, they may be unable to prooessaely certain data before, during or afteryidar 2000. As a result, business and
governmental entities are at risk for possible almdations or systems failures causing disruptiartheir business operations. This is
commonly known as the "Y2K" issue. The Y2K issua adse at any point in the Corporation's supplgnaofacturing, processing,
distribution and financial chains.

The Corporation and each of its operating unitdratbe process of implementing a Y2K program wtiité objective of having all of their
business systems, including those that affectifi@siland manufacturing activities, functioning peoly with respect to the Y2K issue before
January 1, 2000. Each operating entity of the Campimin a different stage of readiness. The safpeork includes ensuring the compliar
of all applications, operating systems and hardwarenainframe, PC and LAN platforms, non-informattechnology software and
equipment and addressing key suppliers and cussomer
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The first component of the readiness program wadetatify the internal business systems of the Gmafion that are susceptible to system
failures or processing errors as a result of thi ¥3ue. This effort is substantially complete éaisting sites and is being expanded to inc
the SDT acquisition.

The second component of the Y2K readiness prognaoives the actual remediation and replacementisiness systems. The Corporatio
using both internal and external resources to iffe¥2K non-compliance problems, modify code anstténe resulting modifications. Those
business systems considered most critical to caintinoperations are being given the highest pyiohit some cases, non-compliant software
and hardware will be replaced. Based on the cuseimtdule, the Corporation expects to be in futhgliance with its internal business
systems during 1999.

As part of the Y2K readiness program, significawie providers, vendors, suppliers and custottiatsare believed to be critical to on-
going business operations have been identifieccanthcted in an attempt to ascertain their stageaafiness through questionnaires and
available means. To the extent that responses kor¥2diness are unsatisfactory, the Corporaticenithé to seek alternative suppliers, service
providers or contractors who have demonstrated ¥2i€liness. In the event that any of the Corporatisignificant customers and suppliers
do not successfully and timely achieve Y2K comm@rand the Corporation is unable to replace thé&mmwew customers or alternate
suppliers, the Corporation's business or operationil be adversely affected.

Concurrently, with the Y2K readiness measures dastrabove, the Corporation and its operating warigsdeveloping contingency plans
intended to mitigate the possible disruption inibesss operations that may result from the Y2K issue are developing cost estimates for
such plans.

It is currently estimated that the incremental sadtthe Corporation's Y2K remediation efforts viaél approximately $.5 million of which
approximately $.2 million has been spent. Thesésar® being expensed as they are incurred. Tlig associated with the replacement of
computerized systems and hardware are currentiy&std to be $.3 million, which would be capitatiz&hese amounts do not include any
costs associated with the implementation of comtity plans that are in the process of being deeelop

The Corporation's Y2K readiness program is an dnggprocess and the estimates of costs and comipldéites are subject to change.
Euro Conversion

Curtiss-Wright operates in Europe through PMPS&GES segment facilities located in the United Kiogyl France, Germany, Belgium,
Denmark and Switzerland. On January 1, 1999, elpaeticipating members of the European Monetarypodmstablished fixed conversion
rates between their existing currencies and the Hxisting currencies will continue to be usedeasl tender through January 1, 2002.
Thereafter, those currencies will be canceled apthced solely by Euro notes and coinage. At thiis the United Kingdom, the source of
most of the Corporation's European sales, is nicpzating in this change. The Corporation antitas that the Euro conversion will not hi
a material adverse impact on its financial conditi@sults of operations or liquidity.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

As discussed in Note 1 to the Consolidated Findst@tements, the Corporation has reviewed Stateafdfinancial Accounting Standards
No. 133, "Accounting for Derivatives and Hedgingtifities". Due to the limited use of derivative ingnents by the Corporation, tt
statement will not have a material effect on thepBation's results of operations or financial diod. The statement is effective for the
Corporation beginning January 1, 2000.
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REPORT OF THE CORPORATION

The consolidated financial statements appearingages 22 through 37 of this Annual Report have Ipeepared by the Corporation in
conformity with generally accepted accounting piples. The financial statements necessarily inckmt@e amounts that are based on the
estimates and judgments of the Corporation. Othantial information in the Annual Report is cotsig with that in the financial stateme:

The Corporation maintains accounting systems, gha@ss and internal accounting controls designgaduide reasonable assurance that
assets are safeguarded and that transactionsexeted in accordance with the appropriate corperatieorization and are properly recorded.
The accounting systems and internal accountingalsnare augmented by written policies and procesturrganizational structure providing
for a division of responsibilities; selection amdining of qualified personnel and an internal apdbgram. The design, monitoring, and
revision of internal accounting control systemsoire, among other things, management's judgmetit negpect to the relative cost and
expected benefits of specific control measures.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent certifiddip accountants, have examined the Corporatmmisolidated financial statements as
stated in their report. Their examination includestudy and evaluation of the Corporation's acéongrstystems, procedures and internal
controls, and tests and other auditing procedaitesf a scope deemed necessary by them to suh@irtopinion as to the fairness of the
financial statements.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, carapd entirely of Directors from outside the Corpiora among other things, makes
recommendations to the Board as to the nominati@amdependent auditors for appointment by stockbddand considers the scope of the
independent auditors' examination, the audit resanid the adequacy of internal accounting contifollse Corporation. The independent
auditors have direct access to the Audit Commitied,they meet with the Committee from time to tiwith and without management
present, to discuss accounting, auditing, intecnatrol and financial reporting matters.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Gstiright Corporation

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated badasheets and the related consolidated statemesdsrongs and stockholders' equity and
of cash flows present fairly, in all material restse the financial position of Curtiss-Wright Corption and its subsidiaries at December 31,
1998 and 1997, and the results of their operatamastheir cash flows for each of the three yeathérperiod ended December 31, 1998, in
conformity with generally accepted accounting pipies. These financial statements are the respitihsitif the Company's management; our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements based on our audits. We cordloateaudits of these statements in
accordance with generally accepted auditing staisdahich require that we plan and perform the atoditbtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of malterisstatement. An audit includes examining, ¢@sa basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statemastessing the accounting principles used andfis@mt estimates made by management,
and evaluating the overall financial statement @méstion. We believe that our audits provide aorable basis for the opinion expressed
above.

Florham Park, New Jersey
February 1, 1999
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

(In thousands except per share data) For the year s ended December 31, 1998  1997(1) 199 6(1)
Net sales $249,413 $219,395 $170, 536
Cost of sales 167,399 143,706 117, 067
Gross profit 82,014 75,689 53, 469
Research and development costs 1,346 1,877 997
Selling expenses 11,606 7,979 6, 337
General and administrative expenses 34,277 32,694 28, 207
Environmental remediation and administrative expens es,

net of recovery (1,562) 3,132 2, 397
Operating income 36,347 30,007 15, 531
Investment income, net 3,206 3,432 2, 968
Rental income, net 3,299 3,342 2, 816
Pension income, net 5,126 3,312 3, 651
Other income (expense), net 87 2,193 ( 450)
Interest expense 485 387 387
Earnings before income taxes 47,580 41,899 24, 129
Provision for income taxes 18,527 14,014 8, 020
Net earnings $29,0563 $27,885 $16, 109
Net Earnings per Common Share:
Basic earnings per share $ 28 $ 274 $ 1 .59
Diluted earnings per share $ 282 $ 271 $ 1 .58

(1) Prior year information has been restated tdaromto current presentation.

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands)

Assets:

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Receivables, net
Deferred tax assets
Inventories
Other current assets

Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment, at cost:
Land
Buildings and improvements
Machinery, equipment and other

Less, accumulated depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, net
Prepaid pension costs

Goodwill

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Income taxes payable
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Deferred income taxes

Accrued postretirement benefit costs
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Contingencies and Commitments (Notes 9 and 14)

Stockholders' Equity:

Preferred stock, $1 par value, 650,000 authorized,

Common stock, $1 par value, 22,500,000 authorized,
(outstanding shares 10,190,790 for 1998 and 10,17

Additional paid in capital

Retained earnings

Unearned portion of restricted stock

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Less, treasury stock at cost (4,809,210 shares for
shares for 1997)
Total stockholders' equity

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

December 31, 1998 1997

$ 5809 $ 6,872
66,444 61,883
60,912 41,590

7,841 8,806
54,048 49,723
3,519 2,506

4,645 4,486
91,325 89,096
141,245 126,005

none issued
15,000,000 shares issued

5,140 for 1997) 15,000 15,000

51,669 52,010
342,218 318,474
(40)  (342)
(2,800)  (3,289)

406,047 381,853

1998 and 4,824,860

176,454 177,000

$ 352,740 $ 284,708
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands) For the ye

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net earnings

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash p
activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Net (gains) losses on sales and disposals of re
and equipment

Net gains on short-term investments

Deferred taxes

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, ne
acquired:
Proceeds from sales of trading securities
Purchases of trading securities
(Increase) decrease in receivables
(Increase) decrease in inventories
Increase (decrease) in progress payments
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and

accrued expenses

Increase in income taxes payable

Increase in other assets

Increase (decrease) in other liabilities

Other, net

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from sales and disposals of real estate an
Additions to property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of new businesses

Net cash used for investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from short-term borrowing

Proceeds from long-term borrowing

Common stock repurchase

Dividends paid

Net cash (used for) provided by financing activitie

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ars ended December 31, 1998 1997

$ 29,053 $ 27,885 $

rovided by operating

9,661 9,097
al estate
94 (1,968)
(266)  (1,717)
1,494 76

t of business

374,802 342,416
(379,097) (349,500)
(7,181)  (4,929)
734 (3,624)
(1,248) 1,934

2,470 (666)
207 1,656
(5,446)  (3,860)
(236)  (2,458)
881 (879)
(3,131) (14,422)

25,922 13,463

d equipment 950 3,460
(10,642) (11,231)
(41,711)

(51,403)  (7,771)

20,523 -
9,815 -
(611) -
(5,309) (5,137)
s 24418  (5,137)
s (1,063) 555
6,872 6,317

$ 5809 $ 6872 $

(

8,946

473
(1,014)
(168)

333,577
323,172)
5,500
(12,057)
(2,622)

6,810
1,189
(4,705)
4,222
143
17,122

96
(14,156)
(16,640)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Unearned  Accumulated
Additional Portion of Other
Common Paid in Retained Restricted Comprehensive Comprehensive Treasury
(In thousands) Stock Capital Earnings Stock Awards Income Income Stock

December 31, 1995 $10,000 $57,141 $288,710 $(780) $(1,330) $181,562

Comprehensive income:

Net earnings 16,109 $16,109
Translation adjustments, net (176) (176)

Common dividends

Stock awards issued
Stock options exercised, net
Amortization of earned portion of

(5.079)

10 (93)
(24)

(83)
(89)

restricted stock awards 265

December 31, 1996 10,000 57,127 299,740  (608)  (1,506) 181,390

Comprehensive income:

Net earnings
Translation adjustments, net

Common dividends

Stock options exercised, net

Amortization of earned portion of
restricted stock awards

Two-for-one stock split 5,000

December 31, 1997 15,000

Comprehensive income:

Net earnings
Translation adjustments, net

Common dividends

Common stock repurchase

Stock options exercised, net

Amortization of earned portion of
restricted stock awards

27,885
(1,783)

(5,137)
(117)

266

(5,000) (4,014)

52,010 318,474 (342)  (3,289)

29,053
489

489

(5.309)
(449)

108 302

612

December 31, 1998 $15,000 $51,669 $342,218  $(40)  $(2,800) $176,454

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Curtiss-Wright Corporation and its subsidiarie®(t&orporation") is a diversified multinational mdacturing and service concern that
designs, manufactures and overhauls precision coemts and systems and provides highly engineergites to the aerospace, defense,
automotive, shipbuilding, oil, petrochemical, agitaral equipment, power generation, railroad, rwedeking, and fire and rescue industries.
Operations are conducted through five manufactuiaeiities, thirty-six metal treatment service ifdies and four component overhaul
locations.

A. Principles of Consolidation

The financial statements of the Corporation havanh@epared in conformity with generally acceptecbanting principles and such
preparation has required the use of managemetitisadss in presenting the consolidated accountiseo€orporation, after elimination of all
significant intercompany transactions and accowitmagement's estimates include assumptions tfeat dfie reported amount of assets,
liabilities, revenue and expenses in the accompanfynancial statements. Actual results may diffem these estimates.

B. Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of money market fundscanumercial paper that are readily convertible tdash, all with original maturity dates of
three months or less.

C. Progress Payments

Progress payments received under U.S. Governmign¢ gontracts and subcontracts have been deduciadréceivables and inventories as
disclosed in the appropriate following notes.

With respect to such contracts, the Governmenghis on all materials and work-in-process togkient of progress payments.
D. Revenue Recognition

The Corporation records sales and related prafitshie majority of its operations as units are phih services are rendered, or as engineering
milestones are achieved. Sales and estimatedguiiter long-term valve contracts are recognizetkuthe percentage-of-completion

method of accounting. Profits are recorded pro, tzaed upon current estimates of direct and iodimanufacturing and engineering costs to
complete such contracts.

Losses on contracts are provided for in the pariaghich the loss becomes determinable. Revisionsafit estimates are reflected on a
cumulative basis in the period in which the bagissiich revisions become known.

In accordance with industry practice, inventoriedts contain amounts relating to contracts andrprog with long production cycles, a
portion of which will not be realized within oneare

E. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at édapor renewals and betterments are capitalizedlewhaintenance and repairs that do not
improve or extend the life of the assets are exgetisthe period they occur.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-linehroe based upon the estimated useful lives ofdbpactive assets.

Average useful lives for property and equipmenteeséollows:

Buildings and improvements 10 to 40 years
Machinery and equipment 4 to 15 years
Office furniture and equipment 3to 10 years

F. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist primarily of the excasgsipase price of the acquisitions over the faingaif net tangible assets acquired. The
Corporation amortizes such costs on a str-line basis over the estimated period benefitechbuexceeding 30 yeal



G. Financial Instruments

The financial instruments with which the Corporatis involved are primarily of a traditional natufihe Corporation's short-term
investments are comprised of equity and debt siesirall classified as trading securities, whioh @arried at their fair value based upon the
guoted market prices of those investments at Deeeib, 1998 and 1997. Accordingly, net realized ametalized gains and losses on
trading securities are included in net earningg Thrporation also, where circumstances warranticigates in derivative financial
instruments consisting primarily of commitmentptochase stock. Derivative financial instrumentsiacluded as short-term investments in
the Corporation's balance sheets and are carrib@iafair market value, information on which appein Note 3.

H. Environmental Costs

The Corporation establishes a reserve for a patestivironmental responsibility when it concludestta determination of legal liability is
probable, based upon the advice of counsel. Sucuats, if quantifiable, reflect the Corporationsimate of the amount of that liability. If
only a range of potential liability can be estinthta reserve will be established at the low entthaf range. Such reserves represent today's
values of anticipated remediation not recognizing @ecovery from insurance carriers, or third-paeyal actions, and are not discounted.

I. Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

The Corporation follows Accounting Principles Bo&@ginion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to floyees” (APB No. 25), in
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accounting for its employee stock options, rathantthe alternative method of accounting providedien Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Cemspgtion” (SFAS No. 123). Under APB No. 25, thepbeoation does not recognize
compensation expense on stock options granted plogares because the exercise price of the optegtial to the market price of the
underlying stock on the date of the grant. Furthfarmation concerning options granted under thepGration's Long-Term Incentive Plan is
provided in Note 10.

J. Capital Stock

On April 11, 1997, the stockholders approved aneiase in the number of authorized common shares 1£500,000 to 22,500,000. On
November 17, 1997, the Board of Directors declarégc-for-one stock split in the form of a 100% stockidend. The split, in the form of 1
share of common stock for each share outstandiag,payable on December 23,1997. To effectuatetdlok split, the Corporation issued
5,000,000 original shares at $1.00 par value frapital surplus and the remaining 87,271 shares fteineasury account at cost, with a
corresponding reduction in retained earnings 0®%$4,000. Accordingly, all references throughous mnual report to number of shares, per
share amounts, stock option data and market poicee Corporation's common stock have been rabtatesflect the effect of the split for
periods presented.

In October 1998 the Corporation initiated a stagburchase program, approved by its Board of Dirsctmder which the Company is
authorized to purchase up to 300,000 shares opxzippaitely 3% of its outstanding common stock. Pasgs were authorized to be made
time to time in the open market or privately negti transactions, depending on market and othelittans, based upon the view of the
Corporation that recent market prices of the sttidknot adequately reflect the true value of thep@mation. Accordingly, it represented an
attractive investment opportunity for the Corparati

K. Comprehensive Income

Effective January 1, 1998, the Corporation ado@dement of Financial Accounting Standards No, IR@porting Comprehensive
Income" (SFAS No. 130). SFAS No. 130 establishasdsrds for reporting and displaying changes intgdwm non-owner sources. Total
comprehensive income for the years ended Decenihdr9®8, 1997 and 1996 is shown in the Statemdr&sockholders' Equity.

L. Earnings per Share

Effective for the fiscal year ended December 3B71%he Corporation accounts for its earnings pares(EPS) in accordance with Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 128, "EarsiRgr Share," (SFAS No. 128). Under SFAS No. 1#8Corporation is required to rep
both basic earnings per share as based on thetegighierage number of common shares outstandindilaed earnings per share as based
on the weighted average number of common sharstaoding plus all potentially dilutive common shaissuable. In accordance with SFAS
No. 128, all prior period earnings per share datztbeen restated. Earnings per share calculdtiotise years ended December 31, 1¢

1997 and 1996 are as follows:

Weighted
Average
Net Shares Per Share

(In thousands, except per share data)  Income Outstanding Amount
1998
Basic earnings per share $29,053 10,194 $2.85
Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock options 109

Deferred stock compensation 2
Diluted earnings per share $29,053 10,305 $2.82
1997
Basic earnings per share $27,885 10,172 $2.74
Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock options 118

Deferred stock compensation 1
Diluted earnings per share $27,885 10,291 $2.71
1996
Basic earnings per share $16,109 10,158 $1.59
Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock options 59
Diluted earnings per share $16,109 10,217 $1.58

M. Newly Issued Accounting Pronouncements

On June 15, 1998, the Financial Accounting StarglBhrd issued Statement of Financial Accountimg&ards No. 133, "Accounting f



Derivatives and Hedging Activities" (SFAS No. 133FAS No. 133 is effective for all fiscal quartefsll fiscal years beginning after June
15, 1999 (January 1, 2000 for the Corporation). S®b. 133 requires that all derivative instrumdigsecorded on the balance sheet at their
fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivasivéll be recorded each period in current earnimgather comprehensive income, depending
on whether a derivative is designated as parti@fdge transaction and, if it is, the type of hetlgesaction. Manage-
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ment of the Corporation anticipates that, duegdintited use of derivative instruments, the adoptf SFAS No. 133 will not have a
significant effect on its results of operationsgtsifinancial position.

2. Acquisitions

The Corporation acquired three companies in 1998ae company in 1996, as described below. All comigs acquired have been
accounted for as purchases with the excess ofutehase price over the estimated fair value ohtiteassets acquired recorded as goodwill.
The results of each operation have been includétkiconsolidated financial results of the Corpgorafrom the date of acquisition.

SIG-Antriebstechnik AG

On December 31, 1998, the Corporation complete@dheisition of the shares of SIG-Antriebstechni®,/& unit of SIG Swiss Industrial
Company Holding Ltd., for approximately $22.0 natiiin cash, subject to adjustments as provideddragreement. The acquired company,
to be renamed Curtiss-Wright Antriebstechnik Gmirtiss-Wright Drive Technology, Ltd.), is a leagiprovider of high-technology drive
solutions for three principal markets: militarydkad and wheeled vehicles, higheed railroad trains, and commercial marine psipnl The
Company's drive system solutions involve electrdmeaal and electrohydraulic actuation componentssystems including electronic
controls. Drive Technology's sales were approxitgei&7 million in 1998 with a year-end backlog @ipgoximately $53 million. The excess
of purchase price over the fair value of the neetssis approximately $17 million. The fair valdfahe net assets acquired was based on
preliminary estimates and may be revised at a tts.

Enertech

On July 31, 1998, the Corporation purchased thetagg Enertech, LLC (Enertech) which distributepresents and manufactures a number
of products for sale into commercial nuclear poplants, both domestically and internationally. Eeehn also provides a broad range of
overhaul and maintenance services for such plamts its two principal locations in California ané&@gia. The Corporation acquired the net
assets of Enertech for approximately $15.2 millmnash of which $13.2 million was paid at closamgd $2.0 million deferred to a specific
future contract date subject to adjustments asigeohvin the agreement. The excess of purchase gvigethe fair value of the net assets is
approximately $9.0 million and is being amortize@030 years. The fair value of the net assetsieejwas based on preliminary estimates
and may be revised at a later date.

Alpha Heat Treaters

The Corporation purchased the assets of the Alga Hreaters ("Alpha") division of Alpha-Beta Inthiess, Inc. on April 30, 1998. Alpha
services a broad spectrum of customers from itk Y®ennsylvania location and provides a numberethitreating processes including
carburizing, surface hardening, stress relievinduction hardening and black oxide surface treatrservices. The Corporation acquired the
net assets of Alpha for approximately $6.1 millinrcash. The excess of purchase price over thedhie of the net assets is approximately
$1.0 million, which is being amortized over 25 y&drhe fair value of the net assets acquired wasdan preliminary estimates and may be
revised at a later date.

Accessory Services

The Corporation purchased the Miami, Florida-baseckssory Services unit of Aviall, Inc. ("Access@grvices") on May 20, 1996
acquiring the net assets of Accessory Service$X6r6 million in cash. The excess of purchase mie® the estimated fair value of the net
assets acquired amounted to approximately $4.@om#ind is being amortized on a straight-line beser 30 years.

The unaudited pro forma consolidated results ofans shown below have been prepared as if theeaicquisitions had occurred at the
beginning of 1998 and 1996, respectively:

(In thousands, except per share data) 1998 1996
Net sales $277,945 $178,816
Net earnings 30,280 16,437
Diluted earnings per common share 2.94 1.61
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3. Short-Term Investments

The composition of short-term investments at Decamdi is as follows:

(In thousands) 1998 1997

Cost Fair Valu e Cost Fair Value

Money market

preferred stock $54,797  $54,79 7  $45,697 $45,697
Tax-exempt money

market preferred

stock 2,995 2,99 5 -- --
Common and

preferred stocks 6,007 6,20 3 3,090 3,205
Utility common stocks

purchased - - - 20,268 20,308
Utility common stocks

sold short -- - - (11,033) (11,121)
Options 49 4 9 - -
Tax exempt revenue

bonds 2,400 2,40 0 3,790 3,794

Total short-term
investments $66,248  $66,44 4  $61,812 $61,883

Investment income for the years ended Decembeogists of:

(In thousands) 1 998 1997 1996
Net realized gains on the sale of

trading securities $ 141 $1,435 $ 527
Interest and dividend income, net 2, 940 1,715 1,954
Net unrealized holding gains 125 282 487
Investment income, net $3, 206 $3,432 $2,968

4. Receivables

Receivables include amounts billed to customesasmd and other receivables and unbilled chargdsragiterm contracts consisting of
amounts recognized as sales but not billed. Sutisiigirall amounts of unbilled receivables are ectee to be billed and collected in the
subsequent year.

Credit risk is generally diversified due to theg@mumber of entities comprising the Corporaticostomer base and their geographic
dispersion. The largest single customer represéfftedf the total outstanding billed receivable®atember 31, 1998 and 12% of the total
outstanding billed receivables at December 31, 198& Corporation performs ongoing credit evaluaiof its customers and establishes
appropriate allowances for doubtful accounts bagh factors surrounding the credit risk of spedaifistomers, historical trends and other
information.

The composition of receivables at December 31 felamwvs:

(In thousands) 1998 1997
Billed Receivables:
Trade and other receivables $63,412 $49,110
Less: progress payments applied 11,687 10,460
Allowance for doubtful accounts 1,910 1,747
Net billed receivables 49,815 36,903

Unbilled Receivables:
Recoverable costs and estimated earnings

not billed 17,447 13,022
Less: progress payments applied 6,350 8,335
Net unbilled receivables 11,097 4,687

Total receivables, net $60,912 $41,590



5. Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (ppatly average cost) or market. The compositiomeéntories at December 31 is as follows:

(In thousands) 1998 1997
Raw material $ 8,862 $5,514
Work-in-process 22,802 22,686
Finished goods/component parts 23,130 21,782
Inventoried costs related to U.S. Government

and other long-term contracts 4,780 5,547
Inventories 59,574 55,529

Less: progress payments applied,
principally related to
long-term contracts 5,526 5,806

Net inventories $54,048 $49,723

6. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

Accrued expenses at December 31 consist of the foll owing:

(In thousands) 1998 1997
Accrued compensation $ 5,967 $5,878
Accrued taxes other than income taxes 1,108 1,357
Accrued insurance 1,662 1,659
All other 8,517 5,746
Total accrued expenses $17,254 $14,640
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Other current liabilities at December 31 consisthef following:

(In thousands) 1998 1997
Customer advances $ 4,655 $ 66
Current portion of environmental reserves 1,881 3,036
Anticipated losses on long-term contracts 1,878 1,305
Litigation reserves 298 3,101
All other 2,836 1,736
Total other current liabilities $11,548 $9,244

7. Income Taxes

There was no valuation allowance recorded in 199&bse it is more likely than not that all defeti@dassets will be realized. During 1997,
the Corporation fully utilized its capital loss paforward of $3,252,000 that would have expireddetember 31, 1997. In 1997, the
valuation allowance that was established to offsistdeferred tax asset was reversed. The net eltartye valuation allowance for deferred
tax assets was a decrease of $1,212,000 in 198itfre utilization of all remaining loss carry-forda.

Earnings before income taxes for the years endegker 31 are:

(In thousands) 1998 1997 1996
Domestic $33,320 $29,965 $15,195
Foreign 14,260 11,934 8,934
Total $47,580 $41,899 $24,129
The provisions (benefits) for taxes on earningglieryears ended December 31 consist of:

(In thousands) 1998 1997 1996
Current:

Federal $ 8,835 $7,523 $4,041

State 3,045 4,197 3,388

Foreign 5,019 1,910 995

16,899 13,630 8,424

Deferred:

Federal 1,231 332 3

State 397 126 (236)

1,628 458 (233)

Federal income tax on

net capital gains -- 1,135 184
Utilization of capital

loss carry-forwards - (1,135) (184)
Valuation allowance -- (74) (171)
Provision for income tax $18,527 $14,014 $8,020

199 8 1997 1996
U.S. Federal statutory tax rate 35. 0% 35.0% 35.0%
Add (deduct):
Utilization of capital loss
carry-forward - - (2.7) (.8)
Dividends received deduction
and tax exempt income (1. 4) (1.2) (2.3)
State and local taxes 4. 7 3.3 1.7
Valuation allowance (.2) (.7)
All other 6 (.8) .3



Effective tax rate 38. 9% 33.4% 33.2%
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The components of the Corporation's deferred tagtasind liabilities at December 31 are as folldwsyever, 1997 figures have been

reclassified for reporting purposes.

(In thousands)

Deferred tax assets:
Environmental cleanup
Postretirement/employment benefits
Inventories
Supplemental retirement plans
Vacation pay
Legal matters
Other

Total deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities:
Pension
Depreciation
Gain on sale of properties
Other
Total deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax asset valuation allowance

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities)

$6,428 $ 6,838

4,065 4,177
3,805 3,674
1,000 869
932 816
754 1,356
4,002 3,314
20,986 21,044
17,901 15,798
3,773 4,225
750 753
435 261
22,859 21,037

$(1,873) $ 7

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reflectethe Corporation's consolidated balance she®@seember 31 as follows:

(In thousands)

Current deferred tax assets
Non-current deferred tax liabilities

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities)

$7,841 $ 8,806
(9,714) (8,799)

$(1,873) $ 7

Income tax payments of $16,321,000 were made i8,1982,432,000 in 1997, and $8,553,000 in 1996.

8. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt at December 31 consists of the fioiig:

(In thousands)

Short-term credit agreement borrowing,
due 1999. Interest rate is 2.31% for 1998
Industrial Revenue Bonds, due from 2001
to 2023. Weighted average interest
rate is 2.52% and 3.70% per annum
for 1998 and 1997, respectively

Revolving credit agreement borrowing,
due 2001. Interest rate is 2.31% for 1998

Total debt
Less: Portion due within one year

Total long-term debt

Debts under the Corporation's short-term crediéagrent and revolving credit agreement are denoedriatSwiss francs. Actual borrowings

at December 31, 1998 total 31,000,000 Swiss francs.

Aggregate maturities of debt are as follo




(In thousands)

1999 $20,523
2000 -
2001 2,715
2002 4,047
2003 -
2004 and beyond 13,400

Interest payments of approximately $470,394, $31¥ dnd $383,000 were made in 1998, 1997 and 188fectively.
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9. Credit Agreements

The Corporation has two credit agreements in eHggregating $45,000,000 with a group of three balke credit agreements allow for
borrowings to take place in certain foreign curieacThe Revolving Credit Agreement commits a maxmof $22,500,000 to the
Corporation for cash borrowings and letters of itrthe unused credit available under this faciiitypecember 31, 1998 was $1,060,000.
The commitments made under the Revolving Credieggrent expire October 29, 2001, but may be exteadedally for successive one-
year periods with the consent of the bank groug Chrporation also has in effect a S-Term Credit Agreement which allows for cash
borrowings of $22,500,000, of which $1,977,000 weailable at December 31, 1998. The Short-Term iCfeteement expires October 22,
1999. The Shorferm Credit Agreement may be extended, with theseohof the bank group, for an additional periotito@®xceed 364 day
Cash borrowings under the two credit agreemeriieaeémber 31, 1998 were at a U.S. Dollar equivaléf®1,938,000. The loans have an
interest rate of 2.3125% which will be effectivetibRebruary 1, 1999. No cash borrowings were amging at December 31, 1997. The
Corporation is required under these Agreementsaintain certain financial ratios, and meet certehworth and indebtedness tests for
which the Corporation is in compliance. Under thevisions of the Agreements, retained earnings36f498,000 were available for cash
dividends and stock repurchases at December 38, 199

At December 31, 1998, substantially all of the istrial revenue bond issues are collateralized bByeastate, machinery and equipment.
Certain of these issues are supported by lettecgedit which total approximately $17,793,000. Tmrporation has various other letters of
credit outside the Revolving Credit Agreement fagbhpproximately $1,010,000.

10. Stock Compensation Plans

Stock-Based Compensation: Pro forma informatiomrgigg net earnings and earnings per share isreghjby SFAS No. 123 and has been
determined as if the Corporation had accounteit$dr998, 1997 and 1996 employee stock option grantler the fair value method of that
Statement. Information with regards to the numbempdions granted, market price of the grants,imgstequirements and the maximum term
of the options granted appears by plan type irstfations below. The fair value for these options estimated at the date of grant using a
Black-Scholes option pricing model with the follawgiweighted average assumptions for 1998, 19971886, respectively: a risk-free
interest rate of 4.80%, 5.88% and 6.6%; an expeat&atility of 18.80%, 18.18% and 24.38%; an expddiividend yield of 1.38%, 1.37%
and 2.0%; and a weighted average expected lifeeobption of 7 years for 1998 and 1997 and 10 years996. For purposes of pro forma
disclosures, no expense was recognized on thed@@shs due to the timing of the grant. The esteddtir value of the 1997 and 1996
option grants are presented as amortized to expmmsehe options' vesting period beginning Jandard996. The Corporation's pro forma
information for the years ended December 31, 12987 and 1996 are as follows:

(In thousands, except per share data) 1 998 1997 1996

Net earnings:
As reported $ 29, 053 $27,885 $16,109
Pro forma $ 28, 509 $27,570 $15,954
Net earnings per common share:
As reported:

Basic $ 2 85 $ 274 $ 1.59

Diluted $ 2 82 $ 271 $ 158
Pro forma:

Basic $ 2 80 $ 271 $ 157

Diluted $ 2 77 $ 268 $ 156

Long-Term Incentive Plan: Under a Long-Term IncemtPlan approved by stockholders in 1995, an agdedgtal of 1,000,000 shares of
common stock were reserved for issuance unde3aid The total number of shares available foraagto key employees in each year will
be one percent of the shares outstanding at tharbeg of that year, although that number may lmedased by the number of shares avail
but unused in prior years and by the number ofeshaovered by previously terminated or forfeitecdals. No more than 50,000 shares of
common stock subject to the plan may be awardedynyear to any one participant in the plan.

Under this plan, the Corporation awarded 1,184 @ ormance units in 1998, 997,841 in 1997 and&3#in 1996 to certain key
employees. The performance units are denominatddliars and are contingent upon the satisfactfggedormance objectives keyed to
profitable growth over a period of three fiscal geaommencing with the fiscal year following sueteads. The anticipated cost of such
awards is expensed over the three-year performaerded. However, the actual cost of the performamdes may vary from total value of the
awards depending upon the degree to which the &dgnmance objectives are met. In addition, thepGation granted non-qualified stock
options in 1998, 1997 and 1996 to key employeasxkStptions granted under this plan expire tengaéter the date of the grant and are
exercisable as follows: up to one-third of the gfter one full year, up to two-thirds of the grafter two full years and in full three years
from the date of grant. Stock option activity dgritme periods is indicated as follows:
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Weighted

Average
Exercise  Options
Shares Price  Exercisable
Outstanding at January 1, 1996 248,384 $18.98 88,618
Granted 69,298 25.19
Exercised (4,054 ) 17.19
Forfeited (4,908 ) 20.07
Outstanding at December 31, 1996 308,720 20.38 165,360
Granted 89,286 38.00
Exercised (19,302 ) 17.08
Forfeited (8,878 ) 22.33
Outstanding at December 31, 1997 369,826 24.76 216,398
Granted 118,886 37.66
Exercised (31,554 ) 19.13
Forfeited (20,657 ) 30.59
Outstanding at December 31, 1998 436,501 28.63 242,071

Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors: The StocknAbr Non-Employee Directors, approved by stocle in 1996, authorized the grant
of restricted stock awards and, at the option efdinectors, the payment of regular stipulated cemsption and meeting fees in equivalent
shares. In June 1996, pursuant to the plan 3,6d2slof restricted stock were issued to non-emplalji@ctors, at no cost to them. The shares
have been valued at a price of $25.78 per shagdathmarket price on the date of the award. Tdst of the restricted stock awards is being
amortized over their five-year restriction peridd.December 31, 1997, the Corporation had defemreddditional 4,468 shares, at an average
market value of $27.45, for its non-employee dwezpursuant to election by directors to receivehsshares in lieu of payment for earned
compensation under the plan. Depending on the etdewmhich the noremployee directors elect to receive future comp@san shares, tot
awards under this plan could reach or exceed 16&bBa6es by April 12, 2006, the termination datéhefplan.

11. Environmental Costs

In 1998, the Corporation successfully resolved semaronmental issues and significant progressaegageved in other issues. Included in
environmental expenses in 1998 are costs for thipdCation's lawsuit against a number of its insoeacarriers with respect to the
Corporation's environmental liabilities. The non+emt environmental obligation on the books at Delser 31, 1998 was $10,469,000
compared to $9,346,000 in December 1997.

In 1998, the Corporation's Wood-Ridge, New Jerdeytegan operations to remediate soil and groutetved the site. Costs to complete
construction and begin the operation and maintemnahthe system totaled $854,000 in 1998. The @bsbnstructing and operating this site
was provided in 1990 as part of a $21,000,000 vesestablished to remediate the property.

The Corporation has been named as a potentialhponssble party, as have many other corporationshaundicipalities, in a number of
environmental clean-up sites. Significant siteguide Sharkey landfill superfund site, ParsippangwiNersey; the Chemsol, Inc. superfund
site, Piscataway, New Jersey; Pfohl Brothers ldirgife, Cheektowaga, New York and PJP landfilts@g City, New Jersey. The Malta test
station and Buffalo Airport sites were resolved 898.

The Corporation believes the outcome for any ofréimeaining sites will not have a materially advezffect on the Corporation's results of
operations or financial condition. The lawsuit hg Corporation against its insurance carriersiisgoeontested, and no financial future
recovery from this lawsuit has been recorded tocedhe Corporation's environmental costs.

12. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans

The Corporation maintains a non-contributory dedfibenefit pension plan covering substantially alpéoyees. The Curtiss-Wright
Retirement Plan non-union formula is based on yebesedited service and the five highest consgeutears' compensation during the last
ten years of service and a "cash balance" beweiibn employees who have negotiated a benefit uihiieplan are entitled to a benefit based
on years of service multiplied by a monthly pengiate. Employees are eligible to participate is tilan after one year of service and are
vested after five years of service. At Decemberl®B8 and December 31, 1997, the Corporation hegigpst pension costs of $43,822,000
and $38,674,000, respectively, under this plan. Chrooration also maintains a non-qualified RegionaPlan covering those employees
whose compensation or benefits exceeds the IR&lion for pension benefits. Benefits under thenphre not funded and as such, the
Corporation had an accrued pension liability ofl#2,000 and $2,195,000 at December 31, 1998 and t@8pectively. Disclosures made
below are aggregated in accordance with Statenidfihancial Accounting Standards No. 132, "Empley&isclosures about Pensions and
Other Postretirement Benefits."
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Pension Benefits Other Benefits

1998 1997 1998 1 997
Change in Benefit Obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $113,718 $112,722 $4,125 $6, 516
Service cost 3,770 3,738 177 146
Interest cost 7,399 7,680 335 295
Plan participants' contributions
Amendments (1, 742)
Actuarial gain (1,805) 3,521 999 ( 576)
Benefits paid (13,595) (13,943) (449) ( 514)
Benefit obligation at end of year 109,487 113,718 5,187 4, 125
Change in Plan Assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 230,743 192,599
Actual return on plan assets (343) 52,011
Employer contribution 77 76 449 514
Plan participants' contribution
Benefits paid (13,595) (13,943) (449) ( 514)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 216,882 230,743
Funded status 107,395 117,025 (5,187) 4, 125)
Unrecognized net actuarial loss (gain) (59,314) (72,951) (2,560) 3, 703)
Unrecognized transition obligation (6,582) (7,739)
Unrecognized prior service costs 181 144 (1,828) 2, 022)
Prepaid (accrued) benefit cost $41,680 $36,479 $(9,575) $(9, 850)
Weighted-average assumptions as of December 31:
Discount rate 6.75% 7.00% 6.75% 7 .00%
Expected return on plan assets 8.50% 8.50%
Rate of compensation increase 4.50% 4.50%

For measurement purposes, an 8.18% annual rateregise in the per capita cost of covered healthlmenefits was assumed for 1998. The
rate was assumed to decrease gradually to 5.520@% and remain at that level thereafter.
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Pension Benefits Other Benefits

1998 1997 1998 1997
Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost (Revenue):
Service cost $3,770 $ 3,738 $177 $146
Interest cost 7,399 7,679 335 296
Expected return on plan assets (14,562)  (13,681)
Amortization of prior service cost (37) 3 (193) (167)
Amortization of transition obligation (1,157) (1,157)
Recognized net actuarial loss (539) 106 (145) (213)
Net periodic benefit cost (revenue) $(5,126) $(3,312) $174 $62

1% 1%
Increase Decrease

Effect on total of services and interest cost compo nents $68 $ (57)
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation $556 $(476)

The Corporation had foreign pension costs in 19987 and 1996 under retirement plans of $367,0002 %00 and $249,000, respectively.
At December 31, 1998, approximately 33% of the ‘slassets are invested in debt securities, inauaiportion in U.S. Government issues.
Approximately 67% of plan assets are invested initgcecurities.

13. Leases

Buildings and Improvements Leased to Others. Thgp@ation leases certain of its buildings and esldimprovements to outside parties
under noncancelable operating leases. Cost andnadated depreciation of the leased buildings anaravements at December 31, 1998,
were $50,816,000 and $44,559,000, respectivelyaabecember 31, 1997, were $50,572,000 and $48802respectively.

At December 31, 1998, the approximate future mimmrental income and commitment under operatingele#isat have initial or remaining
noncancelable lease terms in excess of one yeasdatlows:

Re ntal Rental
(In thousands) In come Commitment
1999 $4 ,781 $2,729
2000 4 ,459 1,914
2001 4 ,218 1,470
2002 2 ,558 1,287
2003 1 ,379 1,154
2004 and beyond 11 571 1,866

Facilities Leased from Others. The Corporation cmtsla portion of its operations from leased faesi which include manufacturing and
service facilities, administrative offices and waoases. In addition, the Corporation leases autdesylmachinery and office equipment
under operating leases. Rental expenses for alatipg leases amounted to approximately $2,586i90998, $2,239,000 in 1997 and
$2,283,000 in 1996.

14. Industry Segments

The Corporation has adopted Statement of FinaAdabunting Standards No. 131, "Disclosures abogn&mts of an Enterprise and Related
Information" (SFAS No. 131). SFAS No. 131 estaldsinew standards for reporting information aboetrating segments
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and related disclosures about products and seraimégeographic areas. Operating segments areedefsicomponents of an enterprise a
which separate financial information is availalslech that it is evaluated regularly by the chiegragting decision maker in assessing
performance and allocating resources. The Cormovatchief operating decision maker is its Chairmad President. The operating segments
are managed separately because each offers diffsaducts and serves different markets. The glagiroducts and major markets of the
three operating segments are described in the@\aace section of this Annual Report.

The accounting policies of the operating segmemgdree same as those described in the summargmifisant accounting policies. Interest
income is not reported on an operating segmens lesiause short-term investments and returns e thwestments are aggregated and
evaluated separately from business operations.

The Corporation had one customer in the Actuatimh@ontrol Products & Services ("ACPS") segmentohlzccounted for 16% of
consolidated revenue in 1998 and 15% in 1997, buwdustomers which provided more than 10% of taissin 1996.

CONSOLIDATED INDUSTRY SEGMENT INFORMATION

Actuation
Precision M fg. and Control Flow Control

Products & Products & Products& Segment C orporate Consolidated

Services Services Services Total & Other Total
Year Ended December 31, 1998:
Revenue from external customers $105,999 $105,400 $38,014 $249,413 $249,413
Intersegment revenues 554 554 554
Interest expense 78 148 253 479 $ 6 485
Depreciation and amortization expense 3,792 3,608 1,246 8,646 1,015 9,661
Income tax expense (benefit) 11,671 (240) 1,997 13,428 5,099 18,527
Segment net income (loss) 18,213 (1,033) 3,010 20,190 8,863 29,053
Segment assets 68,198 119,351 40,080 227,629 125,111 352,740
Expenditures for long-lived assets 6,053 2,111 2,180 10,344 298 10,642
Year Ended December 31, 1997:
Revenue from external customers 95,362 97,369 26,664 219,395 219,395
Intersegment revenues 691 691 691
Interest expense 78 138 171 387 387
Depreciation and amortization expense 3,656 3,455 1,005 8,116 981 9,097
Income tax expense 9,328 805 1,409 11,542 2,472 14,014
Segment net income 14,932 2,116 2,161 19,209 8,676 27,885
Segment assets 56,254 94,473 15,986 166,713 117,995 284,708
Expenditures for long-lived assets 4,838 4,675 1,244 10,757 474 11,231
Year Ended December 31, 1996:
Revenue from external customers 82,615 64,623 23,298 170,536 170,536
Intersegment revenues 477 477 477
Interest expense 78 134 167 379 8 387
Depreciation and amortization expense 3,533 2,956 1,037 7,526 1,420 8,946
Income tax expense (benefit) 5,586 (565) 1,254 6,275 1,745 8,020
Segment net income (loss) 8,958 (982) 2,234 10,210 5,899 16,109
Segment assets 54,340 86,575 17,977 158,892 108,272 267,164
Expenditures for long-lived assets 3,573 7,571 382 11,526 2,630 14,156
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Reconciliations: December 31,

199 8 1997 1996
Revenues:
Total segment revenue $249,41 3 $219,395 $170,536
Intersegment revenue 55 4 691 477
Elimination of intersegment revenue (55 4) (691) 477)
Total consolidated revenues $249,41 3 $219,395 $170,536
Net Income:
Total segment net income $20,19 0 $19,209 $10,210
Rental income, net 1,87 3 2,634 1,393
Investment income 2,58 1 3,181 2,712
Pension income 3,13 1 2,164 2,333
Corporate and other 1,27 8 697 (539)
Total consolidated profit or loss $ 29,05 3 $27,885 $16,109
Assets:
Total assets for reportable segments $227,62 9 $166,713 $158,892
Short-term investments 66,44 4 61,883 55,674
Pension assets 43,82 2 38,674 35,016
Other assets 14,91 4 17,528 17,682
Elimination of intersegment receivables 6 9) (90) (100)
Total consolidated assets $352,74 0 $284,708 $267,164
December 31, 1998 December 31, 1997 December 31, 1996
Long-Li ved Long-Lived Lo ng-Lived
Revenues(l) Ass ets Revenues(1) Assets Revenues(1) Assets
Geographic Information:
United States $165,567 $217, 668  $155,279  $201,718  $124,198 $192,405
United Kingdom 32,320 11, 454 22,842 7,405 17,631 7,654
Other foreign countries 51,526 8, 093 41,274 10,464 28,707 10,171
Consolidated total $249,413  $237, 215  $219,395  $219,587  $170,536 $210,230

(1) Revenues are attributed to countries basetefotation of the customer.
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QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (Unaudited)

(In thousands except per share amounts) First  Second Third Fourth

1998 Quarters:

Sales $60,846 $59,405 $62,603 $ 66,559
Gross profit 18,122 21,749 20,851 21,292
Net earnings 6,605 7,701 6,758 7,989
Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per common share $ 65 $ 76 $ 66 $ .78
Dividends per common share $ 13 $ 13 $ 13 $ 13
1997 Quarters:
Sales $53,148 $54,412 $52,677 $ 59,158
Gross profit 16,644 19,125 19,002 20,918
Net earnings 4,955 7,050 8,076 7,804
Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per common share $ 49 $ 69 $ .79 $ a7
Dividends per common share $ 125 $ 125 $ 125 $ 13

CONSOLIDATED SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA (Unaudited)

(In thousands except per share data) 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994
Sales $249,413 $219,395 $170,536 $154,446 $1 55,001
Earnings before changes in accounting

principles 29,053 27,885 16,109 18,169 19,547
Net earnings 29,053 27,885 16,109 18,169 19,303
Total assets 354,449 284,708 267,164 246,201 2 38,694
Long-term debt 20,162 10,347 10,347 10,347 9,047

Basic earnings per common share:
Earnings before changes in accounting

principles $ 28 $ 274 $ 159 $ 179 $ 1.93
Net earnings $ 28 $ 274 $ 159 $ 179 $ 191
Cash dividends $ 52 $ 505 $ 50 $ 50 $ .50

See notes to consolidated financial statementadditional financial informatior
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Corporate Headquarters
1200 Wall Street West
Lyndhurst, New Jersey 07071
Tel. (201) 896-8400

Fax (201) 438-5680

Annual Meeting

The 1999 Annual Meeting of Stockholders will becheh April 23, 1999 at 2:00 p.m. at the Novotel Mealands Hotel, One Polito Avenue,
Lyndhurst, New Jersey 07071.

Stock Exchange Listing
The Corporation's common stock is listed and traatethe New York Stock Exchange. The stock transferbol is CW.
Common Stockholders

As of December 31, 1998, the approximate numbéptafers of record of common stock, par value $p&0share, of the Corporation was
3,926.

Stock Transfer Agent and Registrar

For services such as changes of address, replatefreat certificates or dividend checks, and g®min registered ownership, or for
inquiries as to account status, write to ChaseMelibareholder Services, L.L.C. at the following reddes:

Stockholder Inquiries/Address Changes/Consolidatios
P.O. Box 3315, South Hackensack, NJ 07606
Duplicate Mailings

If you receive duplicate mailings because of slidjfferences in the registration of your accoumtd wish to eliminate the duplication, please
call ChaseMellon's toll free number, (800) 416-37@3write to ChaseMellon Shareholder Services,C.1 85 Challenger Road, Ridgefield
Park, NJ 07660 for instructions on combining yotzaunts.

Direct Stock Purchase Plan

A plan administered by the Chase Manhattan Baakadlable to purchase or sell shares of CurtisgWnivhich provides a low cost
alternative to the traditional methods of buyinglding and selling stock. The plan also providesiie automatic reinvestment of Curtiss-
Wright dividends. For more information contact enansfer agent, ChaseMellon Shareholder ServicésCLtoll free at (888) 266-6793.

Lost Certificates/Certificate Replacement
Estoppel Department, P.O. Box 3317, South Hackén$&k07606
Certificate Transfers

Stock Transfer Department, P. O. Box 3312,
South Hackensack, NJ 07606

Please include your name, address, and telephankarwith all correspondence. Telephone inquiriay fre made to (800) 416-3743.
Foreign (201) 329-8660. Hearing impaired (800) 8369. Internet inquiries should be addressed m/Miww.chasemellon.com

Investor Information

Investors, stockbrokers, security analysts, andrstheeking information about Curtiss-Wright Cogtimn should contact Robert A. Bosi,
Vice President--Finance, or Gary J. Benschip, Teasat the Corporate Headquarters, telephonée @i8-1751.

Internet Address



Use http://www.curtisswright.com to reach the GiatiVright home page for information about Curtissgm on the World Wide Web.
Financial Reports

This Annual Report includes most of the periodimaficial information required to be on file with tBecurities and Exchange Commission.
The company also files an Annual Report on FornK18-copy of which may be obtained free of chaiijeese reports, as well as additional
financial documents such as quarterly shareholgfmrts, proxy statements, and quarterly reportsaym 10-Q, may be obtained by written
request to Gary J. Benschip, Treasurer, at Corpdtatdquarters.

Common Stock Price Range

199 8 1997

High Lo w High Low
First Quarter $39.1875 $33.812 5 $28.1875 $24.7500
Second Quarter 41.8750 38.125 0 31.1250 26.7500
Third Quarter 48.3750 39.187 5 39.8750 29.0938
Fourth Quarter 39.5000 33.062 5 39.2500 36.1250
Dividends

1998 1997

First Quarter $ 0.130 $ 0.125
Second Quarter $ 0.130 $ 0.125
Third Quarter $ 0.130 $ 0.125
Fourth Quarter $ 0.130 $ 0.130

Design: Waters Design Associates, Inc. New Yorly!



[LOGO]

CURTISS-WRIGHT CORPORATION
1200 Wall Street West
Lyndhurst, New Jersey 07071

Ccw
Listed
NYSE

THE NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE



Exhibit 21
Subsidiaries of the Registrant

The information below is provided, as of March 2999, with respect to the subsidiaries of RegistfEime names of certain inactive
subsidiaries and other consolidated subsidiari¢egiistrant have been omitted because all suclidsaitiss, considered in the aggregate as a
single subsidiary, would not constitute a significaubsidiary.

Percentage of Voting
Organized Under Securities O wned by
Name the Laws of Immediate P arent
Curtiss-Wright Flight Systems, Inc. Delaware 100%
Metal Improvement Company, Inc. Delaware 100%
Curtiss-Wright Flow Control Corporation New York 100%
Curtiss-Wright Flow Control Service Corporation Delaware 100%
Curtiss-Wright Flight Systems Europe A/S Denmark 100%
Curtiss-Wright Foreign Sales Corp. Barbados 100%

Curtiss-Wright Antriebstechnik GmbH Switzerland 100%



EXHIBIT 23

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP [LOGO]

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
400 Campus Drive
P.O. Box 988
Florham Park, NJ 07932
Telephone (973) 236 4000
Facsimile (973) 236 5000

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statement on Form S-8 and(Se3 33-95562329) and in the
Registration Statements on Forms S-8 (Nos. 33-96B602nd 33-96583181) of Curtiss-Wright Corporatibour report dated February 1,
1999 appearing on page 21 of the Curtiss-WrighpGa@tion 1998 Annual Report which is incorporatedhis Annual Report on Form 10-K.
We also consent to the incorporation by refererficaioreport on the Financial Statement Schedukéchvappears in this Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PRI CEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

Fl or ham Par k, New Jersey
March 29, 1999
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PERIOD TYPE 12 MO¢S
FISCAL YEAR END DEC 31 199
PERIOD END DEC 31 199
CASH 5,80¢
SECURITIES 66,44
RECEIVABLES 62,82:
ALLOWANCES 1,91(
INVENTORY 54,04¢
CURRENT ASSET¢ 198,57:
PP&E 237,21!
DEPRECIATION 162,70«
TOTAL ASSETS 352,74(
CURRENT LIABILITIES 67,81(
BONDS 20,16:
PREFERRED MANDATORY 0
PREFERREL 0
COMMON 15,00(
OTHER SE 214,59:
TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY 352,74(
SALES 249,41
TOTAL REVENUES 261,13:
CGS 167,39¢
TOTAL COSTS 213,06t
OTHER EXPENSE! 0
LOSS PROVISION 352
INTEREST EXPENSE 48E
INCOME PRETAX 47,58(
INCOME TAX 18,527
INCOME CONTINUING 29,05:
DISCONTINUED 0
EXTRAORDINARY 0
CHANGES 0
NET INCOME 29,05
EPS PRIMARY 2.8t
EPS DILUTED 2.82
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